NOTICE OF TOURISM ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
CITY OF TOMBALL, TEXAS

Tuesday, July 26, 2022
6:00 PM

Notice is hereby given of a meeting of the City of Tomball Tourism Advisory Committee, to
be held on Tuesday, July 26, 2022 at 6:00 PM, City Hall, 401 Market Street, Tomball, Texas
77375, for the purpose of considering the following agenda items. All agenda items are
subject to action. The Tourism Advisory Committee reserves the right to meet in a closed
session for consultation with attorney on any agenda item should the need arise and if
applicable pursuant to authorization by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government
Code.

A. Call to Order

Public Comments and Receipt of Petitions; [At this time, anyone will be allowed to speak
on any matter other than personnel matters or matters under litigation, for length of
time not to exceed three minutes. No Council/Board discussion or action may take place
on a matter until such matter has been placed on an agenda and posted in accordance
with law - GC, 551.042.]

C.
1 Approve the Minutes of the January 25, 2022 Tourism Advisory Committee
Meeting
D. New Business
2. Make recommendation to Council regarding Position 1, 3, 6, and 9 of the Tourism
Advisory Committee
3. Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce for Grant from FY 2021-2022 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the Visitor
Center.

|

Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce for Grant from FY 2021-2022 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the 2021
Holiday Parade.
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Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce for Grant from FY 2021-2022 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the 2022
Tomball Night.

Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce for Grant from FY 2022-2023 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the Visitor
Center.

Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce for Grant from FY 2022-2023 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the 2022
Holiday Parade.

Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce for Grant from FY 2022-2023 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the 2023
Tomball Night.

Consideration of Application from the Houston Repertoire Ballet for Grant from
FY 2022-2023 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the 2022 The Nutcracker Performance
Series.

Consideration of Application from the Tomball Sister City Organization for Grant
from FY 2022-2023 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the 2022 German Christmas
Market and 2023 German Heritage Festival.

Consideration of Application from the Spring Creek County Historical
Association for Grant from FY 2022-2023 Hotel Occupancy Funds for 2022-2023
Operations Activities.

Consideration of Application from the Spring Creek County Historical
Association for Grant from FY 2022-2023 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the 2022
Tomball Museum Car Social.

Adjournment
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CERTIFICATION

| hereby certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board of City Hall,
City of Tomball, Texas, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 21 day
of July 2022 by 5:00 PM, and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the

scheduled time of said meeting.

Tracylynn Garcia, TRMC, CPM, CMC
Assistant City Secretary

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or
interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary’s office at (281)

290-1002 or FAX (281) 351-6256 for further information.
AGENDAS MAY BE VIEWED ONLINE AT www.ci.tomball.tx.us.



http://www.ci.tomball.tx.us/

Iltem 1.

City Council Meeting
Agenda Item

Data Sheet
Meeting Date: 07/26/2022

Topic:
Approve the Minutes of the January 25, 2022 Tourism Advisory Committee Meeting

Background:

Origination: City Secretary Office

Recommendation:

Party(ies) responsible for placing this item on agenda: Tracylynn Garcia, Asst City Secretary

FUNDING (IF APPLICABLE)
Are funds specifically designated in the current budget for the full amount required for this purpose?

Yes: No: If yes, specify Account Number: #
If no, funds will be transferred from account # To account #
Signed  Tracylynn Garcia Approved by

Staff Member Date City Manager Date




Iltem 1.

MINUTES OF REGULAR
TOURISM ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
CITY OF TOMBALL, TEXAS

/68 10Ma,

Iy

Tuesday, January 25, 2022

6:00 P.M.

The meeting was called to order by Co-Chair Raymond Francois. Other Committee
members present were:

Kailey Moore
Melanie Sutton
Jeffie Cappadonna
Ted Mielke
Absent:
Holly Cook
Rodney Hutson
Steve Hughes
Others present:
City Manager-David Esquivel
Finance Director-Katherine DuBose
Assistant City Secretary - Tracylynn Garcia
No Public Comments received.

Motion was made by Ted Mielke, second by Melanie Sutton to approve the Minutes of the
November 9, 2021 Special Tourism Advisory Committee Meeting.

Motion carried unanimously.
New Business:

1. Motion was made by Ted Mielke, second by Kaylee Moore to approve request from
Spring Creek Historical Association for the Use of Hotel Occupancy Funds.

Motion carried unanimously.
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Minu

Tourism Advisory Committee
January 25, 2022
Page 2 of 2

E. Adjournment:

Motion was made by Ted Mielke, second by Melanie Sutton, to adjourn at 6:10 p.m.

Motion carried unanimously.

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of , 2022.

Tracylynn Garcia Holly Cook
Asst. City Secretary Chair
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City Council Meeting
Agenda Item

Data Sheet
Meeting Date: 07-26-2022

Topic:
Make recommendation to Council regarding Position 1, 3, 6 and 9 of the Tourism Advisory Committee
Background:

TAC is asked to make a recommendation to Council to remove Steven Hughes (resident), Position 1,
due to excessive absenteeism, and appoint a new resident to the position. However, at this time, we have
no applicants for a resident position.

In addition, Positions 3, 6, and 9 (Cappadonna, Hutson and Cassel) are up for Reappointment and we are
asking for confirmation of interest in being reappointed.

Origination: Tracylynn Garica
Recommendation:
N/A

Party(ies) responsible for placing this item on agenda: Sasha Luna, Senior Administrative
Assistant

FUNDING (IF APPLICABLE)
Are funds specifically designated in the current budget for the full amount required for this purpose?

Yes: No: If yes, specify Account Number: #
If no, funds will be transferred from account # To account #
Signed  Tracylynn Garcia Approved by

Staff Member Date City Manager Date
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TAC Board Meeting
Agenda Item

Data Sheet
Meeting Date: 7/26/2022

Topic:

Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce for Grant from
FY 2021-2022 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the Visitor Center.

Background:

Origination: Finance

Recommendation:

Party(ies) responsible for placing this item on agenda: Katherine Tapscott, Finance Director

FUNDING (IF APPLICABLE)
Are funds specifically designated in the current budget for the full amount required for this purpose?

Yes: X No: If yes, specify Account Number: 240-240-6351
If no, funds will be transferred from account To account
Signed  Katherine Tapscott, CPA Approved by

Finance Director 7/20/2022 City Manager Date
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CITY OF TOMBALL
APPLICATION FOR USE OF HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

Applications may be mailed or hand delivered to:

Finance Director
City of Tomball
501 James Street
Tomball, TX 77375

Applicant Organization: Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

Organization Director: Bruce Hillegeist

Project or Event for which funding is requested: Visitor Center
Date of Event: Monday-Friday 8am-5pm

Description of project or event for which funding is requested: serving the public with questions
about Tomball

Location of project or event: 29201 Quinn Road, Suite B, Tomball, TX 77375

GRANT AMOUNTS:
Amount Requested for Current Fiscal Year: 2021-2022 $ 10,000
Amount Received for Previous Fiscal Year: 2020-2021 $ 17,500

% increase requested over last year’s grant: decrease %,




Organization Budget Summary for Previous Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Attached

City Funds

Other Funds

Total

Item 3.

Personnel

Contracted Services

Travel

Rental Expense

Depreciation/Mortgage N/A

Advertising

Insurance

Other Expenses

Volunteer Time N/A

Donated Goods/Services N/A

Total

Grants to an organization will not exceed 35% of the organization’s adopted budget for the fiscal year shown

above.

FUNDS FROM SOURCES OTHER THAN THE CITY OF TOMBALL

Government
Local
County
State
Federal

Other Investors/Contributors
Individual
Corporate
Foundations

Admissions
Applications
Vendors
Tuition

Concessions
Memberships

Subscriptions

Other
Total

Amount of Funds

e
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Item 3.

How many people do you expect will visit Tomball from out-of-town as a result of this project or event?

Explain the basis for your answer to the preceding question: 500 annually, with numerous daily
calls and walk in customers; 500 is a conservative estimate

Are attendees for this event or users of this project expected to stay overnight in Tomball hotels or

motels? If you answer to this question is Yes, state the basis for your answer: Yes, every day
people ask the staff for hotel options in the area and for activities to do while in town

Organization Contact Name: Brandy Beyer, Vice President

Title: Brandy Beyer, Vice President
Address: Brandy Beyer, Vice President

Phone Number: Brandy Beyer, Vice President

Digitally signed by Brandy Beyer
DN: cn=|

Contact b) S Signature : B ra n d y B eye r Dalecr;grzag;iy‘ Ee‘yuer“‘o;oGVrgg‘lg&Tombal\ Area Chamber of Commerce, ou, email=bbeyer@tomballchamber.org, c=US
Date: 07/15/2022
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Item 3.

VALIDATION OF APPLICATION

The signatory declares that he/she is an authorized official of the applicant, is authorized to make this
application, and certifies that the information in this application is true and correct to the best of his/her
knowledge. Signatory further declares that applicant, if previously funded by the City of Tomball, has

successfully fulfilled all prior Grant contract obligations.

Digitally si ion dbyB dyB

Brandy Beyer g cmmnse

D l 2022 07 15 1U 13 35 0500

Signature of Authorizing Official

Brandy Beyer

Typed Name

Vice President

Title within Organization

bbeyer@tomballchamber.org

Email address

07/15/2022

Date

281.351.7222

Telephone

12




Item 3.

NARRATIVE QUESTIONS

Please look at the criteria in the grant guidelines when you answer the following questions. Be specific and
give examples. Answers to individual questions should be as brief as possible and should in no case exceed

one page.

1. Describe the history and purpose of the organization.

2. Describe how any grant funds will be used.

3. List the programs and activities for the grant year.

4. Show evidence of growth in community support prior to the grant year. Include the number of
performances, exhibitions, audience sizes, services or enrollment. Be sure to include specific
information as to the percent of activities taking place within the City of Tomball.

5. How does your project/event qualify for use of Municipal Hotel Occupancy Tax funds as defined in the
Hotel Occupancy Tax Guidelines?

6. How do you publicize your activities? How do you evaluate these efforts and what have you done to
increase the effectiveness of your marketing efforts?

7. Explain the public benefits to the City of Tomball that will result from your organization’s efforts.

8. What is your organization doing to bring visitors to Tomball, to stay in local hotels and otherwise

support the hospitality industry?

13




Item 3.

OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION

The following information in required to process the grant application:

1.

2.

Articles of Incorporation, if applicable
Constitution and/or By-Laws

If your organization’s budget exceeds $100,000 (exclusive of in-kind) attach a copy of the last
independent audit of financial records. If no audit was completed, explain why.

Schedule of Board of Directors meetings for the period of October 1 of the current year through
September 30 of the following year. Board of Directors meetings must occur at least once per
quarter.

Resumes of principal staff and artists or relevant job descriptions.

Depending on the nature of the project or event for which grant funding is requested, the
organization will obtain a Certificate of Insurance for liability coverage as outlined in the attached
Exhibit A. The City of Tomball requires each grantee having an event in the City aimed to attract
both residents and tourists to have liability insurance to protect the public for acts by the grantee.
This mandated coverage does not cover the grantee or any of its members. We encourage the
grantee to acquire insurance to cover itself and its members as it deems fit. Please see your
insurance agent for the local government endorsement. The cost of the local government
endorsement may be included as part of your budget to be considered for a grant.

OPTIONAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

This should be additional material that you wish to attach that further explains the activities of your
organization such as:

1.

[98)

Long Range Plan — 3-5 years

One labeled videotape of performance(s), exhibits, workshops, capital project and /or other
activities for which City of Tomball grant funds will be utilized.

Programs, publicity, articles, reviews, etc.

Letters of support from patrons or other organizations in the community.

14




Item 3.

EXHIBIT A

Organization shall procure and maintain for the duration of the grant agreement, insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the services performed
or to be performed hereunder by the Organization its agents, representatives, employees, volunteers, officers,
directors or sub-contractors.

The organization shall maintain insurance with limits not less than $500,000 per occurrence, $1,000,000
aggregate and will be as broad as ISO Form Number GL 0002 (Ed 1/72) covering Comprehensive General
Liability and ISO Form Number GL 0404 covering Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability, or ISO
Commercial General Liability coverage (“occurrence for CG 0001). Coverage will include: A) Premises —
Operations; B) Broad Form Contractual Liability, C) Broad Form Property Damage and D) Personal Injury.

The policy will be endorsed to contain the following provisions: The City, its officials, employees, volunteers,
Boards and Commissions are to be added as “Additional Insured” in respect to liability arising out of any
activities performed by or on behalf of the Organization. The policy shall contain no special limitations to the
scope of coverage afforded to the City. The Organization’s insurance shall be primary and any insurance or
self-insurance shall be in excess of the Organization’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. Certificate
must include a waiver of subrogation as regards to the workers compensation policy. If your organization has
no employees, and therefore doe not carry workers compensation insurance, you must provide to the City of
Tomball a letter stating that you have no employees and therefore do not carry workers compensation
insurance.

Insurance shall be placed with insurers with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A:VI or a Standard & Poor
rating of A or better.

The Organization shall furnish the City with a certificate of insurance which shows the coverage provided.
The insurance policy will be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, non-
renewed, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail,
return receipt requested, has been given to the City.

15




Visitor Center Budget

Rent
CAM Expense

Office Supplies/Postage

Personnel

Total Expenses:

25,974.00
9,696.96
1,000.00

27,000.00

63,670.96

[Grant Request:

10,000.00]

Item 3.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2021 Budget Overview ltem 3.
January through December 2021

TOTAL
Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan - Dec 21
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Income
Rent Income 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 64,620.00
Capital Campaign 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 36,000.00
Health & Wellness 3,000.00 1,000.00 500.00 3,000.00 500.00 8,000.00
Hotel/Motel Tax 35,000.00 35,000.00
First Friday 1,800.00 1,800.00 2,000.00 2,400.00 2,300.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 14,300.00
Networking Breakfast 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 500.00 500.00 5,000.00
Interest Income 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 2,640.00
Membership Dues
New 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 4,000.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 54,000.00
Allowance Non-Renewal -4,384.33 -8,944.33 -1,879.33 -1,490.08 -1,796.08 -2,699.33 -2,218.58 -2,161.33 -2,837.08 -3,110.83 -2,087.58 -1,929.58 -35,538.50
Renewal 43,843.33 89,443.33 18,793.33 14,900.83 17,960.83 26,993.33 22,185.83 21,613.33 28,370.83 31,108.33 20,875.83 19,295.83 355,384.96
Total Membership Dues 44,459.00 85,499.00 21,914.00 18,410.75 21,164.75 28,294.00 23,467.25 22,952.00 30,033.75 32,497.50 23,288.25 21,866.25 373,846.46
Miscellaneous Income 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 3,600.00
Publications/Products
Magazine/Map/Website 500.00 3,500.00 1,500.00 8,500.00 3,000.00 500.00 500.00 18,000.00
Total Publications 3,500.00 1,500.00 8,500.00 3,000.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 17,500.00
Special Events
Banquet 10,000.00 10,000.00
Golf Classic 5,000.00 20,000.00 25,000.00
Tomball Night 6,000.00 11,000.00 4,000.00 21,000.00
Holiday Parade 3,000.00 10,000.00 12,000.00 25,000.00
Miss Tomball Pageant 4,000.00 13,000.00 8,000.00 25,000.00
Total Special Events 0.00 15,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 11,000.00 4,000.00 7,000.00 23,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 106,000.00
Total Income 56,764.00 114,304.00 52,719.00 36,715.75 33,469.75 48,399.00 46,072.25 38,257.00 84,238.75 67,602.50 54,693.25 33,271.25 666,506.46
Total Income 56,764.00 114,304.00 52,719.00 36,715.75 33,469.75 48,399.00 46,072.25 38,257.00 84,238.75 67,602.50 54,693.25 33,271.25 666,506.46
Gross Profit 56,764.00 114,304.00 52,719.00 36,715.75 33,469.75 48,399.00 46,072.25 38,257.00 84,238.75 67,602.50 54,693.25 33,271.25 666,506.46
Expense
Building Expense
Alarm 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 300.00
Cleaning 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 6,720.00
Electricity 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 10,800.00
Building Interest 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 31,800.00
Reimbursed by tenants -1,400.00 -600.00 -600.00 -1,100.00 -600.00 -600.00 -1,200.00 -600.00 -600.00 -1,200.00 -600.00 -600.00 -9,700.00
Repairs/Maintenance 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 12,000.00
Total Building Expense 3,735.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 4,035.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 3,935.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 3,935.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 51,920.00
17
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2021 Budget Overview ltem 3.
January through December 2021

TOTAL
Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan - Dec 21
Accounting Expense 200.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 7,000.00 2,300.00 17,500.00
Advertising 500.00 500.00 1,000.00 500.00 2,500.00
Bad Debt Expense 2,775.00 2,775.00 3,000.00 2,775.00 3,000.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 4,250.00 35,225.00
Health & Wellness 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,500.00 1,500.00 6,000.00
First Friday 2,200.00 2,200.00 1,700.00 2,500.00 2,100.00 2,200.00 2,000.00 14,900.00
Networking Breakfast 200.00 200.00 300.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 2,500.00
Young Professionals 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 1,200.00
Bank Fees 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 8,400.00
Board of Directors 300.00 100.00 200.00 200.00 3,000.00 3,700.00 7,500.00
Dues and Subscriptions 2,472.00 750.00 584.00 3,806.00
Employee Expense
SUTA 80.00 50.00 25.00 10.00 165.00
Development 600.00 550.00 500.00 500.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 1,550.00 300.00 1,500.00 9,000.00
FUTA 73.00 40.00 30.00 25.00 168.00
Group Insurance 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 48,978.00
Payroll Services 390.00 450.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 4,740.00
Payroll Taxes 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 18,000.00
Salaries
TACC 20,000.00 20,500.00 20,500.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,500.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 21,500.00 20,000.00 243,000.00
Bonus 12,150.00 12,150.00
Contract Labor 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 4,500.00
Total Salaries 20,375.00 20,875.00 20,875.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 20,875.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 21,875.00 32,525.00 259,650.00
Total Employee Expense 26,910.00 27,357.00 27,212.00 26,692.00 27,657.00 28,157.00 27,707.00 26,657.00 26,457.00 28,215.00 28,265.00 39,415.00 340,701.00
Insurance
Worker's Compensation 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 549.96
Officer & Director Liability 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 1,843.92
General Liab. 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 7,453.92
Total Insurance 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 9,847.80
Membership/Misc. Expense 1,000.00 3,000.00 1,500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 1,000.00 1,600.00 1,700.00 1,500.00 500.00 1,500.00 14,800.00
Office Equipment Expense
Database 3,500.00 3,500.00
Computer Maintenance 300.00 1,200.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 4,500.00
Copier Lease 1,000.00 800.00 1,500.00 600.00 500.00 800.00 1,200.00 1,000.00 700.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 700.00 10,800.00
Pitney Bowes 492.30 581.60 492.30 492.30 2,058.50
Total Office Equip Expense 1,792.30 5,500.00 1,800.00 1,481.60 800.00 1,100.00 1,992.30 1,300.00 1,000.00 1,792.30 1,300.00 1,000.00 20,858.50
Office Supplies 300.00 600.00 300.00 500.00 400.00 1,000.00 600.00 300.00 400.00 500.00 800.00 600.00 6,300.00
Postage & Delivery 500.00 300.00 800.00 1,500.00 0.00 700.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 1,500.00 0.00 500.00 6,300.00
Property Tax Expense 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 15,442.44
Income Tax Expense 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 2,160.00
Rent 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 " 0
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Special Events

Banquet

Golf Classic

Tomball Night

Holiday Parade

Miss Tomball Pageant
Scholarship Expense
Pageant - Other

Total Miss Tomball

Total Special Events

Telephone Expenses

Travel & Entertainment
Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Principal Building Payment
xDepreciation Expense

Net Income

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2021 Budget Overview ltem 3.
January through December 2021

TOTAL
Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan - Dec 21
10,000.00 10,000.00
250.00 1,000.00 6,750.00 8,000.00
2,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 10,000.00
15,500.00 1,000.00 16,500.00
4,000.00 4,000.00
500.00 5,500.00 2,500.00 8,500.00
500.00 9,500.00 2,500.00 12,500.00
250.00 10,000.00 1,000.00 6,750.00 2,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 500.00 25,000.00 3,500.00 57,000.00
565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 6,780.00
60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 720.00
44,126.82 58,459.52 47,339.52 50,326.12 44,984.52 47,259.52 50,001.82 57,709.52 46,959.52 52,109.82 73,351.52 61,892.52 634,520.74
12,637.18 55,844.48 5,379.48 -13,610.37 -11,514.77 1,139.48 -3,929.57 -19,452.52 37,279.23 15,492.68 -18,658.27 -28,621.27 31,985.72
3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 36,000.00
1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 20,460.00
7,932.18 51,139.48 674.48 -18,315.37 -16,219.77 -3,565.52 -8,634.57 -24,157.52 32,574.23 10,787.68 -23,363.27 -33,326.27 -24,474.28
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Narrative Questions:
1. Describe the history and purpose of the organization.

Answer: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (GTACC) provides resources
and empowers Tomball businesses to prosper. The value of being a GTACC member is
evidenced with research by the Shapiro Group, which shows a 63 percent increase in repeat
business due to chamber membership. Moreover, the Chamber staff regularly and routinely
welcomes visitors to Tomball and places information in their hands that promotes the city and
region, in particularly local hotels, motels and restaurants.

Incorporated in 1965, the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce has a history that
began in the 1920s. The Chamber has a reputation for actively representing and promoting the
interest of its members. As well, the Chamber is recognized throughout the region and the state
for its passionate promotion of the greater Tomball community.

The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce also serves as a visitor’s information
center.

2. Describe how any grant funds will be used.

Answer: Grant funds would be used to reimburse the GTACC for Visitor Center related
expenses. The GTACC staff regularly and routinely welcomes visitors to Tomball and places
information in their hands that promotes the city and region, specifically a map of the area, The
Spirit of Tomball Texas magazine, and information on local hotels, motels and restaurants. Time
dedicated to this function of the GTACC fluctuates, however all Chamber staff participates in this
service and materials are kept current for the purpose of maintaining a vital visitor’s information
center.

3. List the programs and activities for the grant year.

Answer: The GTACC annually organizes and hosts Tomball Night and the Tomball
Holiday Parade with an emphasis on local retailers, hotels and motels. In its press releases
related to these events the Chamber suggests inviting family and guests for a weekend in
Tomball, which includes overnight stays at local lodging.

With the large amount of growth in the area, there are individuals in the office daily requesting
information on relocation. Many are here staying in the local hotels as they search for a new
home. The amount of welcome packets we mail out has increased as well.

4. Show evidence of growth in community support prior to the grant year. Include the number of
performances, exhibitions, audience sizes, services or enrollment. Be sure to include specific
information as to the percent of activities taking place within the City of Tomball.

Answer: The GTACC has experienced growth over the past several years. This year
membership is staying consistent, but event participation has increased. The City of Tomball
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and the greater Tomball area has experienced growth as well. At the end of 2008 the Chamber
relocated to a facility that exudes professionalism, is in a high profile location and is welcoming
to all visitors. Chamber’s activities including Tomball Night and the Tomball Holiday Parade take
place in the city limits — 100%.

5. How does your project/event qualify for use of Municipal Hotel Occupancy Tax funds as
defined in the Hotel Occupancy Tax Guidelines?

Answer: The GTACC Visitor Center qualifies for use of the Hotel Occupancy Tax,
Chapter 351.101 with two banks of walls and a kiosk dedicated to pamphlets, booklets,
promotional materials and other contact information. The Chamber provides an extensive library
of current information concerning city, area and regional lodging, entertainment, amusements
and even day-trip venues. Daily the GTACC staff place these printed, promotional materials
about Tomball in the hands of visitors; a conservative estimated number of this exchange is 5
five visitors a day. In addition, the GTACC staff answers numerous phone inquiries; a
conservative number of inquiries by phone related to tourism is 5 per day.

6. How do you publicize your activities? How do you evaluate these efforts and what have you
done to increase the effectiveness of your marketing efforts?

Answer: As a visitor center, chambers of commerce have a long standing history of being
the first place visitors stop when they come to a new town. The GTACC is publicized on the
Internet through www.tomballchamber.org, in the World Chamber of Commerce Directory, as a
member of the US Chamber of Commerce, as a member of the Texas Association of Business,
as a member of the Texas Chamber of Commerce Executives and as a member of the American
Chamber of Commerce Executives.

The GTACC publicizes its activities and all partnership city and non profit organization
activities in Tomball through local and Houston area newspapers including The Houston
Chronicle and online news services. The GTACC checks for its press releases in these
publications and online. The GTACC is constantly adding to its publicity list. It is notable that
the GTACC promotes all partnership city and non profit organization activities, such as the
various City of Tomball festivals and the Tomball German Festivals, as a courtesy without
compensation or reimbursement.

7. Explain the public benefits to the City of Tomball that will result from your organization’s
efforts.

Answer: The public benefits to the City of Tomball resulting from the visitor center at the
GTACC offices are many. First, the Chamber strives to keep current information on local
businesses and growth moving into the area. Through these efforts the public uses the GTACC
as an information resource. Also, the Chamber maintains relationships with many entities —
like Texas Department of Transportation and the Harris County Precinct 4 Commissioner’s office
— that serve the greater Tomball area in order to better serve the public. First and foremost, the
public benefits by having a visitor center at the GTACC because having been established since
1965, the public is habitual in seeking out the Chamber for information. Moreover, the GTACC

has proven to be a stable, tenured, and reliable organization that proudly serves the public.
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8. What is your organization doing to bring visitors to Tomball, to stay in local hotels and
otherwise support the hospitality industry?

Answer: The GTACC is maintaining an Internet presence with www.tomballchamber.org
where a community calendar with Tomball events is posted and updated, routinely. These
events are also placed in the Texas Events Calendar, a statewide publication. The Chamber
also provides events such as the Tomball Holiday Parade, Tomball Night, and the Miss Tomball
Pageant, which has a history of bringing families to Tomball for overnight stays.
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'OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

* CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
| OF =+ .

CITY OF TOMBALIL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
CHARTER NO. 215046

- The underéigned, as Seéretar’j ‘of' ‘State of the State of Texas, hereby certifies that
aupﬁcate originals of Articles of Iﬂcorporation for the above corporation duly
. signed and verified pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation

A(;t, have been received in this office Tand are found to conform to law.

 ACCORDINGLY the undersigriéd, as such Secreféry of State, and by virtue of | ;

'the authority vested in him by law, hereby issues this Certificate of Incorporation '

s

and attaches hereto a duphcate orlgmal of the Articles of Incorporatlon ~

Dated ___-__-__C[u_l_y_l.s-_-____, 18.65.. é@ ﬂ{gﬂ{ é( oy
. ‘a.ﬂv"u

‘/ Secretary of State




ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF
CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

We, the undersigned natural persons of the age of twenty-one

(21) years of more, at least two of whom are citizens of the State
of Texas, acting as incorporators of a corporation under the Texas

Non-Profit Corporation Aet, do hereby adopt the following Articles

of Incorporation for such corporation:

ARTICLE ONE

The name of the Corporation is CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF

COMMERCE .

ARTICLE TWO

The Corporation is a non-profit corporation.

ARTICLE THREE

The period of its duration is perpetual.

ARTICLE FOUR
The purpose for which the Corporation is organized is Civiec,

providing and promoting the development of the City of Tomball, Texas.

ARTICLE FIVE

The Street Address of the initial registered office of the
corpofation is 314 Commerce Street, in Tomball, Texas, and the name

of its initial registered agent is Jesse C. Powell, whose address is

314 Commerce Street, in Tomball, Texas.

ARTICLE SIX

The number of directors, or trustees, constituting the initial

Board of Directors, or Trustees, of the Corporation is Three (3),

and the names and addreéses of the persons who are to serve as the
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initial directors, or trustees, are:

NAMES , ADDRESSES
Pete Still ‘ 719 Barbara, Tomball, Texas
Jesse C. Powell 732 James, Tomball, Texas
BillierdicLovett 408 W, Commerce, Tomball, Texas

ARTICLE SEVEN

The name and street address of each incorporator is:

Pete Still 719 Barbara, Tomball, Texas
Jesse C, Powell _ 732 James, Tomball, Texas
Bil¥ielJ,eLbvett 408 W. Commerce, Tomball, Texas

—

IN WITNESS WHEREOF we have hereto set our hands this /& Z° day

o/

of  lepize , A. D. 1965.
7 -
rrd "_;"‘ P 4 r
—7—
I~ . o = STTILL
) / .
1. sad? el A
; -nm
II
éiéf} '!'-ul
THE STATE OF TEXAS I
: |
COUNTY OF HARRIS Q
I, 7Z&«46J sc s Z/CZL, , a Notary Public, do hereby
certify that on this the /§Z° day of 4_/7/¢44u/ , 1965, personally

ILLIE
appeared before me, PETE STILL, JESSE C. POWELL and E? J. LOVETT, who

each being by me first duly sworn, severally declared that they are the
persons who signed the foregoing document as incorporatérs, and that
the statements therein contained are true.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and seal the day

and year above written,

Heoce 7.5,

Notary Public in and for Harris
County, T E X A S

FOYE A. BURKLIN
Notary Public in and far MHarris County, Tares
My Commission Expires June 1, 1967
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- STATE OF TEXAS
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

AUSTIN, TEXAS 7871 l
Crawford C. Martin
SECRETARY OF STATE : . July 2, 196 5

MR. HOWARD H, KLEIN
KleinOffice Building
311 Commerce Street
Tomball, Texas 77375

In replyvincludeﬁ
Charter No. 215046
Account No. 164647

RE: CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
TO THE ATTENTION OF THE CAPTIONED CORPORATION:

It has been our pleasure to approve and place on record the Articles of
Incorporation that created your corporation. We extend our best wishes
for success in your new venture. '

Unless shown as "EXEMPT" under Account No. above, you will be required

to file an annual franchise tax return with the Comptroller of Public
Accounts, Capitol Station, Austin, Texas, 78711, and pay the tax due
thereunder. Your first return and payment will be due within 90 days
after the end of the first corporate year. If the corporation should be
exempt under Article 12.03, Title 122A, Taxation-General, R.C.S. of
Texas, and is not shown "EXEMPT" above, you must apply to the Comptroller
for such exemption.” The SECRETARY OF STATE cannot make such a deter-—
mination for your corporation.

We suggest that you keep this letter as a reminder, or, so mark your
records that you will not unwittingly become liable for statutory
penalties for late filing and late payment. :

: Yours'very truly,

CRAWFORD C. MARTIN
Se ary of State

ROBERT L. TOWERY, Dir
Corporation Division
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Ausiin
4 PLEASE DIRECT
TR July 13, 1965 YOUR COMMUNICATIONS TO
. pivision _S0 FILE
TELEPHONE GR 5"1*771

. =~ Jffices of

*d H. Klein
“*ain Office Building
- T smmerce Street
T owl.li, Texas

Subject: City of Tomball Chamber of Commerce
Account No. 1,164,647
Charter No. 215046

e i Loy

--—L -\4&

Lo

<icz, cogether with the outline of the activities for the purpose of determining
itz status from & franchise tax standpoint.

A3 your requ:=st, we examined the Articles of Incorporation of this corpora-

-

IT is the opinion of this office that so long as the corporation confines
ctlvities exclusively to the purpose or purposes recited in the Articles
Incorporation, it is exempt from the franchise tax.

The Secretary of State is being furnished a& copy of this letter for his
ir“ormation.

Yours very truly, i

gank & 2@4.0,37«

ROBERT S. CALVERT
Comptroller of Public Accounts

-
"

WLE/ms : _ ST
Form No. 80-2.4k (Rev. L4/20/65) o T
cc: Corporation Division . :
Secretary of State
Austin, Texas
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Article | — Name
The name of this organization shall be the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.
Article Il — Purpose

Section 1. Vision: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce will continue
to be the business resource center for the northwest metropolitan area.

Section 2.  Mission: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce provides
resources and fosters relationships that empower businesses to prosper in
Tomball and its surrounding communities.

Article 1l — Area

The principal office of the organization shall always be located within the Tomball area.
The organization may have such offices as may from time to time be designated by the
Board of Directors.

Article IV — Limitation of Methods

This organization is incorporated under the laws of the state of Texas and shall transact
all business as the “Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.”

Article V — Membership

Section 1. Any person, association, corporation, partnership, or estate eligible for
membership may acquire more than one membership by paying the annual
dues of each such separate membership.

Section 2. New membership investments shall submit a membership application and
the appropriate fees to the Chamber. The membership application/inquiry
shall be brought before the Directors at the next scheduled Board of
Directors meeting for approval. No applicant shall be considered an
official member until approval of a majority of the votes of the Board of
Directors and application funds have been obtained.

Section 3. Any person, association, corporation, partnership, or estate holding a
membership shall be entitled to cast one vote per separate membership.

Section 4. Membership is subject to the following minimum investments.

A. The dues of each member per annum shall be an amount as
prescribed by the Board of Directors.

B. Honorary membership shall be given to individuals who have
rendered or may render the organization meritorious service and
shall have been nominated for such membership by the President

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 2 of 9
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Section 5.

Section 6.

or any Director and have received a majority vote from the
Directors present at the meeting when their name was proposed.
They shall not be subject to payment of dues and shall not have the
right to vote. This membership can be revoked at anytime by the
Board of Directors with advance notice to the member. The
member has the right to request a hearing before the Board of
Directors before the revocation.

Recurring membership investments shall become past due and considered
delinquent 90 days after date of billing. At the expiration of this period, if
said membership investment remains unpaid, the member shall be
removed from the rolls of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce. Members who shall be deemed delinquent or suspended shall
not be entitled to vote.

Termination of Membership

A Any member may resign from the Chamber upon notice to the
Chamber.

B. Membership shall end 90 days following the dues-paying period
unless extended by a vote of two-thirds majority of the Board of
Directors.

C. Any member may be expelled by a two-thirds vote of the Board of
Directors, at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof, for conduct
unbecoming a member or prejudicial to the aims or repute of the
Chamber, after notice and opportunity for a hearing are afforded
the member complained against.

Article VI — Meetings

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

The annual membership meeting of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce shall be held each year, the date, place, and hour to be
designated by the Board of Directors or under their authority.

Meetings of the members may be held at such times as the President or the
Board of Directors may determine, or upon written request of twenty-five
(25) percent of the members in good standing, provided that when called
otherwise than by the President or Board of Directors, the notice shall
contain a statement of the purpose of the meeting, and shall be issued at
least ten (10) days and not more than sixty (60) days preceding the
meeting. Meeting notices shall be emailed, faxed or mailed.

The Board of Directors shall meet regularly, the time and frequency to be
decided upon by majority vote of the board. Any meeting by the board
can include any director communicating by telephone as present and
participating.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 3 of 9
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Section 4.

Section 5.

By decision of the executive committee, a vote of the board upon limited
and specific issues may be conducted electronically. Or at a called
meeting, telephone participation may be allowed with board approval.

A majority of the Board of Directors at any meeting shall constitute a
quorum at that meeting. Upon notification to all voting members of a
membership meeting, those present shall constitute a quorum.

Article VIl — Referenda

Upon the written request of twenty-five (25) percent of the members in good standing,
the Board of Directors shall submit a question to members for a mail or electronic
referendum vote.

Article VII1 — Government & Leadership

Section 1.

Section 2.

A. The government of the organization, the direction of its work and
the control of its property shall be vested in a Board of Directors
consisting of fifteen members, one-third of whom shall be elected
annually for a term of three (3) years.

B. In the event that the Board of Directors determines that it is in the
best interest of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce,
additional board members may be appointed by the Board of Directors.
The term of such appointed directors shall expire at the next scheduled
annual meeting.

C. The Board of Directors shall at any time select Ex Officio
members. Ex Officio members of the Board may attend Board meetings
and take part in all discussion and can vote.

A nominating committee of three (3) members shall be selected from the
membership of the Chamber by the Board of Directors at a meeting held
not later than September 15. The nominating committee shall meet and
select five (5) members as nominees for Directors of the Chamber for
terms of three (3) years. The names of the persons nominated by the
nominating committee and approved by the board shall be published to the
members in alphabetical order. Additional nominees may be placed on the
ballot if supported by signatures of eight (8) chamber members in good
standing (dues current) and submitted within ten (10) days from the date
of publication of the nominating committee’s report. If no additional
nominations are thus made, the election of the five (5) members selected
shall have been approved by the membership. If, however, there are
additional nominations by written petition, the names of all persons
nominated shall be placed on an official ballot in alphabetical order and
brought before the membership or by mail ballot for voting. In case of a
tie vote, the Board of Directors shall make the selection.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 4 of 9
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Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

New directors shall be chosen prior to the Directors annual planning
session. New directors shall be installed at the beginning of each new
year.

The Board of Directors shall meet with the time and date to be fixed by
the Board. Absence from 40% of regular meetings per year shall be
construed as a resignation.

Any member of the Board of Directors may be expelled based on the good
faith determination by the Board or a committee authorized by the Board
to make such a determination, that the Board member has engaged in
conduct contrary or damaging to the Chamber or aims of the Chamber.
Action can be taken upon a majority vote of the Board of Directors. A
Director has the right to request a hearing before a panel of seven (7) non-
director members of the Chamber, three (3) shall be selected by the Board,
three (3) shall be selected by the member facing expulsion, and those six
(6) shall then select a single additional member. All members of the panel
must be members in good standing with the Chamber at the time of
selection. The panel shall vote on rulings before the panel by secret ballot,
and the panel’s majority ruling shall be binding.

Article IX — Officers

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Prior to the annual Board of Directors planning session, the Board shall
choose the Executive Board Members and delegate each as a Vice-Chair
to the Program of Work committees for the chamber year. The Board
shall also choose a Treasurer. Executive Board members shall be chosen
from the Directors that sit on the Board. All of the Board must be
members in good standing. Subsequently the Board shall employ a
President who is in charge of administration of the day-to-day operations
of the Chamber. The President is responsible to the Board of Directors,
and the Directors shall determine his/her compensation.

The Board of Directors may, by appointment or otherwise, provide for
such bureaus and the selection of such committees as may be deemed
advisable in promoting the object and purpose of this Chamber of
Commerce.

The individual chosen as Treasurer shall be a voting member of the Board
of Directors.

Duties & Responsibilities

A. The Chair of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of
Directors and shall be a member of all Chamber committees. It shall be
the primary responsibility of the Chair of the Board to see that the goals
and objectives of the Chamber as adopted by the Board of Directors are
carried out. The Chair of the Board may delegate these responsibilities to

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
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the various officers and directors. Subject to the approval of the Board of
Directors, the Chair of the Board shall execute all deeds, contracts, leases
and other similar documents affecting the operation of the Chamber. In
addition, the Chair of the Board shall have such other duties and exercise
such other powers as may be directed or delegated by the Board of
Directors.

B. The Chair-Elect of the Board shall be a member of all chamber
committees and shall closely observe the entire operation of the chamber
and serve as special assistant to the Chair. If the Chair is absent from a
Board meeting, the Chair-Elect of the Board shall preside at such Board
meeting. A nominating committee consisting of the immediate past Chair,
the Chair, and the Chair-Elect will nominate the incoming Chair-elect for
the next Chamber year subject to Board approval.

C. The Treasurer shall serve as Chair of the Budget Committee
appointed by the Chair of the Board. The Treasurer shall be responsible
for the safeguarding of all funds received by the Chamber and for their
proper disbursement. The Treasurer shall cause a frequent financial report
to be prepared for the Board of Directors.

D. The Vice Chairs should attend meetings of all committees within
their responsibilities and make periodic reports to the Executive Board and
the Board of Directors on the status of the goals and objectives for the
year.

E. The President shall be the chief administrative and executive
officer, shall serve as secretary to the Board of Directors, and shall cause
to be prepared special notices, agendas and minutes of meetings of the
Board. The President shall serve as advisor to the Chair of the Board and
to the Long-Range Planning Committee on program planning, and shall
assemble information and data and cause to be prepared special reports as
directed by the Chair of the Board, the Executive Committee or the Board
of Directors. With assistance of the Vice-Chairs, the President shall be
responsible for administration of the goals and objectives in accordance
with the policies and regulations of the Board of Directors. The President
shall be responsible for hiring, discharging, directing and supervising all
chamber employees.

Article X — Committees

Section 1.

The Board of Directors shall establish such committees as are necessary to
carry out the goals and objectives of the Chamber. The Chair of the Board
with advice from the President, shall appoint all committee chairs subject
to board approval. The Chair of the Board may appoint such ad hoc
committees and their chairs as deemed necessary. Such ad hoc committee
appointments and the terms of such committees shall be at the will and

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
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pleasure of the Chair of the Board, unless a different term is approved by
the Board of Directors. It shall be the function of committees to make
investigations, conduct studies and hearings, make recommendations to
the Board of Directors, and to carry on such activities as may be delegated
to them.

Section 2. No action by any member, committee, division, employee, director or
officer shall be binding upon, or constitute an expression of, the policy of
the Chamber until it has been approved or ratified by the Board of
Directors.

Article XI- Finances
Section 1. The fiscal year shall be the calendar year, January 1 through December 31.

Section 2. All money paid to the Chamber shall be kept on deposit in financial
institutions or invested in a manner approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. At the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, they may require the
Treasurer and President of this organization to furnish surety company
bonds in such amount as the Board of Directors shall deem necessary, the
costs to be paid by the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.

Section 4. With advice and counsel of the President and the Staff, the Budget
Committee shall prepare an annual budget to be submitted to the
Executive Board and the Board of Directors for approval at the December
Board Meeting.

Article XI1 — Dissolution

The Chamber shall use its funds only to accomplish the objects and purposes specified in
these bylaws, and no part of said funds shall inure, or be distributed to the members of
the Chamber. On dissolution of the Chamber, any funds remaining shall be distributed to
one or more regularly organized and qualified charitable, educational, scientific, or
philanthropic organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors.

Article X111 — Indemnification

The Chamber may, by resolution of the Board of Directors, provide for indemnification
by the Chamber of any and all of its Directors or Officers, volunteers, employees, or
former Directors or Officers against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them
in connection with the defense of any action, suite, or proceeding, in which they or any of
them are made parties, or a party, by reason of having been Directors or Officers,
volunteers, or employees of the Chamber, except in relation to matters as to which such
Director or Officer, volunteer, employees, or former Director or Officer shall be adjudged
in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the
performance of duty and to such matters as shall be settled by agreement predicated on
the existence of such liability for negligence or misconduct.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
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Article X1V — Parliamentary Authority

The current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall be the final source of authority in all
questions of parliamentary procedure when such rules are not inconsistent with the
bylaws of the Chamber.

Article XV — Amendments

Section 1.  These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the members in good
standing in attendance at any special meeting called for that purpose
provided that said amendments shall be plainly stated in the call for the
meeting at which they are to be considered.

Section 2. Notice of meetings at which such amendments are to be considered must
be given at least ten (10) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to
the time of the meeting.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
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Date
Approved Chair, Board of Directors

President

Jan, 2016 Ryan Aduddell

Bruce Hillegeist

Jan, 2017 DeniseDavis

BruceHillegeis:

Jan, 2018 Gail Randolpl

BruceHillegeis!

Jan, 2019 Jim Ros:

BruceHillegeisi

Jan, 2020 CraigBogne

BruceHillegeis!

Jan, 2021 JerrelWade

BruceHillegeisi

Jan, 2022
DawnaDysor

BruceHillegeis

Jan, 2023 ShaneBoatmal

BruceHillegeist

Jan, 2024

Jan, 2025

Jan, 2026

Jan, 2027

Jan, 2028

Jan, 2029

Jan, 2030

Jan, 2031

Jan, 2032

Jan, 2033

Jan, 2034

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce

Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2021 (Reviewed)
(with comparative totals for December 31, 2020 (Audited))
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Tomball, Texas

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and
making inquiries of entity management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which
is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountants’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those
standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant's Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s 2020 financial statements dated May
42, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

Tipton & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

April 14, 2022

39



http://www.nonprofitacctg.com/

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Financial Position

Item 3.

Reviewed Audited
As of December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 459,950 $ 349,800
Accounts receivable, net 40,848 53,474
Prepaid expenses 9,835 9,422
Property and equipment, net 884,005 914,047
Total Assets $ 1,394,638 $ 1,326,743
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 1,752 $ 3,232
Deferred revenues 164,664 157,891
Long term debt 573,315 610,370
Deposits 8,300 8,300
Total Liabilities 748,031 779,793
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 646,607 546,950
Total Net Assets 646,607 546,950
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,394,638 $ 1,326,743

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report
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Statement of Activities

Reviewed Audited
Year ended December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020
Revenue and Support
Membership dues $ 395,831 $ 510,128
Special events revenue 139,640 45,405
Direct benefits to donors (10,151) (10,640)
Capital improvement campaign 36,000 33,000
First Friday luncheon 15,452 11,342
Networking Breakfast 4,035 1,665
City of Tomball hotel tax revenue 35,000 35,000
Rental income 64,624 64,624
Tenent reimbursements 10,635 11,990
Ads and ad commission 20,767 16,895
Interest income 2,217 3,377
Other income 66,636 11,592
Total Revenue and Support 780,686 734,378
Expenses
Program Services
Business resources 235,360 252,245
Advocacy 241,414 248,661
Total Program Services 476,774 500,906
Supporting Services
General and administrative 101,906 117,336
Fundraising 102,349 110,957
Total Supporting Services 204,255 228,293
Total Expenses 681,029 729,199
Change in Net Assets 99,657 5,179
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 546,950 541,771
Net Assets, End of Year $ 646,607 $ 546,950

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report 3 a1




Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Functional Expenses

Item 3.

Program Services Supporting Services Reviewed Audited
Year ended December 31, Business Total Program General and Total Supporting 2021 2020
(with comparative totals for 2020) Resources Advocacy Services Administrative Fundraising Services Total Total
Payroll and related expenses
Salaries $ 98,426 $ 98,426 $ 196,852 $ 24,607 $ 24,607 $ 49214 $ 246,066 $ 254,302
Payroll taxes 7174 7,174 14,348 1,794 1,794 3,588 17,936 19,640
Employee benefits 15,710 15,710 31,420 3,927 3,927 7,854 39,274 39,992
Total payroll and related expenses 121,310 121,310 242,620 30,328 30,328 60,656 303,276 313,934
Other expenses
Advertising 283 283 566 283 1,980 2,263 2,829 288
Bad debt 21,520 21,520 43,040 21,520 21,520 43,040 86,080 210,368
Bank fees 789 789 1,578 3,156 3,156 6,312 7,890 4,838
Board expenses - - - 6,935 - 6,935 6,935 6,475
Building expenses 130 130 260 32 33 65 325 300
Computer maintenance 1,686 1,686 3,372 422 422 844 4,216 4,730
Contract labor 501 501 1,002 125 125 250 1,252 1,060
Depreciation 12,017 12,017 24,034 3,004 3,004 6,008 30,042 29,984
Dues and subscriptions 985 985 1,970 246 246 492 2,462 4,706
Employee development 3,853 3,853 7,706 963 963 1,926 9,632 4,170
Equipment lease 3,988 3,988 7,976 997 997 1,994 9,970 10,110
First Friday 15,142 - 15,142 - - - 15,142 9,095
Health committee 4,859 - 4,859 - - - 4,859 1,975
Insurance 3,846 3,846 7,692 962 962 1,924 9,616 9,594
Interest 12,034 12,034 24,068 3,009 3,009 6,018 30,086 32,010
Miscellaneous 4,037 5,383 9,420 4,035 - 4,035 13,455 8,095
Networking breakfast 280 - 280 - - - 280 450
Office supplies 1,954 1,954 3,908 488 488 976 4,884 4,192
Payroll service 2,209 2,209 4,418 552 552 1,104 5,522 5,122
Postage and delivery 812 406 1,218 406 1,083 1,489 2,707 1,793
Professional fees - - - 13,565 - 13,565 13,565 6,601
Rent 480 480 960 120 120 240 1,200 2,160
Repairs and maintenance 7,606 7,606 15,212 1,901 1,901 3,802 19,014 10,608
Software 1,940 1,940 3,880 485 485 970 4,850 3,508
Special events - 26,106 26,106 - 38,029 38,029 64,135 23,035
Taxes - income - - 4,515 - 4,515 4,515 436
Taxes - property 5,568 5,568 11,136 1,392 1,392 2,784 13,920 13,920
Telephone 2,616 2,616 5,232 654 654 1,308 6,540 6,536
Travel and entertainment - - - 760 - 760 760 480
Utilities 4,204 4,204 8,408 1,051 1,051 2,102 10,510 8,980
Young professionals 711 - 711 - - - 711 286
Total other expenses 114,050 120,104 234,154 71,578 82,172 153,750 387,904 425,905
Subtotal 235,360 241,414 476,774 101,906 112,500 214,406 691,180 739,839
Less: Direct benefit to donor - - - - (10,151) (10,151) (10,151) (10,640)
Total Expenses $ 235,360 $ 241414 $ 476,774 $ 101,906 $ 102,349 $ 204,255 $ 681,029 $ 729,199

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Cash Flows

Reviewed Audited
Year Ended December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 99,657 $ 5,179
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net change in operating activities:

Depreciation 30,042 29,984
Bad debt expense 86,080 210,368
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (73,454) (208,668)
Prepaid expenses (413) (229)
Accrued expenses (1,480) (2,000)
Deferred revenues 6,773 2,201
Total Adjustments 47,548 31,656
Net Change in Operating Activities 147,205 36,835

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment - (1,164)

Net Change in Investing Activities - (1,164)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Payments on long-term debt (37,055) (35,133)
Net Change in Financing Activities (37,055) (35,133)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 110,150 538
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 349,800 349,262
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 459,950 $ 349,800
Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid $ 30,086 $ 32,010
See accompanying notes and accountants' review report 5
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (the “Chamber) is a not-for-profit organization of citizens who
are investing their time and money in a community development program working together to improve the economic,
civic, and cultural fortitude of the region, community, or area. The Chamber’s mission is to provide resources and
foster relationships that empower businesses to prosper in Tomball and its surrounding communities.

The Chamber is supported through membership dues, contributions, rental income and other miscellaneous
revenue. The Chamber conducts the following programs:

e Business resources — The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value
added, quality networking events to the Chamber’s diverse membership, by ensuring inclusion through new
member mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. This
division invites members to become involved in the Chamber’s programs that will allow relationships to be
formed and sustained through a variety of networking events.

e Advocacy — The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for the Chamber’'s members and
the greater Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about issues
that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce development,
energy and healthcare.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Chamber have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Chamber reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets
that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors: net assets without
donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

e Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations and not subject to donor
restrictions. The only limits on the use of net assets without donor restrictions are the broad limits resulting
from the nature of the Chamber, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its corporate
documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements
with creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations. Assets restricted solely through
the actions of the Board of Directors are reported as net assets without donor restrictions, board-
designated.

¢ Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or use
for a purpose specified by the donor. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires,
that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-restricted endowment earnings are
released when those earnings are appropriated with spending policies and are used for the specified
purpose.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Chamber considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. The carrying values of any cash and cash equivalents
are deemed to approximate their fair values because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge
to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the allowance for
bad debts was $7,021 and $7,021, respectively.

Property and Equipment

The Chamber capitalizes all expenditures for property, plant and equipment in excess of $500. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Major improvements and renewals that extend the life of the asset
are capitalized. Purchased property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-
line method based on their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 39 years
Computers and software 3-5 years
Office equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years

Donated Assets

Donated investments and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their fair values at the date of
donation.

Donated Property and Equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at fair value at the date of donation. Such
donations are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions
of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Chamber reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. The Chamber reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Deferred Revenue

Income from membership dues and subscription fees received in advance is deferred and recognized over the
periods to which the dues and fees relate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates. The significant estimates included in the financial statements are the
estimates of useful lives used for depreciating property and equipment items.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commero<

Notes to Financial Statements

Membership Dues

Membership dues are recognized in the applicable membership period. Any unearned amounts are included in
deferred revenue at the end of each accounting period.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b)
require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Chamber. Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Chamber with program
services and fundraising events. No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for these donated
services as the recognition criteria were not met.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses are categorized in the Statement of Activities as program services, management and general and
fundraising. The Chamber’s expenses are allocated on a functional basis among these benefited categories:

e Program service expenses: include direct and indirect (allocated) expenses for the various programs
offered by the Chamber to fulfill member investment expectations. Expenses that can be identified with a
specific program and support services are allocated directly according to their natural expenditure
classification. Other expenses, that are common to several functions, are allocated to program services
based on time and effort.

e Management and general expenses: include those expenses, ranging from office management to financial
services, that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support
and direction of the Chamber. Those expenses include the basic necessities to be an accredited, well
rounded, and effective organization.

e Fundraising expenses: represent costs incurred in connection with fundraising efforts to continue the
Chamber’s mission. The membership dues alone are not adequate enough to accomplish the Chamber’s
goals; therefore, fundraising events are held to fill the gap between membership dues and total expenses.

Advertising Cost

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
amounted to $2,829 and $288, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Chamber is operating as a not-for-profit corporation, under Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and is not subject to income taxes with the exception of unrelated business income. The Chamber conducted
unrelated business activities during the current year. Therefore, the Chamber paid $4,515 and $436 for federal
income taxes in the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Chamber applies the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, which prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken
or expected to be taken in a tax return. Topic 740 also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures and transition. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, no
uncertain tax positions were identified.

NOTE 2 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Chamber maintains its cash balances in a local bank. These balances are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Management periodically assesses the financial condition of the
financial institutions and believes that any possible credit risk is minimal. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
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Notes to Financial Statements

Chamber had approximately $210,000 and $100,000, respectively, of cash balances that were not insured by the
FDIC. The Chamber has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes the risk of future loss is
mitigated by monitoring the balances and the financial institutions where the cash is deposited.

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

Reviewed Audited
2021 2020
Building and improvements $1,112,383 $1,112,383
Computers and software 17,517 17,517
Office equipment 13,102 13,102
Furniture and fixtures 17,990 17,990
Land 145,000 145,000
Total property and equipment, gross 1,305,992 1,305,992
Less: Accumulated depreciation (421,987) (391,945)
Total property and equipment, net $884,005 $914,047

Depreciation expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $30,042 and
$29,984, respectively.

NOTE 4 — RENTAL INCOME

The Chamber leases office space to three other organizations under four to five year leases as follows:

Current monthly Lease Renewal

rent Lease initiation expiration Lease renewal expiration
TEDC $1,506 9/1/2008 10/31/2013 11/1/2013 10/31/2018
11/1/2018 10/31/2023
TRHF $3,729 11/1/2012 10/31/2017 11/1/2017 10/31/2022
Envirocon $150 4/1/2016 3/31/2020 4/1/2020 3/31/2024

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, rental income was $64,624 and $64,624, respectively.
Future minimum rentals expected to be collected are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 57,165
2023 16,860
2024 450
Total $ 74,475

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS

The Chamber leases office equipment under noncancelable leases that expire in 2024 and 2026. For the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the total rental expense under these leases was $9,970 and $10,110,
respectively. These expenses are included in equipment lease expense in the Statement of Functional Expenses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 6,789
2023 6,651
2024 2,749
2025 1,969
2026 492
Thereafter -
Total $18,650

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The Chamber had a note payable due in monthly installments to a financial institution for an office building in the
amount of $6,729 for 83 months beginning January 10, 2010 through November 10, 2016. This note was secured
by the Quinn Road office building, with interest at 5%. On December 10, 2016, a balloon payment of any unpaid
principal and interest became due and payable, at which time the loan was modified to require monthly installments
of $5,595 at the same interest rate and terms and to become due and payable on December 10, 2023. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balance was $573,315 and $610,370, respectively.

Future scheduled maturities of the note payable is as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 38,885
2023 40,874
Thereafter 493,556
Total $573,315

NOTE 7 — LIQUIDITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
one year of December 31, 2021, comprise the following:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $459,950

Accounts receivable, net 40,848
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year $500,798

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Chamber
considers all expenditures related to its ongoing program activities, as well as the conduct of services undertaken
to support those activities, to be general expenditures. None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other
contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of
financial position date. The Chamber sets a goal of having financial assets on hand to meet a minimum of 90 days
of normal operating expenses, which are, on average, around $56,000. As part of its liquidity management, the
Chamber has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations become due.
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 8 — CONCENTRATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, approximately fifty-one percent (51%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and
support came from membership dues. For the year ended December 31, 2020, approximately sixty-nine percent
(69%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and support came from membership dues.

The Chamber conducts its operations solely in the greater Tomball area, and, therefore, is subject to risks from
changes in local economic conditions. A downturn in the local economy could cause a decrease in membership
dues and revenue.

NOTE 9 — FEDERAL COVID RELIEF

On February 25, 2021, the Chamber received $49,436 under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act’). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses and are forgivable if the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains average payroll levels. The Organization applied for forgiveness and in
August 2021, was notified that the advance was forgiven in full. The proceeds have been recognized as other
income during the year ended December 31, 2021.

NOTE 10 - CHAMBER MEMBERSHIP ABSORPTION AGREEMENT

In 2021, the Spring-Klein Chamber of Commerce (SKCC) ceased operations. The Chamber entered into an
agreement with SKCC to absorb their current members and honor the remaining membership benefits. No assets
or liabilities were transferred to the Chamber as part of the agreement.

NOTE 11 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Organization continues to evaluate current economic conditions and
the impact on the Organization’s operations for the year ended December 31, 2021, as the long-term effects of the
pandemic are uncertain.

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through April 14, 2022, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Tomball, Texas

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce as of December 31, 2020, and the changes in net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Greater Tomball Area Chamber
of Commerce and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously reviewed Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s 2019 financial statements dated
September 22, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
which it has been derived.

Tipton & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

May 24, 2021
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Statement of Financial Position

As of December 31, Audited Reviewed
(with comparative totals for 2019) 2020 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 349,800 $ 349,262
Accounts receivable, net 53,474 55,174
Prepaid expenses 9,422 9,193
Property and equipment, net 914,047 942,867
Total Assets $ 1,326,743 $ 1,356,496
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 3,232 § 5,232
Deferred revenues 157,891 155,690
Long term debt 610,370 645,503
Deposits 8,300 8,300
Total Liabilities 779,793 814,725
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 546,950 541,771
Total Net Assets 546,950 541,771
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,326,743 $ 1,356,496

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Item 3.

Statement of Activities

Year ended December 31,
(with comparative totals for 2019)

Audited Reviewed
2020 2019

Revenue and Support
Membership dues
Special events revenue
Less: Cost of direct benefits to donors

$ 510,128 $ 480,171
45,405

(10,640)

Special events revenue, net 34,765 132,345
Capital improvement campaign 33,000 36,000
First Friday luncheon 11,342 41,829
Networking Breakfast 1,665 4,992
City of Tomball hotel tax revenue 35,000 35,000
Rental income 64,624 64,624
Tenent reimbursements 11,990 9,662
Ads and ad commission 16,895 15,389
In-kind donations - 28,795
Interest income 3,377 5,450
Other income 11,592 11,535
Total Revenue and Support 734,378 865,792
Expenses
Program Services
Business resources 252,245 282,361
Advocacy 248,661 273,616
Total Program Services 500,906 555,977
Supporting Services
General and administrative 117,336 111,043
Fundraising 110,957 105,901
Total Supporting Services 228,293 216,944
Total Expenses 729,199 772,921
Change in Net Assets 5,179 92,871
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 541,771 448,900

Net Assets, End of Year

$ 546,950 $ 541,771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Item 3.

Program Services Supporting Services Audited Reviewed
Year ended December 31, Business Total Program General and Total Supporting 2020 2019
(with comparative totals for 2019) Resources Advocacy Services Administrative ~ Fundraising Services Total Total
T’ayroll and related expenses
Salaries $ 101,721 $ 101,721 $ 203,442 $ 25430 $ 25430 $ 50,860 $ 254,302 $ 253,742
Payroll taxes 7,856 7,856 15,712 1,964 1,964 3,928 19,640 18,734
Employee benefits 15,997 15,997 31,994 3,999 3,999 7,998 39,992 29,188
Total payroll and related expenses 125,574 125,574 251,148 31,393 31,393 62,786 313,934 301,664
Other expenses
Advertising 29 29 58 29 201 230 288 24,443
Bad debt 52,592 52,592 105,184 52,592 52,592 105,184 210,368 36,226
Bank fees 484 484 968 1,935 1,935 3,870 4,838 10,796
Board expenses - - - 6,475 - 6,475 6,475 3,964
Building expenses 120 120 240 30 30 60 300 300
Computer maintenance 1,892 1,892 3,784 473 473 946 4,730 3,310
Contract labor 424 424 848 106 106 212 1,060 3,933
Depreciation 11,993 11,993 23,986 2,999 2,999 5,998 29,984 30,132
Dues and subscriptions - 4,706 4,706 - - - 4,706 3,465
Employee development 1,668 1,668 3,336 417 417 834 4,170 9,875
Equipment lease 4,044 4,044 8,088 1,011 1,011 2,022 10,110 14,001
First Friday 9,095 - 9,095 - - - 9,095 44,033
Health committee 1,975 - 1,975 - - - 1,975 5,670
Insurance 3,838 3,838 7,676 959 959 1,918 9,594 8,488
Interest 12,804 12,804 25,608 3,201 3,201 6,402 32,010 33,780
Membership development - - - - - - - 62,397
Miscellaneous 2,429 3,239 5,668 2,427 - 2,427 8,095 20,653
Networking breakfast 450 - 450 - - - 450 1,456
Office supplies 1,677 1,677 3,354 419 419 838 4,192 6,404
Payroll service 2,049 2,049 4,098 512 512 1,024 5,122 4,452
Postage and delivery 538 269 807 269 717 986 1,793 5,840
Professional fees - - - 6,601 - 6,601 6,601 14,820
Rent 864 864 1,728 216 216 432 2,160 2,160
Repairs and maintenance 4,243 4,243 8,486 1,061 1,061 2,122 10,608 24,618
Software 1,403 1,403 2,806 351 351 702 3,508 3,382
Special events - 2,975 2,975 - 20,060 20,060 23,035 75,118
Taxes - income - - - 436 - 436 436 2,160
Taxes - property 5,568 5,568 11,136 1,392 1,392 2,784 13,920 13,920
Telephone 2,614 2,614 5,228 654 654 1,308 6,536 6,812
Travel and entertainment - - - 480 - 480 480 702
Utilities 3,592 3,592 7,184 898 898 1,796 8,980 10,620
Young professionals 286 - 286 - - - 286 814
Total other expenses 126,671 123,087 249,758 85,943 90,204 176,147 425,905 488,744
Subtotal 252,245 248,661 500,906 117,336 121,597 238,933 739,839 790,408
Less: Direct benefit to donor - - - - (10,640) (10,640) (10,640) (17,487)
Total Expenses $ 252,245 $ 248,661 $ 500,906 $ 117,336 $ 110,957 $ 228,293 $ 729,199 $ 772,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, Audited Reviewed
(with comparative totals for 2019) 2020 2019
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 5179 $ 92,871
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net change in operating activities:
Depreciation 29,984 30,132
Bad debt expense 210,368 36,226
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (208,668) (39,867)
Prepaid expenses (229) (7,973)
Accrued expenses (2,000) 1,956
Deferred revenues 2,201 30,178
Total Adjustments 31,656 50,652
Net Change in Operating Activities 36,835 143,523
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (1,164) (6,126)
Net Change in Investing Activities (1,164) (6,126)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Payments on long-term debt (35,133) (36,000)
Net Change in Financing Activities (35,133) (36,000)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 538 101,397
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 349,262 247,865
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 349,800 $ 349,262
Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid $ 32,010 $ 35,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (the “Chamber) is a not-for-profit organization of citizens who
are investing their time and money in a community development program working together to improve the economic,
civic, and cultural fortitude of the region, community, or area. The Chamber’s mission is to provide resources and
foster relationships that empower businesses to prosper in Tomball and its surrounding communities.

The Chamber is supported through membership dues, contributions, rental income and other miscellaneous
revenue. The Chamber conducts the following programs:

e Business resources — The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value
added, quality networking events to the Chamber’s diverse membership, by ensuring inclusion through new
member mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. This
division invites members to become involved in the Chamber’s programs that will allow relationships to be
formed and sustained through a variety of networking events.

e Advocacy — The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for the Chamber’s members and
the greater Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about issues
that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce development,
energy and healthcare.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Chamber have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Chamber reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets
that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors: net assets without
donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

e Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations and not subject to donor
restrictions. The only limits on the use of net assets without donor restrictions are the broad limits resulting
from the nature of the Chamber, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its corporate
documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements
with creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations. Assets restricted solely through
the actions of the Board of Directors are reported as net assets without donor restrictions, board-
designated.

¢ Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or use
for a purpose specified by the donor. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires,
that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-restricted endowment earnings are
released when those earnings are appropriated with spending policies and are used for the specified
purpose.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Chamber considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. The carrying values of any cash and cash equivalents
are deemed to approximate their fair values because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge
to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the allowance for
bad debts was $7,021 and $7,021, respectively.

Property and Equipment

The Chamber capitalizes all expenditures for property, plant and equipment in excess of $500. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Major improvements and renewals that extend the life of the asset
are capitalized. Purchased property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-
line method based on their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 39 years
Computers and software 3-5 years
Office equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years

Donated Assets

Donated investments and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their fair values at the date of
donation.

Donated Property and Equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at fair value at the date of donation. Such
donations are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions
of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Chamber reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. The Chamber reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Deferred Revenue

Income from membership dues and subscription fees received in advance is deferred and recognized over the
periods to which the dues and fees relate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual
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results could differ from those estimates. The significant estimates included in the financial statements are the
estimates of useful lives used for depreciating property and equipment items.

Membership Dues

Membership dues are recognized in the applicable membership period. Any unearned amounts are included in
deferred revenue at the end of each accounting period.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b)
require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Chamber. Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Chamber with program
services and fundraising events. No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for these donated
services as the recognition criteria were not met.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses are categorized in the Statement of Activities as program services, management and general and
fundraising. The Chamber’s expenses are allocated on a functional basis among these benefited categories:

e Program service expenses: include direct and indirect (allocated) expenses for the various programs
offered by the Chamber to fulfill member investment expectations. Expenses that can be identified with a
specific program and support services are allocated directly according to their natural expenditure
classification. Other expenses, that are common to several functions, are allocated to program services
based on time and effort.

e Management and general expenses: include those expenses, ranging from office management to financial
services, that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support
and direction of the Chamber. Those expenses include the basic necessities to be an accredited, well
rounded, and effective organization.

e Fundraising expenses: represent costs incurred in connection with fundraising efforts to continue the
Chamber’s mission. The membership dues alone are not adequate enough to accomplish the Chamber’s
goals; therefore, fundraising events are held to fill the gap between membership dues and total expenses.

Advertising Cost

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
amounted to $288 and $24,443, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Chamber is operating as a not-for-profit corporation, under Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and is not subject to income taxes with the exception of unrelated business income. The Chamber conducted
unrelated business activities during the current year. Therefore, the Chamber paid $436 and $2,160 for federal
income taxes in the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Chamber applies the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, (formerly FASB Interpretation No. 48
(FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109), which
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures and transition. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, no uncertain tax positions were identified.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments — ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (formerly SFAS 157),
defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in the principal
or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The valuation techniques required by ASC 820 are based upon observable and unobservable inputs, and ASC 820
establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The three levels
of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

e Level | - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market is a market in
which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. Level | assets include cash and cash equivalents with a fair value at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 of $349,800 and $349,262, respectively.

e Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level |, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

e Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity.

The asset’s or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used are to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

NOTE 2 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Chamber maintains its cash balances in a local bank. These balances are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Management periodically assesses the financial condition of the
financial institutions and believes that any possible credit risk is minimal. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Chamber had approximately $100,000 and $99,000, respectively, of cash balances that were not insured by the
FDIC. The Chamber has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes the risk of future loss is
mitigated by monitoring the balances and the financial institutions where the cash is deposited..

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

Audited Reviewed
2020 2019
Building and improvements $1,112,383 $1,112,383
Computers and software 17,517 16,353
Office equipment 13,102 13,102
Furniture and fixtures 17,990 17,990
Land 145,000 145,000
Total property and equipment, gross 1,305,992 1,304,828
Less: Accumulated depreciation (391,945) (361,961)
Total property and equipment, net $914,047 $942,867

Depreciation expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $29,984 and
$30,132, respectively.
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NOTE 4 — RENTAL INCOME

The Chamber leases office space to three other organizations under four to five year leases as follows:

Current monthly Lease Renewal

rent Lease initiation expiration Lease renewal expiration
TEDC $1,506 9/1/2008 10/31/2013 11/1/2013 10/31/2018
11/1/2018 10/31/2023
TRHF $3,729 11/1/2012 10/31/2017 11/1/2017 10/31/2022
Envirocon $150 4/1/2016 3/31/2020 4/1/2020 3/31/2024

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, rental income was $64,624 and $64,624, respectively.
Future minimum rentals are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $62,624
2022 57,165
2023 16,860
2024 450
Total $137,099

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS

The Chamber has two noncancelable operating leases for office equipment. The terms of the leases vary from 36
to 60 months beginning in 2015 and expiring in 2021. The monthly rental payments are $393 and $210 plus
maintenance costs. Both leases were renewed subsequent to year end. For the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, the total rental expense under these leases was $10,110 and $14,001, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $6,788
2022 6,651
2023 6,651
2024 2,749
2025 1,969
Thereafter 492
Total $25,300

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The Chamber had a note payable due in monthly instaliments to a financial institution for an office building in the
amount of $6,729 for 83 months beginning January 10, 2010 through November 10, 2016. This note was secured
by the Quinn Road office building, with interest at 5%. On December 10, 2016, a balloon payment of any unpaid
principal and interest became due and payable, at which time the loan was modified to require monthly installments
of $5,595 at the same interest rate and terms and to become due and payable on December 10, 2023. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance was $610,370 and $645,503, respectively.

11
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Future scheduled maturities of the note payable is as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $36,992
2022 38,885
2023 40,874
Thereafter 493,619
Total $610,370

NOTE 7 - LIQUIDITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
one year of December 31, 2020, comprise the following:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $349,800

Accounts receivable, net 53,474
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year $403,274

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Chamber
considers all expenditures related to its ongoing program activities, as well as the conduct of services undertaken
to support those activities, to be general expenditures. None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other
contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of
financial position date. The Chamber sets a goal of having financial assets on hand to meet a minimum of 90 days
of normal operating expenses, which are, on average, around $56,000. As part of its liquidity management, the
Chamber has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations become due.

NOTE 8 — CONCENTRATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2020, approximately sixty-nine percent (69%) of the Chamber’s total revenue
and support came from membership dues. For the year ended December 31, 2019, approximately fifty-five percent
(55%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and support came from membership dues.

The Chamber conducts its operations solely in the greater Tomball area, and, therefore, is subject to risks from
changes in local economic conditions. A downturn in the local economy could cause a decrease in membership
dues and revenue.

NOTE 9 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the Chamber has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through May 24, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. In
early 2020, an outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) emerged globally. The spread of COVID-19
and related global responses have caused material disruptions to many economies around the world, resulting in
an economic slowdown. Global equity markets have also experienced significant volatility and weakness. Although
governments and central banks have reacted with interventions designed to stabilize economic conditions, the
duration and extent of the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak remains unclear.

12
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On February 25, 2021, the Chamber received $49,436 under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act’). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses and are forgivable if the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains average payroll levels. Any unforgiven portion of the PPP loan will be
payable over two years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first six months. While the
Chamber believes its use of the PPP loan proceeds meet the conditions of forgiveness, it is possible the Chamber
may be ineligible for forgiveness of the loan, in whole or in part.

The Chamber has determined that these events are non-adjusting subsequent events. Accordingly, the financial
position and statement of activities as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 have not been adjusted to
reflect their impact. As of May 24, 2021, the virus and related responses have caused disruptions to the Chamber's
operations through cancelled events and reduced membership dues, and the Chamber expects these disruptions
to negatively impact its operating results. However, the ultimate impact of COVID-19 is not reasonably estimable at
this time.
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2021-2022 Board Meetings

Wednesday, October 13 — Board Retreat

Time: 9:00 am — 5:00 pm

Location: Tomball ISD Event Center
Wednesday, November 17 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, December 15 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, January 19 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, February 16 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, March 16 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, April 20 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, May 18 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, June 15 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, July 20 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)

Item 3.
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Wednesday, August 17 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, September 21 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)

Item 3.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

JOB DESCRIPTION

Item 3.

Job Title: PRESIDENT
Department: N/A

Reports To: Board of Directors
Approved By: Board of Directors

Approved Date: _May 20,2015

Revised Date:

The President, as the chief administrative executive plans, organizes, directs and controls the Chamber’s

§ Eiqﬁ%:ﬁ) (ﬂ;@ﬁ economic development and public policy activities and responds to the needs of its members
within-available and agreed upon financial resources. The President develops and maintains collaborative
working relationships between the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce and other key business and
public policy organizations, other area chambers of commerce and other organizations to foster a nurturing
business environment for members. The President delegates portions of his/her responsibilities consistent
with sound operations and authorized policies and procedures (together with proportionate authority for their
fulfillment through subordinate managers responsible for developing operational strategies that ensure the
flawless execution of the Chamber's internal affairs) in support of the chamber's external goals for business
and membership growth.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Strategic
e Direct development of short and long range objectives, policies, budgets, and operating plans for the
organization and oversees their consistent interpretation, implementation and achievement.
e Oversee the development of established policies, systems and processes for the proper,
consistent, and efficient execution of financial and operational activities, in compliance with all
relevant internal, local, state, and federal guidelines.
e  Work with committees to identify issues and needs and develop plans to address them.

2. Managerial

e Develop and ensure successful implementation of the Chamber’s multi-year strategic plan and the
corresponding annual business plan as approved by the Board of Directors.

e Integrate the needs and constraints of other functional/departmental managers and directors into
planning and execution of day-to-day operations.

e Ensure activities meet with chamber requirements for quality management, health and safety, legal
stipulations, environmental policies and general duty of care.

e Manage and develop direct reporting staff, including establishing and enforcing accountability
guidelines, directing and supervising staff day-to-day activities, training, and recruiting in line with
the Operational Plan and chamber goals and guidelines.

e Delegate and outsource activities as appropriate to meet goals and deliverables in the most efficient
and productive manner.

3. Financial
e Advise the Board of Directors of the Chamber's financial activities including cash flow, expenditures,
billing and event budgeting.
e Monitor accounting procedures and records in accordance with relevant internal and external
guidelines, including an annual audit.

e Approve disbursements, co-sign checks with the officers and maintain general control of expenditures.
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4. Administrative
e Employ staff necessary to carry out the work of the organization.
e Conduct employee evaluations in conjunction with the Vice President.
e Monitor the established employee benefits packages, payroll, tax deductions, and appropriate
records as approved by the Board of Directors, and in compliance with local, state, and federal HR
guidelines.

5. Communication

e Act as primary spokesperson for the organization.

e Maintain an open line of communication with the Board of Directors, providing objective and factual
input regarding relevant operational and financial activities to facilitate informed decision making.

e Maintain and develop effective communications and relations with other community leaders, other
organizations, and elected officials.

e  Work closely with Communications Director to ensure all information that is published by and through
the Chamber is correct, timely, addressed to the proper parties and/or audience, and in line with
chamber, local, state, and federal guidelines.

6. Self-Development

e Conduct all business in an ethical and professional manner.

e Keep abreast of new developments in community, legislation, Board of Directors, the membership
base, and any other area that could affect the Chamber’s operations.

e Know and understand the federal, state, and local laws which govern the different aspects of chamber
activities.

e Attend training seminars and courses as requested by the Board of Directors, or required by
developments in regulatory bodies.

QUALIFICATIONS

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE

B.A. or B.S. from accredited college.

Five (5) years experience as a successful business leader, familiarity with public relations and marketing,
and management experience.

LANGUAGE SKILLS
Ability to read and write legibly. Ability to document numbers quickly without transposing or dropping digits.
Ability to communicate verbally in English.

REASONING ABILITY

Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out moderately complex instructions. Ability to keep
track of, and organize, numerous and varied time sensitive tasks and concurrently deal with frequent urgent
situations requiring immediate decision and action.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
Ability to work irregular hours, evenings and weekends.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to work with computers; stand; walk;
sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; and talk or hear. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and
ability to adjust focus.

Item 3.
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Item 3.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The President is required to wear proper/approved work attire at all times.

NOTE:

THIS IS NOT NECESSARILY AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST OF RESPONSIBILITIES, SKILLS, DUTIES,
REQUIREMENTS, EFFORTS, OR WORKING CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE JOB. WHILE
THIS LIST IS INTENDED TO BE AN ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE CURRENT JOB, THE
CHAMBER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE JOB TO
REQUIRE THAT ADDITIONAL OR DIFFERENT TASKS BE PERFORMED WHEN
CIRCUMSTANCES CHANGE (i e, EMERGENCIES, CHANGES IN PERSONNEL, WORK LOAD,
RUSH JOBS, OR TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS).

I have read and fully understand the contents of this job description. | understand the responsibilities,
requirements and duties expected of me. | also understand that the job description does not constitute a
contract of employment nor alter my status as an at-will employee. | have the right to terminate my
employment at any time and for any reason, and the Chamber has a similar right.

Employee's Name Employee's Signature Date

Supervisor's Name Supervisor's Signature  Date

THE GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE IS
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

JOB DESCRIPTION

Job Title: VICE PRESIDENT OF OPERATIONS (U.S Chamber job code U105)
Department: N/A

Reports To: PRESIDENT

Prepared By: Pascale Nicolet-Smith — TOP solutions

Prepared Date: 1-10-2007

Approved By: BRUCE HILLEGEIST - PRESIDENT

Approved Date:

Revised Date:

Item 3.

JOB DEFINITION

The Vice President of Operations serves as the Chief Operating Officer, ensuring execution of the day-to-day
business operations of the organization, including policy development and management of financial activities and
personnel. The Vice President of Operations is responsible for developing operational strategies that ensure
the flawless execution of the chamber's internal affairs in support of the chamber's external goals for business
and membership growth.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Strategic
e Contribute to development of strategic plan as a member of executive team.
e Plan, develop and implement strategy for operational management and execution so as to meet
agreed Chamber goals within agreed budgets and timeframes.
e Develop and establish policies, systems and processes for the proper, consistent, and efficient
execution of financial and operational activities, in compliance with all relevant internal, local, state,
and federal guidelines.

2. Managerial

e Develop and implement Annual Operational Plan that defines deliverables, resource requirements,
processes, and timeframes for chamber driven activities.

e Integrate the needs and constraints of other functional/departmental managers and directors into
planning and execution of day-to-day operations.

e Ensure activities meet with chamber requirements for quality management, health and safety, legal
stipulations, environmental policies and general duty of care.

e Manage and develop direct reporting staff, including establishing and enforcing accountability
guidelines, directing and supervising staff day-to-day activities, training, and recruiting in line with
Operational Plan and chamber goals and guidelines.

e Delegate and outsource activities as appropriate to meet goals and deliverables in the most efficient
and productive manner.

3. Financial
e Plan, Develop, and manage annual budget with Board of Directors.
e Oversee the chamber's financial activities including managing and controlling cash flow,
expenditures, billing and event budgeting.
e Maintain proper accounting procedures and records in accordance with relevant internal and external
guidelines, including and annual audit.
e Keep and distribute financial notes, records, and reports to President and the Board of Directors.
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4. Administrative

e Manage and maintain appropriate records for company insurance, contracts and agreements,
corporate level negotiations (e.g. premises), vendors, regulatory bodies relationships and strategies,
approvals and accreditations.

e Establish and maintain appropriate IT and communication systems to ensure financial records,
membership databases, web presence and all communication channels are functional and meet
chamber goals and guidelines.

e Establish and manage employee benefits packages, payroll, tax deductions, and appropriate records
as approved by the Board of Directors, and in compliance with local, state, and federal HR guidelines

5. Communication

e Maintain an open line of communication with Chamber executives and Board of Directors, providing
objective and factual input regarding relevant operational and financial activities, to facilitate informed
decision making.

e  Work closely with Communications Director to ensure all information that is published by and through
the chamber is correct, timely, addressed to the proper parties and/or audience, and in line with
chamber, local, state, and federal guidelines.

e Maintain appropriate communication with direct report staff, ensuring they have the
necessary information to perform their day-to-day work effectively.

6. Self-Development

e Conduct all business in an ethical and professional manner.

o Keep abreast of new developments in community, legislation, Board of Directors, membership
base, and any other area that could affect the chamber operations.

¢ Know and understand the federal, state, and local laws which govern the different aspects of chamber
activities.

e Attend training seminars and courses as requested by the President and/or Board of Directors,
or required by developments in regulatory bodies.

QUALIFICATIONS

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE

B.A. or B.S. from accredited college.

Five (5) years administrative, accounting, and project management experience, preferably in a business
oriented not-for-profit organization.

LANGUAGE SKILLS
Ability to read and write legibly. Ability to document numbers quickly without transposing or dropping digits.
Ability to communicate verbally in English.

REASONING ABILITY

Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out moderately complex instructions. Ability to keep
track of, and organize, numerous and varied time sensitive tasks and concurrently deal with frequent urgent
situations requiring immediate decision and action.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
Ability to work irregular hours, evenings and weekends.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Item 3.
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Item 3.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to work with computers; stand; walk;
sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; and talk or hear. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and
ability to adjust focus.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The Vice President of Operations is required to wear proper/approved work attire at all times.

NOTE:

THIS IS NOT NECESSARILY AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST OF RESPONSIBILITIES, SKILLS, DUTIES,
REQUIREMENTS, EFFORTS, OR WORKING CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE JOB. WHILE
THIS LIST IS INTENDED TO BE AN ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE CURRENT JOB, THE
CHAMBER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE JOB TO
REQUIRE THAT ADDITIONAL OR DIFFERENT TASKS BE PERFORMED WHEN
CIRCUMSTANCES CHANGE (i e, EMERGENCIES, CHANGES IN PERSONNEL, WORK LOAD,
RUSH JOBS, OR TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS).

I have read and fully understand the contents of this job description. | understand the responsibilities,
requirements and duties expected of me. | also understand that the job description does not constitute a
contract of employment nor alter my status as an at-will employee. | have the right to terminate my
employment at any time and for any reason, and the chamber has a similar right.

Employee's Name Employee's Signature Date

Supervisor's Name Supervisor's Signature  Date

THE GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 1S
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.
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THE

THE HARTFORD
BUSINESS SERVICE CENTER
3600 WISEMAN BLVD

HARTFORD SAN ANTONIO TX 78251

City of Tomball
401 MARKET ST
TOMBALL TX 77375

Account Information:

Policy Holder Details :

GREATER TOMBALL AREA
CHAMBE OF COMMERCE

Item 3.

June 1, 2022

Q Contact Us

Need Help?

Start a live chat online or call us at
(866) 467-8730.

We’'re here weekdays from 8:00 AM to
8:00 PM ET.

Enclosed please find a Certificate Of Insurance for the above referenced Policyholder. Please contact us if you have any

guestions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Your Hartford Service Team

WLTRO05
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AcorLF  CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oHTE oo

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLD Item 3.

THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE
POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S),
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not
confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER CONTACT
HIGGINBOTHAM INS AGENCY INC/PHS NAME:
61611737 PHONE (866) 467-8730 FAX (888) 443-6112
(AIC, No, Ext): (A/C, No):
The Hartford Business Service Center
3600 Wiseman Blvd E-MAIL
San Antonio, TX 78251 ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#
INSURED INSURER A : Hartford Lloyd's Insurance Company 38253
GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBE OF COMMERCE INSURER B :
292201 QUINN STEB
INSURER C :
TOMBALL TX 77375
INSURERD :
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL | SUBR POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS
LTR INSR_|WVD (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/Y YYY)
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS__MAD'I% OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $300'000
X |General Liability MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000
A X 61 SBA VM8139 12/20/2021 | 12/20/2022 | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
PRO-
L POLICY I:l kot LoC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000
OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
ﬁTOMOBlLE LIABILITY 2 accident $1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED ]
A | |AuTos AUTOS 61 SBA VM8139 12/20/2021 | 12/20/2022 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
| HIRED x| NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
UMBRELLA LIAB | | OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-
MADE AGGREGATE
DED| |RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION |PER | |OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER
ANY YN E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE N/ A
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? I: E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
im Limi 5,000
A |EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 61 SBA VM8139 122012021 | 127202022 | Each Claim Limit $
LIABILITY Aggregate Limit $5,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Those usual to the Insured's Operations. Certificate holder is an additional insured per the Business Liability Coverage Form SS0008 attached to this
policy.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
City of Tomball SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
401 MARKET ST BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED
TOMBALL TX 77375 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Item 3.

Vision Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce will continue to be the business
resource center for the northwest Houston metropolitan area.

R.E.A.L. (Core) Values

Relationship
Connecting members for lasting relationships that promote growth and enhance success.
Education
Promoting development of our community through personal and business education.
Advocacy
Partnering with business and government to advocate for the community.
Legacy
Establishing the standards of tomorrow guided by the cornerstone of tradition.

Mission Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce provides resources
and fosters relationships that empower businesses to prosper in
Tomball and its surrounding communities.

Diversity Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce is committed to advancing the values
and benefits of diversity, equity and inclusion and believes it takes every member of the
community to maintain a thriving economy.

Representing

City of Tomball, Creekside, Decker Prairie, Hufsmith, Korhville, Lakewood,
Northpointe, Pinehurst, Rose Hill, Spring-Klein & Stagecoach

Critical Goals

Advance Region's Economy
Promote and enhance a vibrant, diverse and sustainable economy.

Improve Quality of Life
Foster a high-ranking quality of life for all residents.

Enhance Members' Success
Provide targeted services, events and programs.

Organization Improvement
Position the organization and its staff for long term success.
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 2
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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Iltem

Business Resources Division

3.

The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value added, quality
networking events to GTACC’s diverse membership by ensuring inclusion through new member
mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. The division
invites members to become involved in GTACC programs that will allow relationships to be formed
and sustained through a variety of networking events.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Business Resources and includes:

First Friday Luncheon, Networking Breakfast, Young Professionals, Ambassadors,
Business After Hours, Tomball Together, and Women’s Committee

Advocacy Division
The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for GTACC members and the greater
Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about
issues that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce
development, energy, and healthcare.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Advocacy and includes:

Government & Legislative Affairs Committee, Health & Wellness Alliance, Mobility &
Transportation Committee, Business & Education Partnership, Leadership North Houston,
Citizen of Year, Tomball Tidings, and Collaboration with City & Community partners

Prosperity Division
The Prosperity Division oversees the revenue generating activities that support the economic
activities of the GTACC. By supporting these quality events, the GTACC brings people together,
enhances Tomball’s overall quality of life, and provides many fundraising opportunities. All events
listed carry on the excellent reputation that the GTACC has earned statewide — events that attract tens
of thousands of visitors to the Tomball community. This division also concentrates on pursuing
various avenues to increase membership growth.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Prosperity and includes:

Membership Growth, Tomball Holiday Parade, Miss Tomball Pageant, Tomball Night,
Chairman’s Ball, and the Golf Classic

Operations Division

The Operations Division is responsible for the administrative oversight of the Greater Tomball Area
Chamber of Commerce’s financial, facilities, and marketing operations. The division also ensures the
Chamber’s compliance with all applicable internal and external rules, regulations, and guidelines.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Operations and includes:
Marketing, Accreditation, By-laws, Facilities, and Finances

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 3

2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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The GTACC Board of Directors will yearly develop an annual action plan to

focus our efforts each year. We will keep in mind our mission, vision and value
statements along with our long-term goals in development of this plan each year.

2022 Action Plan

Deliver Value to Members

Business Resources

Item 3.

1. Update value-based membership tiers Staff 03/01/22
2. Plan for showcasing members across multiple
communication platforms Board 03/01/22
3. Segment membership by interests for better engagement Board
4. Retain 50% of Spring-Klein Chamber memberships Board 12/31/22
Growth Prosperity
1. Increase membership % Board 12/31/22
2. Support Membership Director with quality leads Board monthly
3. Develop & implement effective on-boarding system to
improve first-year retentionby % Board 04/01/22
4. Increase membership investments at renewal by % Board 12/31/22
Develop Leaders Advocacy
1. Further develop leadership program (LNH) to include
Tomball Community Day Board 06/01/22
2. Improve board recognition, acknowledgement, and visibility
within chamber membership and community. Board 12/31/22
3. Develop current & future leaders through our Program of Work  Board 12/31/22
Operations Operations
1. Define a succession plan for President Board 06/30/22
2. Plan & Budget for an addition to staff Board 06/30/22
3. Integrate Five Star Accreditation Goals into
Board Strategic/Action plan Board 03/30/22
4. Implement a system for shifting past due efforts to effective
pre-renewal protocol Board 03/30/22

Community Support / Qutreach

Staff w/Board Support

1.

2.

Support citizens & downtown businesses during upcoming
2920 Redevelopment and Alley Projects

Support citizens & businesses through proposed Harris
County redistricting

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan

Staff

Staff

12/31/22

12/31/22
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e Support the advancement of our Region’s Economy:
o Transportation-improving the flow of goods, services and families
= 2920
= Business 249
= Major feeders to 249 and 2920
o Remove Legislative roadblocks
o Grow/Foster municipal relationships
o Provide information on growth, trends in all markets, and partnerships
e Support our community goals to enhance Quality of Life:
o Beautification of Tomball
o Develop and Foster downtown environment
o Create/Foster a livable center
= Churches, post office, golf courses, diverse business, EMS, post offices
o Diversity of business centers
o Healthcare
o Education
e Promote Members’ Success:
o Future leaders/Sustainable leadership
= Develop current and future leaders through our Program of Work
o Education/ Equipping programs
= Developing education opportunities for our members through the Chamber
and its Partners
o Promotion / Exposure of businesses/ Lead generation
o Resource Center
= Continue to provide information and resources on growth trends in all
markets and strategic partnerships for members and the community.
o Technology

e Cultivate Cultural Diversity from a position of leadership.
o ldentify community leaders and promote chamber membership
o ldentify chamber or community events to support diversity

e Identify the Top 10 Business Development Opportunities for Chamber Growth
o ldentify development opportunities in Tomball to strengthen our community and
Chamber

e Organization Improvement:
o Technology
= Continuous improvement of technology to implement current trends that
are productive for the Chamber and our members
o Advertising and branding

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 5
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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o Accreditation
= |dentify areas of improvement as suggested by our recent accreditation
review

o Communications
= Maintain timely and quality communications with staff
= Promote member connections and enhance flow of information in usable
formats
o Education/ Partners/ Consultants
= EDC/City/ Chambers/ College/ County

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 6
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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Iltem 4.

TAC Board Meeting
Agenda Item

Data Sheet
Meeting Date: 7/26/2022

Topic:

Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce for Grant from
FY 2021-2022 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the 2021 Holiday Parade.

Background:

Origination: Finance

Recommendation:

Party(ies) responsible for placing this item on agenda: Katherine DuBose, Finance Director

FUNDING (IF APPLICABLE)
Are funds specifically designated in the current budget for the full amount required for this purpose?

Yes: X No: If yes, specify Account Number: 240-240-6351
If no, funds will be transferred from account To account
Signed  Katherine DuBose, CPA Approved by

Finance Director 7/20/2022 City Manager Date
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Item 4.

CITY OF TOMBALL
APPLICATION FOR USE OF HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

Applications may be mailed or hand delivered to:

Finance Director
City of Tomball
501 James Street
Tomball, TX 77375

Applicant Organization: Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

Organization Director: Bruce Hillegeist

Project or Event for which funding is requested: Tomball Holiday Parade
Date of Event: NOvember 18, 2021

Description of project or event for which funding is requested: annual parade with over 150 entries

Location of project or event: ON Main Street from the railroad tracks to Buvinghausen

GRANT AMOUNTS:
Amount Requested for Current Fiscal Year: 2021-2022 $ 15,000
Amount Received for Previous Fiscal Year: 2020-2021 $0 _
% increase requested over last year’s grant: 100 %

parade was not held in Nov. 2020
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Organization Budget Summary for Previous Fiscal Year 2021 budget attached

City Funds

Other Funds

Total

Item 4.

Personnel

Contracted Services

Travel

Rental Expense

Depreciation/Mortgage N/A

Advertising

Insurance

Other Expenses

Volunteer Time N/A

Donated Goods/Services N/A

Total

Grants to an organization will not exceed 35% of the organization’s adopted budget for the fiscal year shown

above.

FUNDS FROM SOURCES OTHER THAN THE CITY OF TOMBALL

Government
Local
County
State
Federal

Other Investors/Contributors
Individual
Corporate
Foundations

Admissions
Applications
Vendors
Tuition

Concessions
Memberships

Subscriptions

Other
Total

Amount of Funds

e
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Item 4.

How many people do you expect will visit Tomball from out-of-town as a result of this project or event?

Explain the basis for your answer to the preceding question: while there are many parade
participants that travel from out of town, there is not a good way to measure where

the crowd members live. The 2021 parade had great weather and therefore

Main Street was crowded the whole way.

Are attendees for this event or users of this project expected to stay overnight in Tomball hotels or

motels? If you answer to this question is Yes, state the basis for your answer: Yes, parade
participants come from far away and have to be in line-up by 8:30am so many of

them spend the night

Organization Contact Name: Brandy Beyer, Vice President
Title: Brandy Beyer, Vice President
Address: Brandy Beyer, Vice President

Phone Number: Brandy Beyer, Vice President

Digitally signed by Brandy Beyer
eyer, o=Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce, ou, email=bbeyer@tomballchamber.org, c=US
1 -05'00"

Contact’s Signature: Brandy Beyer LT
Date: /15/2022
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VALIDATION OF APPLICATION

The signatory declares that he/she is an authorized official of the applicant, is authorized to make this
application, and certifies that the information in this application is true and correct to the best of his/her
knowledge. Signatory further declares that applicant, if previously funded by the City of Tomball, has

successfully fulfilled all prior Grant contract obligations.

Digitally signed by Brandy Beyer

DN: cn=Brandy Beyer, o=Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce, ou, email=bbeyer@tomballchamber.org, c=US

merce, ou,
Date: 2022.07.15 11:43:20 -05'00"

Signature of Authorizing Official

Brandy Beyer

Typed Name

Vice President

Title within Organization

bbeyer@tomballchamber.org

Email address

7/15/2022

Date

281.351.7222

Telephone
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Item 4.

NARRATIVE QUESTIONS

Please look at the criteria in the grant guidelines when you answer the following questions. Be specific and
give examples. Answers to individual questions should be as brief as possible and should in no case exceed

one page.

1. Describe the history and purpose of the organization.

2. Describe how any grant funds will be used.

3. List the programs and activities for the grant year.

4. Show evidence of growth in community support prior to the grant year. Include the number of
performances, exhibitions, audience sizes, services or enrollment. Be sure to include specific
information as to the percent of activities taking place within the City of Tomball.

5. How does your project/event qualify for use of Municipal Hotel Occupancy Tax funds as defined in the
Hotel Occupancy Tax Guidelines?

6. How do you publicize your activities? How do you evaluate these efforts and what have you done to
increase the effectiveness of your marketing efforts?

7. Explain the public benefits to the City of Tomball that will result from your organization’s efforts.

8. What is your organization doing to bring visitors to Tomball, to stay in local hotels and otherwise

support the hospitality industry?
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Item 4.

OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION

The following information in required to process the grant application:

1.

2.

Articles of Incorporation, if applicable
Constitution and/or By-Laws

If your organization’s budget exceeds $100,000 (exclusive of in-kind) attach a copy of the last
independent audit of financial records. If no audit was completed, explain why.

Schedule of Board of Directors meetings for the period of October 1 of the current year through
September 30 of the following year. Board of Directors meetings must occur at least once per
quarter.

Resumes of principal staff and artists or relevant job descriptions.

Depending on the nature of the project or event for which grant funding is requested, the
organization will obtain a Certificate of Insurance for liability coverage as outlined in the attached
Exhibit A. The City of Tomball requires each grantee having an event in the City aimed to attract
both residents and tourists to have liability insurance to protect the public for acts by the grantee.
This mandated coverage does not cover the grantee or any of its members. We encourage the
grantee to acquire insurance to cover itself and its members as it deems fit. Please see your
insurance agent for the local government endorsement. The cost of the local government
endorsement may be included as part of your budget to be considered for a grant.

OPTIONAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

This should be additional material that you wish to attach that further explains the activities of your
organization such as:

1.

[98)

Long Range Plan — 3-5 years

One labeled videotape of performance(s), exhibits, workshops, capital project and /or other
activities for which City of Tomball grant funds will be utilized.

Programs, publicity, articles, reviews, etc.

Letters of support from patrons or other organizations in the community.
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Item 4.

EXHIBIT A

Organization shall procure and maintain for the duration of the grant agreement, insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the services performed
or to be performed hereunder by the Organization its agents, representatives, employees, volunteers, officers,
directors or sub-contractors.

The organization shall maintain insurance with limits not less than $500,000 per occurrence, $1,000,000
aggregate and will be as broad as ISO Form Number GL 0002 (Ed 1/72) covering Comprehensive General
Liability and ISO Form Number GL 0404 covering Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability, or ISO
Commercial General Liability coverage (“occurrence for CG 0001). Coverage will include: A) Premises —
Operations; B) Broad Form Contractual Liability, C) Broad Form Property Damage and D) Personal Injury.

The policy will be endorsed to contain the following provisions: The City, its officials, employees, volunteers,
Boards and Commissions are to be added as “Additional Insured” in respect to liability arising out of any
activities performed by or on behalf of the Organization. The policy shall contain no special limitations to the
scope of coverage afforded to the City. The Organization’s insurance shall be primary and any insurance or
self-insurance shall be in excess of the Organization’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. Certificate
must include a waiver of subrogation as regards to the workers compensation policy. If your organization has
no employees, and therefore doe not carry workers compensation insurance, you must provide to the City of
Tomball a letter stating that you have no employees and therefore do not carry workers compensation
insurance.

Insurance shall be placed with insurers with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A:VI or a Standard & Poor
rating of A or better.

The Organization shall furnish the City with a certificate of insurance which shows the coverage provided.
The insurance policy will be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, non-
renewed, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail,
return receipt requested, has been given to the City.
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2021 Tomball Holiday Parade Expenses

Candy for children 137.74
Breakfast for special guests 1,678.92
Clean-Up 800.00
Port-o-Pottie 1,280.00
Advertising 1,100.00
Security 5,300.00
Debriefing Meeting 245.43
Supplies 827.13
Coins 1,055.00
Personnel 27,943.00
Entertainment 7,000.00

Total Expenses: 47,367.22

[Grant Request 15,000.00]

Iltem 4.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2021 Budget Overview ltem 4.
January through December 2021

TOTAL
Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan - Dec 21
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Income
Rent Income 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 64,620.00
Capital Campaign 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 36,000.00
Health & Wellness 3,000.00 1,000.00 500.00 3,000.00 500.00 8,000.00
Hotel/Motel Tax 35,000.00 35,000.00
First Friday 1,800.00 1,800.00 2,000.00 2,400.00 2,300.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 14,300.00
Networking Breakfast 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 500.00 500.00 5,000.00
Interest Income 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 2,640.00
Membership Dues
New 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 4,000.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 54,000.00
Allowance Non-Renewal -4,384.33 -8,944.33 -1,879.33 -1,490.08 -1,796.08 -2,699.33 -2,218.58 -2,161.33 -2,837.08 -3,110.83 -2,087.58 -1,929.58 -35,538.50
Renewal 43,843.33 89,443.33 18,793.33 14,900.83 17,960.83 26,993.33 22,185.83 21,613.33 28,370.83 31,108.33 20,875.83 19,295.83 355,384.96
Total Membership Dues 44,459.00 85,499.00 21,914.00 18,410.75 21,164.75 28,294.00 23,467.25 22,952.00 30,033.75 32,497.50 23,288.25 21,866.25 373,846.46
Miscellaneous Income 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 3,600.00
Publications/Products
Magazine/Map/Website 500.00 3,500.00 1,500.00 8,500.00 3,000.00 500.00 500.00 18,000.00
Total Publications 3,500.00 1,500.00 8,500.00 3,000.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 17,500.00
Special Events
Banquet 10,000.00 10,000.00
Golf Classic 5,000.00 20,000.00 25,000.00
Tomball Night 6,000.00 11,000.00 4,000.00 21,000.00
Holiday Parade 3,000.00 10,000.00 12,000.00 25,000.00
Miss Tomball Pageant 4,000.00 13,000.00 8,000.00 25,000.00
Total Special Events 0.00 15,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 11,000.00 4,000.00 7,000.00 23,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 106,000.00
Total Income 56,764.00 114,304.00 52,719.00 36,715.75 33,469.75 48,399.00 46,072.25 38,257.00 84,238.75 67,602.50 54,693.25 33,271.25 666,506.46
Total Income 56,764.00 114,304.00 52,719.00 36,715.75 33,469.75 48,399.00 46,072.25 38,257.00 84,238.75 67,602.50 54,693.25 33,271.25 666,506.46
Gross Profit 56,764.00 114,304.00 52,719.00 36,715.75 33,469.75 48,399.00 46,072.25 38,257.00 84,238.75 67,602.50 54,693.25 33,271.25 666,506.46
Expense
Building Expense
Alarm 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 300.00
Cleaning 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 6,720.00
Electricity 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 10,800.00
Building Interest 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 31,800.00
Reimbursed by tenants -1,400.00 -600.00 -600.00 -1,100.00 -600.00 -600.00 -1,200.00 -600.00 -600.00 -1,200.00 -600.00 -600.00 -9,700.00
Repairs/Maintenance 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 12,000.00
Total Building Expense 3,735.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 4,035.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 3,935.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 3,935.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 51,920.00
90
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2021 Budget Overview ltem 4.
January through December 2021

TOTAL
Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan - Dec 21
Accounting Expense 200.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 7,000.00 2,300.00 17,500.00
Advertising 500.00 500.00 1,000.00 500.00 2,500.00
Bad Debt Expense 2,775.00 2,775.00 3,000.00 2,775.00 3,000.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 4,250.00 35,225.00
Health & Wellness 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,500.00 1,500.00 6,000.00
First Friday 2,200.00 2,200.00 1,700.00 2,500.00 2,100.00 2,200.00 2,000.00 14,900.00
Networking Breakfast 200.00 200.00 300.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 2,500.00
Young Professionals 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 1,200.00
Bank Fees 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 8,400.00
Board of Directors 300.00 100.00 200.00 200.00 3,000.00 3,700.00 7,500.00
Dues and Subscriptions 2,472.00 750.00 584.00 3,806.00
Employee Expense
SUTA 80.00 50.00 25.00 10.00 165.00
Development 600.00 550.00 500.00 500.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 1,550.00 300.00 1,500.00 9,000.00
FUTA 73.00 40.00 30.00 25.00 168.00
Group Insurance 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 48,978.00
Payroll Services 390.00 450.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 4,740.00
Payroll Taxes 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 18,000.00
Salaries
TACC 20,000.00 20,500.00 20,500.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,500.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 21,500.00 20,000.00 243,000.00
Bonus 12,150.00 12,150.00
Contract Labor 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 4,500.00
Total Salaries 20,375.00 20,875.00 20,875.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 20,875.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 21,875.00 32,525.00 259,650.00
Total Employee Expense 26,910.00 27,357.00 27,212.00 26,692.00 27,657.00 28,157.00 27,707.00 26,657.00 26,457.00 28,215.00 28,265.00 39,415.00 340,701.00
Insurance
Worker's Compensation 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 549.96
Officer & Director Liability 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 1,843.92
General Liab. 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 7,453.92
Total Insurance 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 9,847.80
Membership/Misc. Expense 1,000.00 3,000.00 1,500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 1,000.00 1,600.00 1,700.00 1,500.00 500.00 1,500.00 14,800.00
Office Equipment Expense
Database 3,500.00 3,500.00
Computer Maintenance 300.00 1,200.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 4,500.00
Copier Lease 1,000.00 800.00 1,500.00 600.00 500.00 800.00 1,200.00 1,000.00 700.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 700.00 10,800.00
Pitney Bowes 492.30 581.60 492.30 492.30 2,058.50
Total Office Equip Expense 1,792.30 5,500.00 1,800.00 1,481.60 800.00 1,100.00 1,992.30 1,300.00 1,000.00 1,792.30 1,300.00 1,000.00 20,858.50
Office Supplies 300.00 600.00 300.00 500.00 400.00 1,000.00 600.00 300.00 400.00 500.00 800.00 600.00 6,300.00
Postage & Delivery 500.00 300.00 800.00 1,500.00 0.00 700.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 1,500.00 0.00 500.00 6,300.00
Property Tax Expense 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 15,442.44
Income Tax Expense 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 2,160.00
Rent 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 o 0
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Special Events

Banquet

Golf Classic

Tomball Night

Holiday Parade

Miss Tomball Pageant
Scholarship Expense
Pageant - Other

Total Miss Tomball

Total Special Events

Telephone Expenses

Travel & Entertainment
Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Principal Building Payment
xDepreciation Expense

Net Income

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2021 Budget Overview ltem 4.
January through December 2021

TOTAL
Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan - Dec 21
10,000.00 10,000.00
250.00 1,000.00 6,750.00 8,000.00
2,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 10,000.00
15,500.00 1,000.00 16,500.00
4,000.00 4,000.00
500.00 5,500.00 2,500.00 8,500.00
500.00 9,500.00 2,500.00 12,500.00
250.00 10,000.00 1,000.00 6,750.00 2,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 500.00 25,000.00 3,500.00 57,000.00
565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 6,780.00
60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 720.00
44,126.82 58,459.52 47,339.52 50,326.12 44,984.52 47,259.52 50,001.82 57,709.52 46,959.52 52,109.82 73,351.52 61,892.52 634,520.74
12,637.18 55,844.48 5,379.48 -13,610.37 -11,514.77 1,139.48 -3,929.57 -19,452.52 37,279.23 15,492.68 -18,658.27 -28,621.27 31,985.72
3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 36,000.00
1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 20,460.00
7,932.18 51,139.48 674.48 -18,315.37 -16,219.77 -3,565.52 -8,634.57 -24,157.52 32,574.23 10,787.68 -23,363.27 -33,326.27 -24,474.28
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Iltem 4.

Narrative Questions:
1. Describe the history and purpose of the organization.

Answer: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (GTACC) provides resources
and empowers Tomball businesses to prosper. The value of being a GTACC member is
evidenced with research by the Shapiro Group, which shows a 63 percent increase in repeat
business due to chamber membership. Moreover, the GTACC directly impacts the Tomball area
by fostering partnerships and being visible in the community with annual events like the Tomball
Holiday Parade.

Incorporated in 1965, the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce has a history that began
in the 1920s. The Chamber has a reputation for actively representing and promoting the interest
of its members. As well, the Chamber is recognized throughout the region and the state for its
passionate promotion of the greater Tomball community.

The GTACC sponsors and organizes the Tomball Holiday Parade, the event which this
application represents.

2. Describe how any grant funds will be used.

Answer: Grant funds would be used to reimburse the GTACC for Tomball Holiday Parade
related expenses. The GTACC promoted sponsoring and participating Tomball businesses and
organizations through newspaper ads, articles and magazine features. In addition, funds were
used to promote the event itself.

3. List the programs and activities for the grant year.

Answer: The Tomball Holiday Parade announced the beginning of the holiday season,
before Thanksgiving, with an emphasis on local retailers. Last summer, the GTACC began
preparations for this event by contacting businesses, retailers and former participants with
sponsorship information including parade applications. As the fall approached, GTACC staff
worked steadily on the parade project.

4. Show evidence of growth in community support prior to the grant year. Include the number of
performances, exhibitions, audience sizes, services or enrollment. Be sure to include specific
information as to the percent of activities taking place within the City of Tomball.

Answer: The Tomball Holiday Parade with its floats, marching bands, Miss Tomball contestants,
equestrian entries and more brings more than 40,000 people to downtown Tomball each fall.
This figure was previously estimated by the Tomball Police Department and reflects a growth of
25 percent since 2003. There is one performance of this unique event which showcases local
businesses, retailers, and organizations. The Tomball Holiday Parade featured entries from all
over Texas, demonstrating the event’s appeal for both residents and area visitors. Restaurants in
the city experience a flux of patrons—reflected in local sales tax revenues—following the parade,
which ends during the noon hour.
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Iltem 4.

5. How does your project/event qualify for use of Municipal Hotel Occupancy Tax funds as
defined in the Hotel Occupancy Tax Guidelines?

Answer: The Tomball Holiday Parade qualifies for use of the Hotel Occupancy Tax, Chapter
351.002 with three of the five criteria listed by the City of Tomball for this funding request/report;
in particular Listings 3,4 and 6. The Tomball Holiday Parade advertises, solicits and promotes
this event in the city of Tomball to attract tourists and potential convention delegates or
registrants to the city. As well, the Tomball Holiday Parade encouraged and promoted the arts
including instrumental and vocal music, dance, drama, folk art, and many other forms of art and
music by featuring organizations and individuals in the parade who performed. Tomball Holiday
Parade featured 20 performance groups including the Green Starlettes Drill Team and 250
members of the Tomball Memorial High School Band. Three additional groups in the parade
offered singing or music only. Finally, the Tomball Holiday Parade qualifies under Listing 6 with
day-to-day operations at the GTACC including supplies, salaries, office rental, travel expenses
and other administrative costs directly incurred in the promotion and organization of the parade.

6. How do you publicize your activities? How do you evaluate these efforts and what have you
done to increase the effectiveness of your marketing efforts?

Answer: Last year the Tomball Holiday Parade was advertised in several hard copy and online
publications including Facebook, Instagram, LinkedIn, The Houston Chronicle, The Bayou City
Media, The Tomball Potpourri and The Magnolia Potpourri. It was even spoken about on the
radio, which in turn, was advertised on two large Houston radio station’s social media platforms.

The GTACC evaluated the Tomball Holiday Parade publicity efforts by tracking when and where
an article/photo or other event promotion was published. Last year, marketing of the Tomball
Holiday Parade was increased when the Houston Business Journal published its Book of Lists
which included the parade, due to its previous success in attracting large crowds. Moreover,
GTACC staff telephoned media outlets to ensure publication or mention of the event in major
regional markets.

7. Explain the public benefits to the City of Tomball that will result from your organization’s
efforts.

Answer: The public benefits to the City of Tomball resulting from the Tomball Holiday Parade
were many. First as previously stated, the parade announced the beginning of the holiday
season and ushered in the idea of shopping at home, first and foremost. Second, the parade
was the 56th edition of a Tomball tradition. While traditions should not stand on history alone—
they must constantly update to stay current, productive and viable—the Tomball Holiday Parade
did indeed contribute to the City of Tomball’s efforts to promote Tomball and focus on hometown
pride, business, retail and offerings. At a time when so many businesses, retail operations and
small cities are struggling for a place in the economy, the Tomball Holiday Parade helped brand
the City of Tomball with excitement and holiday activities for everyone. Third, the Tomball
Holiday Parade highlighted local artistic and musical talents while at the same time it brought in
more outside entries than needed to fill the 150 available parade openings—this demonstrates
the event’s appeal and popularity outside the greater Tomball area. The parade is limited to 150
entries so that a two-hour parade may be presented, beginning at 10 a.m. and ending at noon.
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8. What is your organization doing to bring visitors to Tomball, to stay in local hotels and
otherwise support the hospitality industry?

Answer: While the Tomball Holiday Parade was mostly frequented by day-visitors, there were
10 parade entry groups, or 6 percent, that inquired about local lodging. The GTACC, organizer
and sponsor of the parade, gave contact information for local hotels and restaurants to those
who inquired. Additionally, this same information was made available for all out-of-town parade
entrants. Also as previously stated in this report, Tomball restaurants are filled with parade-goers
after the event, which ends during the noon hour. For many businesses and families, it has been
a tradition for years to go out to eat and shopping after the Tomball Holiday Parade.
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'OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

* CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
| OF =+ .

CITY OF TOMBALIL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
CHARTER NO. 215046

- The underéigned, as Seéretar’j ‘of' ‘State of the State of Texas, hereby certifies that
aupﬁcate originals of Articles of Iﬂcorporation for the above corporation duly
. signed and verified pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation

A(;t, have been received in this office Tand are found to conform to law.

 ACCORDINGLY the undersigriéd, as such Secreféry of State, and by virtue of | ;

'the authority vested in him by law, hereby issues this Certificate of Incorporation '

s

and attaches hereto a duphcate orlgmal of the Articles of Incorporatlon ~

Dated ___-__-__C[u_l_y_l.s-_-____, 18.65.. é@ ﬂ{gﬂ{ é( oy
. ‘a.ﬂv"u

‘/ Secretary of State




ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF
CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

We, the undersigned natural persons of the age of twenty-one

(21) years of more, at least two of whom are citizens of the State
of Texas, acting as incorporators of a corporation under the Texas

Non-Profit Corporation Aet, do hereby adopt the following Articles

of Incorporation for such corporation:

ARTICLE ONE

The name of the Corporation is CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF

COMMERCE .

ARTICLE TWO

The Corporation is a non-profit corporation.

ARTICLE THREE

The period of its duration is perpetual.

ARTICLE FOUR
The purpose for which the Corporation is organized is Civiec,

providing and promoting the development of the City of Tomball, Texas.

ARTICLE FIVE

The Street Address of the initial registered office of the
corpofation is 314 Commerce Street, in Tomball, Texas, and the name

of its initial registered agent is Jesse C. Powell, whose address is

314 Commerce Street, in Tomball, Texas.

ARTICLE SIX

The number of directors, or trustees, constituting the initial

Board of Directors, or Trustees, of the Corporation is Three (3),

and the names and addreéses of the persons who are to serve as the
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initial directors, or trustees, are:

NAMES , ADDRESSES
Pete Still ‘ 719 Barbara, Tomball, Texas
Jesse C. Powell 732 James, Tomball, Texas
BillierdicLovett 408 W, Commerce, Tomball, Texas

ARTICLE SEVEN

The name and street address of each incorporator is:

Pete Still 719 Barbara, Tomball, Texas
Jesse C, Powell _ 732 James, Tomball, Texas
Bil¥ielJ,eLbvett 408 W. Commerce, Tomball, Texas

—

IN WITNESS WHEREOF we have hereto set our hands this /& Z° day

o/

of  lepize , A. D. 1965.
7 -
rrd "_;"‘ P 4 r
—7—
I~ . o = STTILL
) / .
1. sad? el A
; -nm
II
éiéf} '!'-ul
THE STATE OF TEXAS I
: |
COUNTY OF HARRIS Q
I, 7Z&«46J sc s Z/CZL, , a Notary Public, do hereby
certify that on this the /§Z° day of 4_/7/¢44u/ , 1965, personally

ILLIE
appeared before me, PETE STILL, JESSE C. POWELL and E? J. LOVETT, who

each being by me first duly sworn, severally declared that they are the
persons who signed the foregoing document as incorporatérs, and that
the statements therein contained are true.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and seal the day

and year above written,

Heoce 7.5,

Notary Public in and for Harris
County, T E X A S

FOYE A. BURKLIN
Notary Public in and far MHarris County, Tares
My Commission Expires June 1, 1967
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- STATE OF TEXAS
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

AUSTIN, TEXAS 7871 l
Crawford C. Martin
SECRETARY OF STATE : . July 2, 196 5

MR. HOWARD H, KLEIN
KleinOffice Building
311 Commerce Street
Tomball, Texas 77375

In replyvincludeﬁ
Charter No. 215046
Account No. 164647

RE: CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
TO THE ATTENTION OF THE CAPTIONED CORPORATION:

It has been our pleasure to approve and place on record the Articles of
Incorporation that created your corporation. We extend our best wishes
for success in your new venture. '

Unless shown as "EXEMPT" under Account No. above, you will be required

to file an annual franchise tax return with the Comptroller of Public
Accounts, Capitol Station, Austin, Texas, 78711, and pay the tax due
thereunder. Your first return and payment will be due within 90 days
after the end of the first corporate year. If the corporation should be
exempt under Article 12.03, Title 122A, Taxation-General, R.C.S. of
Texas, and is not shown "EXEMPT" above, you must apply to the Comptroller
for such exemption.” The SECRETARY OF STATE cannot make such a deter-—
mination for your corporation.

We suggest that you keep this letter as a reminder, or, so mark your
records that you will not unwittingly become liable for statutory
penalties for late filing and late payment. :

: Yours'very truly,

CRAWFORD C. MARTIN
Se ary of State

ROBERT L. TOWERY, Dir
Corporation Division
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4 PLEASE DIRECT
TR July 13, 1965 YOUR COMMUNICATIONS TO
. pivision _S0 FILE
TELEPHONE GR 5"1*771

. =~ Jffices of

*d H. Klein
“*ain Office Building
- T smmerce Street
T owl.li, Texas

Subject: City of Tomball Chamber of Commerce
Account No. 1,164,647
Charter No. 215046

e i Loy

--—L -\4&

Lo

<icz, cogether with the outline of the activities for the purpose of determining
itz status from & franchise tax standpoint.

A3 your requ:=st, we examined the Articles of Incorporation of this corpora-

-

IT is the opinion of this office that so long as the corporation confines
ctlvities exclusively to the purpose or purposes recited in the Articles
Incorporation, it is exempt from the franchise tax.
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Article | — Name
The name of this organization shall be the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.
Article Il — Purpose

Section 1. Vision: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce will continue
to be the business resource center for the northwest metropolitan area.

Section 2.  Mission: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce provides
resources and fosters relationships that empower businesses to prosper in
Tomball and its surrounding communities.

Article 1l — Area

The principal office of the organization shall always be located within the Tomball area.
The organization may have such offices as may from time to time be designated by the
Board of Directors.

Article IV — Limitation of Methods

This organization is incorporated under the laws of the state of Texas and shall transact
all business as the “Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.”

Article V — Membership

Section 1. Any person, association, corporation, partnership, or estate eligible for
membership may acquire more than one membership by paying the annual
dues of each such separate membership.

Section 2. New membership investments shall submit a membership application and
the appropriate fees to the Chamber. The membership application/inquiry
shall be brought before the Directors at the next scheduled Board of
Directors meeting for approval. No applicant shall be considered an
official member until approval of a majority of the votes of the Board of
Directors and application funds have been obtained.

Section 3. Any person, association, corporation, partnership, or estate holding a
membership shall be entitled to cast one vote per separate membership.

Section 4. Membership is subject to the following minimum investments.

A. The dues of each member per annum shall be an amount as
prescribed by the Board of Directors.

B. Honorary membership shall be given to individuals who have
rendered or may render the organization meritorious service and
shall have been nominated for such membership by the President

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
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Section 5.

Section 6.

or any Director and have received a majority vote from the
Directors present at the meeting when their name was proposed.
They shall not be subject to payment of dues and shall not have the
right to vote. This membership can be revoked at anytime by the
Board of Directors with advance notice to the member. The
member has the right to request a hearing before the Board of
Directors before the revocation.

Recurring membership investments shall become past due and considered
delinquent 90 days after date of billing. At the expiration of this period, if
said membership investment remains unpaid, the member shall be
removed from the rolls of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce. Members who shall be deemed delinquent or suspended shall
not be entitled to vote.

Termination of Membership

A Any member may resign from the Chamber upon notice to the
Chamber.

B. Membership shall end 90 days following the dues-paying period
unless extended by a vote of two-thirds majority of the Board of
Directors.

C. Any member may be expelled by a two-thirds vote of the Board of
Directors, at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof, for conduct
unbecoming a member or prejudicial to the aims or repute of the
Chamber, after notice and opportunity for a hearing are afforded
the member complained against.

Article VI — Meetings

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

The annual membership meeting of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce shall be held each year, the date, place, and hour to be
designated by the Board of Directors or under their authority.

Meetings of the members may be held at such times as the President or the
Board of Directors may determine, or upon written request of twenty-five
(25) percent of the members in good standing, provided that when called
otherwise than by the President or Board of Directors, the notice shall
contain a statement of the purpose of the meeting, and shall be issued at
least ten (10) days and not more than sixty (60) days preceding the
meeting. Meeting notices shall be emailed, faxed or mailed.

The Board of Directors shall meet regularly, the time and frequency to be
decided upon by majority vote of the board. Any meeting by the board
can include any director communicating by telephone as present and
participating.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 3 of 9

Iltem 4.

103




Section 4.

Section 5.

By decision of the executive committee, a vote of the board upon limited
and specific issues may be conducted electronically. Or at a called
meeting, telephone participation may be allowed with board approval.

A majority of the Board of Directors at any meeting shall constitute a
quorum at that meeting. Upon notification to all voting members of a
membership meeting, those present shall constitute a quorum.

Article VIl — Referenda

Upon the written request of twenty-five (25) percent of the members in good standing,
the Board of Directors shall submit a question to members for a mail or electronic
referendum vote.

Article VII1 — Government & Leadership

Section 1.

Section 2.

A. The government of the organization, the direction of its work and
the control of its property shall be vested in a Board of Directors
consisting of fifteen members, one-third of whom shall be elected
annually for a term of three (3) years.

B. In the event that the Board of Directors determines that it is in the
best interest of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce,
additional board members may be appointed by the Board of Directors.
The term of such appointed directors shall expire at the next scheduled
annual meeting.

C. The Board of Directors shall at any time select Ex Officio
members. Ex Officio members of the Board may attend Board meetings
and take part in all discussion and can vote.

A nominating committee of three (3) members shall be selected from the
membership of the Chamber by the Board of Directors at a meeting held
not later than September 15. The nominating committee shall meet and
select five (5) members as nominees for Directors of the Chamber for
terms of three (3) years. The names of the persons nominated by the
nominating committee and approved by the board shall be published to the
members in alphabetical order. Additional nominees may be placed on the
ballot if supported by signatures of eight (8) chamber members in good
standing (dues current) and submitted within ten (10) days from the date
of publication of the nominating committee’s report. If no additional
nominations are thus made, the election of the five (5) members selected
shall have been approved by the membership. If, however, there are
additional nominations by written petition, the names of all persons
nominated shall be placed on an official ballot in alphabetical order and
brought before the membership or by mail ballot for voting. In case of a
tie vote, the Board of Directors shall make the selection.
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Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

New directors shall be chosen prior to the Directors annual planning
session. New directors shall be installed at the beginning of each new
year.

The Board of Directors shall meet with the time and date to be fixed by
the Board. Absence from 40% of regular meetings per year shall be
construed as a resignation.

Any member of the Board of Directors may be expelled based on the good
faith determination by the Board or a committee authorized by the Board
to make such a determination, that the Board member has engaged in
conduct contrary or damaging to the Chamber or aims of the Chamber.
Action can be taken upon a majority vote of the Board of Directors. A
Director has the right to request a hearing before a panel of seven (7) non-
director members of the Chamber, three (3) shall be selected by the Board,
three (3) shall be selected by the member facing expulsion, and those six
(6) shall then select a single additional member. All members of the panel
must be members in good standing with the Chamber at the time of
selection. The panel shall vote on rulings before the panel by secret ballot,
and the panel’s majority ruling shall be binding.

Article IX — Officers

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Prior to the annual Board of Directors planning session, the Board shall
choose the Executive Board Members and delegate each as a Vice-Chair
to the Program of Work committees for the chamber year. The Board
shall also choose a Treasurer. Executive Board members shall be chosen
from the Directors that sit on the Board. All of the Board must be
members in good standing. Subsequently the Board shall employ a
President who is in charge of administration of the day-to-day operations
of the Chamber. The President is responsible to the Board of Directors,
and the Directors shall determine his/her compensation.

The Board of Directors may, by appointment or otherwise, provide for
such bureaus and the selection of such committees as may be deemed
advisable in promoting the object and purpose of this Chamber of
Commerce.

The individual chosen as Treasurer shall be a voting member of the Board
of Directors.

Duties & Responsibilities

A. The Chair of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of
Directors and shall be a member of all Chamber committees. It shall be
the primary responsibility of the Chair of the Board to see that the goals
and objectives of the Chamber as adopted by the Board of Directors are
carried out. The Chair of the Board may delegate these responsibilities to
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the various officers and directors. Subject to the approval of the Board of
Directors, the Chair of the Board shall execute all deeds, contracts, leases
and other similar documents affecting the operation of the Chamber. In
addition, the Chair of the Board shall have such other duties and exercise
such other powers as may be directed or delegated by the Board of
Directors.

B. The Chair-Elect of the Board shall be a member of all chamber
committees and shall closely observe the entire operation of the chamber
and serve as special assistant to the Chair. If the Chair is absent from a
Board meeting, the Chair-Elect of the Board shall preside at such Board
meeting. A nominating committee consisting of the immediate past Chair,
the Chair, and the Chair-Elect will nominate the incoming Chair-elect for
the next Chamber year subject to Board approval.

C. The Treasurer shall serve as Chair of the Budget Committee
appointed by the Chair of the Board. The Treasurer shall be responsible
for the safeguarding of all funds received by the Chamber and for their
proper disbursement. The Treasurer shall cause a frequent financial report
to be prepared for the Board of Directors.

D. The Vice Chairs should attend meetings of all committees within
their responsibilities and make periodic reports to the Executive Board and
the Board of Directors on the status of the goals and objectives for the
year.

E. The President shall be the chief administrative and executive
officer, shall serve as secretary to the Board of Directors, and shall cause
to be prepared special notices, agendas and minutes of meetings of the
Board. The President shall serve as advisor to the Chair of the Board and
to the Long-Range Planning Committee on program planning, and shall
assemble information and data and cause to be prepared special reports as
directed by the Chair of the Board, the Executive Committee or the Board
of Directors. With assistance of the Vice-Chairs, the President shall be
responsible for administration of the goals and objectives in accordance
with the policies and regulations of the Board of Directors. The President
shall be responsible for hiring, discharging, directing and supervising all
chamber employees.

Article X — Committees

Section 1.

The Board of Directors shall establish such committees as are necessary to
carry out the goals and objectives of the Chamber. The Chair of the Board
with advice from the President, shall appoint all committee chairs subject
to board approval. The Chair of the Board may appoint such ad hoc
committees and their chairs as deemed necessary. Such ad hoc committee
appointments and the terms of such committees shall be at the will and
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pleasure of the Chair of the Board, unless a different term is approved by
the Board of Directors. It shall be the function of committees to make
investigations, conduct studies and hearings, make recommendations to
the Board of Directors, and to carry on such activities as may be delegated
to them.

Section 2. No action by any member, committee, division, employee, director or
officer shall be binding upon, or constitute an expression of, the policy of
the Chamber until it has been approved or ratified by the Board of
Directors.

Article XI- Finances
Section 1. The fiscal year shall be the calendar year, January 1 through December 31.

Section 2. All money paid to the Chamber shall be kept on deposit in financial
institutions or invested in a manner approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. At the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, they may require the
Treasurer and President of this organization to furnish surety company
bonds in such amount as the Board of Directors shall deem necessary, the
costs to be paid by the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.

Section 4. With advice and counsel of the President and the Staff, the Budget
Committee shall prepare an annual budget to be submitted to the
Executive Board and the Board of Directors for approval at the December
Board Meeting.

Article XI1 — Dissolution

The Chamber shall use its funds only to accomplish the objects and purposes specified in
these bylaws, and no part of said funds shall inure, or be distributed to the members of
the Chamber. On dissolution of the Chamber, any funds remaining shall be distributed to
one or more regularly organized and qualified charitable, educational, scientific, or
philanthropic organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors.

Article X111 — Indemnification

The Chamber may, by resolution of the Board of Directors, provide for indemnification
by the Chamber of any and all of its Directors or Officers, volunteers, employees, or
former Directors or Officers against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them
in connection with the defense of any action, suite, or proceeding, in which they or any of
them are made parties, or a party, by reason of having been Directors or Officers,
volunteers, or employees of the Chamber, except in relation to matters as to which such
Director or Officer, volunteer, employees, or former Director or Officer shall be adjudged
in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the
performance of duty and to such matters as shall be settled by agreement predicated on
the existence of such liability for negligence or misconduct.
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Article X1V — Parliamentary Authority

The current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall be the final source of authority in all
questions of parliamentary procedure when such rules are not inconsistent with the
bylaws of the Chamber.

Article XV — Amendments

Section 1.  These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the members in good
standing in attendance at any special meeting called for that purpose
provided that said amendments shall be plainly stated in the call for the
meeting at which they are to be considered.

Section 2. Notice of meetings at which such amendments are to be considered must
be given at least ten (10) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to
the time of the meeting.
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Item 4.

Date
Approved Chair, Board of Directors

President

Jan, 2016 Ryan Aduddell

Bruce Hillegeist

Jan, 2017 DeniseDavis

BruceHillegeis:

Jan, 2018 Gail Randolpl

BruceHillegeis!

Jan, 2019 Jim Ros:

BruceHillegeisi

Jan, 2020 CraigBogne

BruceHillegeis!

Jan, 2021 JerrelWade

BruceHillegeisi

Jan, 2022
DawnaDysor

BruceHillegeis

Jan, 2023 ShaneBoatmal

BruceHillegeist

Jan, 2024

Jan, 2025

Jan, 2026

Jan, 2027

Jan, 2028

Jan, 2029

Jan, 2030

Jan, 2031

Jan, 2032

Jan, 2033

Jan, 2034
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Item 4.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce

Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2021 (Reviewed)
(with comparative totals for December 31, 2020 (Audited))
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Item 4.

13831 Northwest Frwy
hd Ste. 350B

ipton & Company

Certified Public Accountants e nonprofitaccta.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Tomball, Texas

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and
making inquiries of entity management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which
is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountants’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those
standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant's Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s 2020 financial statements dated May
42, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

Tipton & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

April 14, 2022
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Financial Position

Iltem 4.

Reviewed Audited
As of December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 459,950 $ 349,800
Accounts receivable, net 40,848 53,474
Prepaid expenses 9,835 9,422
Property and equipment, net 884,005 914,047
Total Assets $ 1,394,638 $ 1,326,743
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 1,752 $ 3,232
Deferred revenues 164,664 157,891
Long term debt 573,315 610,370
Deposits 8,300 8,300
Total Liabilities 748,031 779,793
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 646,607 546,950
Total Net Assets 646,607 546,950
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,394,638 $ 1,326,743

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of CommerCJ,:Item -

Statement of Activities

Reviewed Audited
Year ended December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020
Revenue and Support
Membership dues $ 395,831 $ 510,128
Special events revenue 139,640 45,405
Direct benefits to donors (10,151) (10,640)
Capital improvement campaign 36,000 33,000
First Friday luncheon 15,452 11,342
Networking Breakfast 4,035 1,665
City of Tomball hotel tax revenue 35,000 35,000
Rental income 64,624 64,624
Tenent reimbursements 10,635 11,990
Ads and ad commission 20,767 16,895
Interest income 2,217 3,377
Other income 66,636 11,592
Total Revenue and Support 780,686 734,378
Expenses
Program Services
Business resources 235,360 252,245
Advocacy 241,414 248,661
Total Program Services 476,774 500,906
Supporting Services
General and administrative 101,906 117,336
Fundraising 102,349 110,957
Total Supporting Services 204,255 228,293
Total Expenses 681,029 729,199
Change in Net Assets 99,657 5,179
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 546,950 541,771
Net Assets, End of Year $ 646,607 $ 546,950

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report 3 114




Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Functional Expenses

Iltem 4.

Program Services Supporting Services Reviewed Audited
Year ended December 31, Business Total Program General and Total Supporting 2021 2020
(with comparative totals for 2020) Resources Advocacy Services Administrative Fundraising Services Total Total
Payroll and related expenses
Salaries $ 98,426 $ 98,426 $ 196,852 $ 24,607 $ 24,607 $ 49214 $ 246,066 $ 254,302
Payroll taxes 7174 7,174 14,348 1,794 1,794 3,588 17,936 19,640
Employee benefits 15,710 15,710 31,420 3,927 3,927 7,854 39,274 39,992
Total payroll and related expenses 121,310 121,310 242,620 30,328 30,328 60,656 303,276 313,934
Other expenses
Advertising 283 283 566 283 1,980 2,263 2,829 288
Bad debt 21,520 21,520 43,040 21,520 21,520 43,040 86,080 210,368
Bank fees 789 789 1,578 3,156 3,156 6,312 7,890 4,838
Board expenses - - - 6,935 - 6,935 6,935 6,475
Building expenses 130 130 260 32 33 65 325 300
Computer maintenance 1,686 1,686 3,372 422 422 844 4,216 4,730
Contract labor 501 501 1,002 125 125 250 1,252 1,060
Depreciation 12,017 12,017 24,034 3,004 3,004 6,008 30,042 29,984
Dues and subscriptions 985 985 1,970 246 246 492 2,462 4,706
Employee development 3,853 3,853 7,706 963 963 1,926 9,632 4,170
Equipment lease 3,988 3,988 7,976 997 997 1,994 9,970 10,110
First Friday 15,142 - 15,142 - - - 15,142 9,095
Health committee 4,859 - 4,859 - - - 4,859 1,975
Insurance 3,846 3,846 7,692 962 962 1,924 9,616 9,594
Interest 12,034 12,034 24,068 3,009 3,009 6,018 30,086 32,010
Miscellaneous 4,037 5,383 9,420 4,035 - 4,035 13,455 8,095
Networking breakfast 280 - 280 - - - 280 450
Office supplies 1,954 1,954 3,908 488 488 976 4,884 4,192
Payroll service 2,209 2,209 4,418 552 552 1,104 5,522 5,122
Postage and delivery 812 406 1,218 406 1,083 1,489 2,707 1,793
Professional fees - - - 13,565 - 13,565 13,565 6,601
Rent 480 480 960 120 120 240 1,200 2,160
Repairs and maintenance 7,606 7,606 15,212 1,901 1,901 3,802 19,014 10,608
Software 1,940 1,940 3,880 485 485 970 4,850 3,508
Special events - 26,106 26,106 - 38,029 38,029 64,135 23,035
Taxes - income - - 4,515 - 4,515 4,515 436
Taxes - property 5,568 5,568 11,136 1,392 1,392 2,784 13,920 13,920
Telephone 2,616 2,616 5,232 654 654 1,308 6,540 6,536
Travel and entertainment - - - 760 - 760 760 480
Utilities 4,204 4,204 8,408 1,051 1,051 2,102 10,510 8,980
Young professionals 711 - 711 - - - 711 286
Total other expenses 114,050 120,104 234,154 71,578 82,172 153,750 387,904 425,905
Subtotal 235,360 241,414 476,774 101,906 112,500 214,406 691,180 739,839
Less: Direct benefit to donor - - - - (10,151) (10,151) (10,151) (10,640)
Total Expenses $ 235,360 $ 241414 $ 476,774 $ 101,906 $ 102,349 $ 204,255 $ 681,029 $ 729,199

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Cash Flows

Reviewed Audited
Year Ended December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 99,657 $ 5,179
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net change in operating activities:

Depreciation 30,042 29,984
Bad debt expense 86,080 210,368
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (73,454) (208,668)
Prepaid expenses (413) (229)
Accrued expenses (1,480) (2,000)
Deferred revenues 6,773 2,201
Total Adjustments 47,548 31,656
Net Change in Operating Activities 147,205 36,835

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment - (1,164)

Net Change in Investing Activities - (1,164)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Payments on long-term debt (37,055) (35,133)
Net Change in Financing Activities (37,055) (35,133)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 110,150 538
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 349,800 349,262
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 459,950 $ 349,800
Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid $ 30,086 $ 32,010
See accompanying notes and accountants' review report 5
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (the “Chamber) is a not-for-profit organization of citizens who
are investing their time and money in a community development program working together to improve the economic,
civic, and cultural fortitude of the region, community, or area. The Chamber’s mission is to provide resources and
foster relationships that empower businesses to prosper in Tomball and its surrounding communities.

The Chamber is supported through membership dues, contributions, rental income and other miscellaneous
revenue. The Chamber conducts the following programs:

e Business resources — The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value
added, quality networking events to the Chamber’s diverse membership, by ensuring inclusion through new
member mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. This
division invites members to become involved in the Chamber’s programs that will allow relationships to be
formed and sustained through a variety of networking events.

e Advocacy — The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for the Chamber’'s members and
the greater Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about issues
that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce development,
energy and healthcare.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Chamber have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Chamber reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets
that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors: net assets without
donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

e Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations and not subject to donor
restrictions. The only limits on the use of net assets without donor restrictions are the broad limits resulting
from the nature of the Chamber, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its corporate
documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements
with creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations. Assets restricted solely through
the actions of the Board of Directors are reported as net assets without donor restrictions, board-
designated.

¢ Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or use
for a purpose specified by the donor. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires,
that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-restricted endowment earnings are
released when those earnings are appropriated with spending policies and are used for the specified
purpose.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commero<

Item 4.

Notes to Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Chamber considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. The carrying values of any cash and cash equivalents
are deemed to approximate their fair values because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge
to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the allowance for
bad debts was $7,021 and $7,021, respectively.

Property and Equipment

The Chamber capitalizes all expenditures for property, plant and equipment in excess of $500. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Major improvements and renewals that extend the life of the asset
are capitalized. Purchased property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-
line method based on their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 39 years
Computers and software 3-5 years
Office equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years

Donated Assets

Donated investments and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their fair values at the date of
donation.

Donated Property and Equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at fair value at the date of donation. Such
donations are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions
of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Chamber reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. The Chamber reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Deferred Revenue

Income from membership dues and subscription fees received in advance is deferred and recognized over the
periods to which the dues and fees relate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates. The significant estimates included in the financial statements are the
estimates of useful lives used for depreciating property and equipment items.

118




Iltem 4.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commero<

Notes to Financial Statements

Membership Dues

Membership dues are recognized in the applicable membership period. Any unearned amounts are included in
deferred revenue at the end of each accounting period.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b)
require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Chamber. Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Chamber with program
services and fundraising events. No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for these donated
services as the recognition criteria were not met.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses are categorized in the Statement of Activities as program services, management and general and
fundraising. The Chamber’s expenses are allocated on a functional basis among these benefited categories:

e Program service expenses: include direct and indirect (allocated) expenses for the various programs
offered by the Chamber to fulfill member investment expectations. Expenses that can be identified with a
specific program and support services are allocated directly according to their natural expenditure
classification. Other expenses, that are common to several functions, are allocated to program services
based on time and effort.

e Management and general expenses: include those expenses, ranging from office management to financial
services, that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support
and direction of the Chamber. Those expenses include the basic necessities to be an accredited, well
rounded, and effective organization.

e Fundraising expenses: represent costs incurred in connection with fundraising efforts to continue the
Chamber’s mission. The membership dues alone are not adequate enough to accomplish the Chamber’s
goals; therefore, fundraising events are held to fill the gap between membership dues and total expenses.

Advertising Cost

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
amounted to $2,829 and $288, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Chamber is operating as a not-for-profit corporation, under Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and is not subject to income taxes with the exception of unrelated business income. The Chamber conducted
unrelated business activities during the current year. Therefore, the Chamber paid $4,515 and $436 for federal
income taxes in the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Chamber applies the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, which prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken
or expected to be taken in a tax return. Topic 740 also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures and transition. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, no
uncertain tax positions were identified.

NOTE 2 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Chamber maintains its cash balances in a local bank. These balances are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Management periodically assesses the financial condition of the
financial institutions and believes that any possible credit risk is minimal. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the

119




Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commero<

Item 4.

Notes to Financial Statements

Chamber had approximately $210,000 and $100,000, respectively, of cash balances that were not insured by the
FDIC. The Chamber has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes the risk of future loss is
mitigated by monitoring the balances and the financial institutions where the cash is deposited.

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

Reviewed Audited
2021 2020
Building and improvements $1,112,383 $1,112,383
Computers and software 17,517 17,517
Office equipment 13,102 13,102
Furniture and fixtures 17,990 17,990
Land 145,000 145,000
Total property and equipment, gross 1,305,992 1,305,992
Less: Accumulated depreciation (421,987) (391,945)
Total property and equipment, net $884,005 $914,047

Depreciation expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $30,042 and
$29,984, respectively.

NOTE 4 — RENTAL INCOME

The Chamber leases office space to three other organizations under four to five year leases as follows:

Current monthly Lease Renewal

rent Lease initiation expiration Lease renewal expiration
TEDC $1,506 9/1/2008 10/31/2013 11/1/2013 10/31/2018
11/1/2018 10/31/2023
TRHF $3,729 11/1/2012 10/31/2017 11/1/2017 10/31/2022
Envirocon $150 4/1/2016 3/31/2020 4/1/2020 3/31/2024

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, rental income was $64,624 and $64,624, respectively.
Future minimum rentals expected to be collected are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 57,165
2023 16,860
2024 450
Total $ 74,475

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS

The Chamber leases office equipment under noncancelable leases that expire in 2024 and 2026. For the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the total rental expense under these leases was $9,970 and $10,110,
respectively. These expenses are included in equipment lease expense in the Statement of Functional Expenses.
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Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 6,789
2023 6,651
2024 2,749
2025 1,969
2026 492
Thereafter -
Total $18,650

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The Chamber had a note payable due in monthly installments to a financial institution for an office building in the
amount of $6,729 for 83 months beginning January 10, 2010 through November 10, 2016. This note was secured
by the Quinn Road office building, with interest at 5%. On December 10, 2016, a balloon payment of any unpaid
principal and interest became due and payable, at which time the loan was modified to require monthly installments
of $5,595 at the same interest rate and terms and to become due and payable on December 10, 2023. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balance was $573,315 and $610,370, respectively.

Future scheduled maturities of the note payable is as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 38,885
2023 40,874
Thereafter 493,556
Total $573,315

NOTE 7 — LIQUIDITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
one year of December 31, 2021, comprise the following:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $459,950

Accounts receivable, net 40,848
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year $500,798

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Chamber
considers all expenditures related to its ongoing program activities, as well as the conduct of services undertaken
to support those activities, to be general expenditures. None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other
contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of
financial position date. The Chamber sets a goal of having financial assets on hand to meet a minimum of 90 days
of normal operating expenses, which are, on average, around $56,000. As part of its liquidity management, the
Chamber has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations become due.
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NOTE 8 — CONCENTRATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, approximately fifty-one percent (51%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and
support came from membership dues. For the year ended December 31, 2020, approximately sixty-nine percent
(69%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and support came from membership dues.

The Chamber conducts its operations solely in the greater Tomball area, and, therefore, is subject to risks from
changes in local economic conditions. A downturn in the local economy could cause a decrease in membership
dues and revenue.

NOTE 9 — FEDERAL COVID RELIEF

On February 25, 2021, the Chamber received $49,436 under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act’). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses and are forgivable if the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains average payroll levels. The Organization applied for forgiveness and in
August 2021, was notified that the advance was forgiven in full. The proceeds have been recognized as other
income during the year ended December 31, 2021.

NOTE 10 - CHAMBER MEMBERSHIP ABSORPTION AGREEMENT

In 2021, the Spring-Klein Chamber of Commerce (SKCC) ceased operations. The Chamber entered into an
agreement with SKCC to absorb their current members and honor the remaining membership benefits. No assets
or liabilities were transferred to the Chamber as part of the agreement.

NOTE 11 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Organization continues to evaluate current economic conditions and
the impact on the Organization’s operations for the year ended December 31, 2021, as the long-term effects of the
pandemic are uncertain.

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through April 14, 2022, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Tomball, Texas

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce as of December 31, 2020, and the changes in net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Greater Tomball Area Chamber
of Commerce and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based

on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously reviewed Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s 2019 financial statements dated
September 22, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
which it has been derived.

Tipton & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

May 24, 2021
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As of December 31, Audited Reviewed
(with comparative totals for 2019) 2020 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 349,800 $ 349,262
Accounts receivable, net 53,474 55,174
Prepaid expenses 9,422 9,193
Property and equipment, net 914,047 942,867
Total Assets $ 1,326,743 $ 1,356,496
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 3,232 § 5,232
Deferred revenues 157,891 155,690
Long term debt 610,370 645,503
Deposits 8,300 8,300
Total Liabilities 779,793 814,725
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 546,950 541,771
Total Net Assets 546,950 541,771
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,326,743 $ 1,356,496

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Year ended December 31,
(with comparative totals for 2019)

Audited Reviewed
2020 2019

Revenue and Support
Membership dues
Special events revenue
Less: Cost of direct benefits to donors

$ 510,128 $ 480,171
45,405

(10,640)

Special events revenue, net 34,765 132,345
Capital improvement campaign 33,000 36,000
First Friday luncheon 11,342 41,829
Networking Breakfast 1,665 4,992
City of Tomball hotel tax revenue 35,000 35,000
Rental income 64,624 64,624
Tenent reimbursements 11,990 9,662
Ads and ad commission 16,895 15,389
In-kind donations - 28,795
Interest income 3,377 5,450
Other income 11,592 11,535
Total Revenue and Support 734,378 865,792
Expenses
Program Services
Business resources 252,245 282,361
Advocacy 248,661 273,616
Total Program Services 500,906 555,977
Supporting Services
General and administrative 117,336 111,043
Fundraising 110,957 105,901
Total Supporting Services 228,293 216,944
Total Expenses 729,199 772,921
Change in Net Assets 5,179 92,871
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 541,771 448,900

Net Assets, End of Year

$ 546,950 $ 541,771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Program Services Supporting Services Audited Reviewed
Year ended December 31, Business Total Program General and Total Supporting 2020 2019
(with comparative totals for 2019) Resources Advocacy Services Administrative ~ Fundraising Services Total Total
T’ayroll and related expenses
Salaries $ 101,721 $ 101,721 $ 203,442 $ 25430 $ 25430 $ 50,860 $ 254,302 $ 253,742
Payroll taxes 7,856 7,856 15,712 1,964 1,964 3,928 19,640 18,734
Employee benefits 15,997 15,997 31,994 3,999 3,999 7,998 39,992 29,188
Total payroll and related expenses 125,574 125,574 251,148 31,393 31,393 62,786 313,934 301,664
Other expenses
Advertising 29 29 58 29 201 230 288 24,443
Bad debt 52,592 52,592 105,184 52,592 52,592 105,184 210,368 36,226
Bank fees 484 484 968 1,935 1,935 3,870 4,838 10,796
Board expenses - - - 6,475 - 6,475 6,475 3,964
Building expenses 120 120 240 30 30 60 300 300
Computer maintenance 1,892 1,892 3,784 473 473 946 4,730 3,310
Contract labor 424 424 848 106 106 212 1,060 3,933
Depreciation 11,993 11,993 23,986 2,999 2,999 5,998 29,984 30,132
Dues and subscriptions - 4,706 4,706 - - - 4,706 3,465
Employee development 1,668 1,668 3,336 417 417 834 4,170 9,875
Equipment lease 4,044 4,044 8,088 1,011 1,011 2,022 10,110 14,001
First Friday 9,095 - 9,095 - - - 9,095 44,033
Health committee 1,975 - 1,975 - - - 1,975 5,670
Insurance 3,838 3,838 7,676 959 959 1,918 9,594 8,488
Interest 12,804 12,804 25,608 3,201 3,201 6,402 32,010 33,780
Membership development - - - - - - - 62,397
Miscellaneous 2,429 3,239 5,668 2,427 - 2,427 8,095 20,653
Networking breakfast 450 - 450 - - - 450 1,456
Office supplies 1,677 1,677 3,354 419 419 838 4,192 6,404
Payroll service 2,049 2,049 4,098 512 512 1,024 5,122 4,452
Postage and delivery 538 269 807 269 717 986 1,793 5,840
Professional fees - - - 6,601 - 6,601 6,601 14,820
Rent 864 864 1,728 216 216 432 2,160 2,160
Repairs and maintenance 4,243 4,243 8,486 1,061 1,061 2,122 10,608 24,618
Software 1,403 1,403 2,806 351 351 702 3,508 3,382
Special events - 2,975 2,975 - 20,060 20,060 23,035 75,118
Taxes - income - - - 436 - 436 436 2,160
Taxes - property 5,568 5,568 11,136 1,392 1,392 2,784 13,920 13,920
Telephone 2,614 2,614 5,228 654 654 1,308 6,536 6,812
Travel and entertainment - - - 480 - 480 480 702
Utilities 3,592 3,592 7,184 898 898 1,796 8,980 10,620
Young professionals 286 - 286 - - - 286 814
Total other expenses 126,671 123,087 249,758 85,943 90,204 176,147 425,905 488,744
Subtotal 252,245 248,661 500,906 117,336 121,597 238,933 739,839 790,408
Less: Direct benefit to donor - - - - (10,640) (10,640) (10,640) (17,487)
Total Expenses $ 252,245 $ 248,661 $ 500,906 $ 117,336 $ 110,957 $ 228,293 $ 729,199 $ 772,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, Audited Reviewed
(with comparative totals for 2019) 2020 2019

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 5179 $ 92,871
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net change in operating activities:

Depreciation 29,984 30,132
Bad debt expense 210,368 36,226
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (208,668) (39,867)
Prepaid expenses (229) (7,973)
Accrued expenses (2,000) 1,956
Deferred revenues 2,201 30,178
Total Adjustments 31,656 50,652
Net Change in Operating Activities 36,835 143,523
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (1,164) (6,126)
Net Change in Investing Activities (1,164) (6,126)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Payments on long-term debt (35,133) (36,000)
Net Change in Financing Activities (35,133) (36,000)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 538 101,397
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 349,262 247,865
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 349,800 $ 349,262
Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid $ 32,010 $ 35,650
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 6
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NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (the “Chamber) is a not-for-profit organization of citizens who
are investing their time and money in a community development program working together to improve the economic,
civic, and cultural fortitude of the region, community, or area. The Chamber’s mission is to provide resources and
foster relationships that empower businesses to prosper in Tomball and its surrounding communities.

The Chamber is supported through membership dues, contributions, rental income and other miscellaneous
revenue. The Chamber conducts the following programs:

e Business resources — The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value
added, quality networking events to the Chamber’s diverse membership, by ensuring inclusion through new
member mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. This
division invites members to become involved in the Chamber’s programs that will allow relationships to be
formed and sustained through a variety of networking events.

e Advocacy — The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for the Chamber’s members and
the greater Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about issues
that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce development,
energy and healthcare.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Chamber have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Chamber reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets
that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors: net assets without
donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

e Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations and not subject to donor
restrictions. The only limits on the use of net assets without donor restrictions are the broad limits resulting
from the nature of the Chamber, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its corporate
documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements
with creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations. Assets restricted solely through
the actions of the Board of Directors are reported as net assets without donor restrictions, board-
designated.

¢ Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or use
for a purpose specified by the donor. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires,
that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-restricted endowment earnings are
released when those earnings are appropriated with spending policies and are used for the specified
purpose.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Chamber considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. The carrying values of any cash and cash equivalents
are deemed to approximate their fair values because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge
to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the allowance for
bad debts was $7,021 and $7,021, respectively.

Property and Equipment

The Chamber capitalizes all expenditures for property, plant and equipment in excess of $500. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Major improvements and renewals that extend the life of the asset
are capitalized. Purchased property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-
line method based on their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 39 years
Computers and software 3-5 years
Office equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years

Donated Assets

Donated investments and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their fair values at the date of
donation.

Donated Property and Equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at fair value at the date of donation. Such
donations are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions
of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Chamber reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. The Chamber reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Deferred Revenue

Income from membership dues and subscription fees received in advance is deferred and recognized over the
periods to which the dues and fees relate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual
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results could differ from those estimates. The significant estimates included in the financial statements are the
estimates of useful lives used for depreciating property and equipment items.

Membership Dues

Membership dues are recognized in the applicable membership period. Any unearned amounts are included in
deferred revenue at the end of each accounting period.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b)
require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Chamber. Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Chamber with program
services and fundraising events. No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for these donated
services as the recognition criteria were not met.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses are categorized in the Statement of Activities as program services, management and general and
fundraising. The Chamber’s expenses are allocated on a functional basis among these benefited categories:

e Program service expenses: include direct and indirect (allocated) expenses for the various programs
offered by the Chamber to fulfill member investment expectations. Expenses that can be identified with a
specific program and support services are allocated directly according to their natural expenditure
classification. Other expenses, that are common to several functions, are allocated to program services
based on time and effort.

e Management and general expenses: include those expenses, ranging from office management to financial
services, that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support
and direction of the Chamber. Those expenses include the basic necessities to be an accredited, well
rounded, and effective organization.

e Fundraising expenses: represent costs incurred in connection with fundraising efforts to continue the
Chamber’s mission. The membership dues alone are not adequate enough to accomplish the Chamber’s
goals; therefore, fundraising events are held to fill the gap between membership dues and total expenses.

Advertising Cost

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
amounted to $288 and $24,443, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Chamber is operating as a not-for-profit corporation, under Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and is not subject to income taxes with the exception of unrelated business income. The Chamber conducted
unrelated business activities during the current year. Therefore, the Chamber paid $436 and $2,160 for federal
income taxes in the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Chamber applies the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, (formerly FASB Interpretation No. 48
(FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109), which
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures and transition. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, no uncertain tax positions were identified.

133




Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commero<

Iltem 4.

Notes to Financial Statements

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (formerly SFAS 157),
defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in the principal
or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The valuation techniques required by ASC 820 are based upon observable and unobservable inputs, and ASC 820
establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The three levels
of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

e Level | - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market is a market in
which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. Level | assets include cash and cash equivalents with a fair value at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 of $349,800 and $349,262, respectively.

e Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level |, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

e Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity.

The asset’s or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used are to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

NOTE 2 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Chamber maintains its cash balances in a local bank. These balances are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Management periodically assesses the financial condition of the
financial institutions and believes that any possible credit risk is minimal. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Chamber had approximately $100,000 and $99,000, respectively, of cash balances that were not insured by the
FDIC. The Chamber has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes the risk of future loss is
mitigated by monitoring the balances and the financial institutions where the cash is deposited..

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

Audited Reviewed
2020 2019
Building and improvements $1,112,383 $1,112,383
Computers and software 17,517 16,353
Office equipment 13,102 13,102
Furniture and fixtures 17,990 17,990
Land 145,000 145,000
Total property and equipment, gross 1,305,992 1,304,828
Less: Accumulated depreciation (391,945) (361,961)
Total property and equipment, net $914,047 $942,867

Depreciation expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $29,984 and
$30,132, respectively.
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NOTE 4 — RENTAL INCOME

The Chamber leases office space to three other organizations under four to five year leases as follows:

Current monthly Lease Renewal

rent Lease initiation expiration Lease renewal expiration
TEDC $1,506 9/1/2008 10/31/2013 11/1/2013 10/31/2018
11/1/2018 10/31/2023
TRHF $3,729 11/1/2012 10/31/2017 11/1/2017 10/31/2022
Envirocon $150 4/1/2016 3/31/2020 4/1/2020 3/31/2024

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, rental income was $64,624 and $64,624, respectively.
Future minimum rentals are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $62,624
2022 57,165
2023 16,860
2024 450
Total $137,099

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS

The Chamber has two noncancelable operating leases for office equipment. The terms of the leases vary from 36
to 60 months beginning in 2015 and expiring in 2021. The monthly rental payments are $393 and $210 plus
maintenance costs. Both leases were renewed subsequent to year end. For the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, the total rental expense under these leases was $10,110 and $14,001, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $6,788
2022 6,651
2023 6,651
2024 2,749
2025 1,969
Thereafter 492
Total $25,300

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The Chamber had a note payable due in monthly instaliments to a financial institution for an office building in the
amount of $6,729 for 83 months beginning January 10, 2010 through November 10, 2016. This note was secured
by the Quinn Road office building, with interest at 5%. On December 10, 2016, a balloon payment of any unpaid
principal and interest became due and payable, at which time the loan was modified to require monthly installments
of $5,595 at the same interest rate and terms and to become due and payable on December 10, 2023. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance was $610,370 and $645,503, respectively.

11
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Future scheduled maturities of the note payable is as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $36,992
2022 38,885
2023 40,874
Thereafter 493,619
Total $610,370

NOTE 7 - LIQUIDITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
one year of December 31, 2020, comprise the following:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $349,800

Accounts receivable, net 53,474
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year $403,274

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Chamber
considers all expenditures related to its ongoing program activities, as well as the conduct of services undertaken
to support those activities, to be general expenditures. None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other
contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of
financial position date. The Chamber sets a goal of having financial assets on hand to meet a minimum of 90 days
of normal operating expenses, which are, on average, around $56,000. As part of its liquidity management, the
Chamber has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations become due.

NOTE 8 — CONCENTRATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2020, approximately sixty-nine percent (69%) of the Chamber’s total revenue
and support came from membership dues. For the year ended December 31, 2019, approximately fifty-five percent
(55%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and support came from membership dues.

The Chamber conducts its operations solely in the greater Tomball area, and, therefore, is subject to risks from
changes in local economic conditions. A downturn in the local economy could cause a decrease in membership
dues and revenue.

NOTE 9 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the Chamber has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through May 24, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. In
early 2020, an outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) emerged globally. The spread of COVID-19
and related global responses have caused material disruptions to many economies around the world, resulting in
an economic slowdown. Global equity markets have also experienced significant volatility and weakness. Although
governments and central banks have reacted with interventions designed to stabilize economic conditions, the
duration and extent of the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak remains unclear.
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On February 25, 2021, the Chamber received $49,436 under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act’). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses and are forgivable if the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains average payroll levels. Any unforgiven portion of the PPP loan will be
payable over two years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first six months. While the
Chamber believes its use of the PPP loan proceeds meet the conditions of forgiveness, it is possible the Chamber
may be ineligible for forgiveness of the loan, in whole or in part.

The Chamber has determined that these events are non-adjusting subsequent events. Accordingly, the financial
position and statement of activities as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 have not been adjusted to
reflect their impact. As of May 24, 2021, the virus and related responses have caused disruptions to the Chamber's
operations through cancelled events and reduced membership dues, and the Chamber expects these disruptions
to negatively impact its operating results. However, the ultimate impact of COVID-19 is not reasonably estimable at
this time.
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2021-2022 Board Meetings

Wednesday, October 13 — Board Retreat

Time: 9:00 am — 5:00 pm

Location: Tomball ISD Event Center
Wednesday, November 17 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, December 15 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, January 19 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, February 16 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, March 16 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, April 20 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, May 18 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, June 15 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, July 20 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)

Iltem 4.
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Wednesday, August 17 — Board Meeting

Iltem 4.

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, September 21 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
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Job Title: PRESIDENT
Department: N/A

Reports To: Board of Directors
Approved By: Board of Directors

Approved Date: _May 20,2015

Revised Date:

The President, as the chief administrative executive plans, organizes, directs and controls the Chamber’s

§ Eiqﬁ%:ﬁ) (ﬂ;@ﬁ economic development and public policy activities and responds to the needs of its members
within-available and agreed upon financial resources. The President develops and maintains collaborative
working relationships between the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce and other key business and
public policy organizations, other area chambers of commerce and other organizations to foster a nurturing
business environment for members. The President delegates portions of his/her responsibilities consistent
with sound operations and authorized policies and procedures (together with proportionate authority for their
fulfillment through subordinate managers responsible for developing operational strategies that ensure the
flawless execution of the Chamber's internal affairs) in support of the chamber's external goals for business
and membership growth.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Strategic
e Direct development of short and long range objectives, policies, budgets, and operating plans for the
organization and oversees their consistent interpretation, implementation and achievement.
e Oversee the development of established policies, systems and processes for the proper,
consistent, and efficient execution of financial and operational activities, in compliance with all
relevant internal, local, state, and federal guidelines.
e  Work with committees to identify issues and needs and develop plans to address them.

2. Managerial

e Develop and ensure successful implementation of the Chamber’s multi-year strategic plan and the
corresponding annual business plan as approved by the Board of Directors.

e Integrate the needs and constraints of other functional/departmental managers and directors into
planning and execution of day-to-day operations.

e Ensure activities meet with chamber requirements for quality management, health and safety, legal
stipulations, environmental policies and general duty of care.

e Manage and develop direct reporting staff, including establishing and enforcing accountability
guidelines, directing and supervising staff day-to-day activities, training, and recruiting in line with
the Operational Plan and chamber goals and guidelines.

e Delegate and outsource activities as appropriate to meet goals and deliverables in the most efficient
and productive manner.

3. Financial
e Advise the Board of Directors of the Chamber's financial activities including cash flow, expenditures,
billing and event budgeting.
e Monitor accounting procedures and records in accordance with relevant internal and external
guidelines, including an annual audit.

e Approve disbursements, co-sign checks with the officers and maintain general control of expenditures.
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4. Administrative
e Employ staff necessary to carry out the work of the organization.
e Conduct employee evaluations in conjunction with the Vice President.
e Monitor the established employee benefits packages, payroll, tax deductions, and appropriate
records as approved by the Board of Directors, and in compliance with local, state, and federal HR
guidelines.

5. Communication

e Act as primary spokesperson for the organization.

e Maintain an open line of communication with the Board of Directors, providing objective and factual
input regarding relevant operational and financial activities to facilitate informed decision making.

e Maintain and develop effective communications and relations with other community leaders, other
organizations, and elected officials.

e  Work closely with Communications Director to ensure all information that is published by and through
the Chamber is correct, timely, addressed to the proper parties and/or audience, and in line with
chamber, local, state, and federal guidelines.

6. Self-Development

e Conduct all business in an ethical and professional manner.

e Keep abreast of new developments in community, legislation, Board of Directors, the membership
base, and any other area that could affect the Chamber’s operations.

e Know and understand the federal, state, and local laws which govern the different aspects of chamber
activities.

e Attend training seminars and courses as requested by the Board of Directors, or required by
developments in regulatory bodies.

QUALIFICATIONS

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE

B.A. or B.S. from accredited college.

Five (5) years experience as a successful business leader, familiarity with public relations and marketing,
and management experience.

LANGUAGE SKILLS
Ability to read and write legibly. Ability to document numbers quickly without transposing or dropping digits.
Ability to communicate verbally in English.

REASONING ABILITY

Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out moderately complex instructions. Ability to keep
track of, and organize, numerous and varied time sensitive tasks and concurrently deal with frequent urgent
situations requiring immediate decision and action.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
Ability to work irregular hours, evenings and weekends.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to work with computers; stand; walk;
sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; and talk or hear. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and
ability to adjust focus.

Iltem 4.
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WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The President is required to wear proper/approved work attire at all times.

NOTE:

THIS IS NOT NECESSARILY AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST OF RESPONSIBILITIES, SKILLS, DUTIES,
REQUIREMENTS, EFFORTS, OR WORKING CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE JOB. WHILE
THIS LIST IS INTENDED TO BE AN ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE CURRENT JOB, THE
CHAMBER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE JOB TO
REQUIRE THAT ADDITIONAL OR DIFFERENT TASKS BE PERFORMED WHEN
CIRCUMSTANCES CHANGE (i e, EMERGENCIES, CHANGES IN PERSONNEL, WORK LOAD,
RUSH JOBS, OR TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS).

I have read and fully understand the contents of this job description. | understand the responsibilities,
requirements and duties expected of me. | also understand that the job description does not constitute a
contract of employment nor alter my status as an at-will employee. | have the right to terminate my
employment at any time and for any reason, and the Chamber has a similar right.

Employee's Name Employee's Signature Date

Supervisor's Name Supervisor's Signature  Date

THE GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE IS
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.
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JOB DESCRIPTION

Job Title: VICE PRESIDENT OF OPERATIONS (U.S Chamber job code U105)
Department: N/A

Reports To: PRESIDENT

Prepared By: Pascale Nicolet-Smith — TOP solutions

Prepared Date: 1-10-2007

Approved By: BRUCE HILLEGEIST - PRESIDENT

Approved Date:

Revised Date:
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JOB DEFINITION

The Vice President of Operations serves as the Chief Operating Officer, ensuring execution of the day-to-day
business operations of the organization, including policy development and management of financial activities and
personnel. The Vice President of Operations is responsible for developing operational strategies that ensure
the flawless execution of the chamber's internal affairs in support of the chamber's external goals for business
and membership growth.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Strategic
e Contribute to development of strategic plan as a member of executive team.
e Plan, develop and implement strategy for operational management and execution so as to meet
agreed Chamber goals within agreed budgets and timeframes.
e Develop and establish policies, systems and processes for the proper, consistent, and efficient
execution of financial and operational activities, in compliance with all relevant internal, local, state,
and federal guidelines.

2. Managerial

e Develop and implement Annual Operational Plan that defines deliverables, resource requirements,
processes, and timeframes for chamber driven activities.

e Integrate the needs and constraints of other functional/departmental managers and directors into
planning and execution of day-to-day operations.

e Ensure activities meet with chamber requirements for quality management, health and safety, legal
stipulations, environmental policies and general duty of care.

e Manage and develop direct reporting staff, including establishing and enforcing accountability
guidelines, directing and supervising staff day-to-day activities, training, and recruiting in line with
Operational Plan and chamber goals and guidelines.

e Delegate and outsource activities as appropriate to meet goals and deliverables in the most efficient
and productive manner.

3. Financial
e Plan, Develop, and manage annual budget with Board of Directors.
e Oversee the chamber's financial activities including managing and controlling cash flow,
expenditures, billing and event budgeting.
e Maintain proper accounting procedures and records in accordance with relevant internal and external
guidelines, including and annual audit.
e Keep and distribute financial notes, records, and reports to President and the Board of Directors.

143




Iltem 4.

4. Administrative

e Manage and maintain appropriate records for company insurance, contracts and agreements,
corporate level negotiations (e.g. premises), vendors, regulatory bodies relationships and strategies,
approvals and accreditations.

e Establish and maintain appropriate IT and communication systems to ensure financial records,
membership databases, web presence and all communication channels are functional and meet
chamber goals and guidelines.

e Establish and manage employee benefits packages, payroll, tax deductions, and appropriate records
as approved by the Board of Directors, and in compliance with local, state, and federal HR guidelines

5. Communication

e Maintain an open line of communication with Chamber executives and Board of Directors, providing
objective and factual input regarding relevant operational and financial activities, to facilitate informed
decision making.

e  Work closely with Communications Director to ensure all information that is published by and through
the chamber is correct, timely, addressed to the proper parties and/or audience, and in line with
chamber, local, state, and federal guidelines.

e Maintain appropriate communication with direct report staff, ensuring they have the
necessary information to perform their day-to-day work effectively.

6. Self-Development

e Conduct all business in an ethical and professional manner.

o Keep abreast of new developments in community, legislation, Board of Directors, membership
base, and any other area that could affect the chamber operations.

¢ Know and understand the federal, state, and local laws which govern the different aspects of chamber
activities.

e Attend training seminars and courses as requested by the President and/or Board of Directors,
or required by developments in regulatory bodies.

QUALIFICATIONS

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE

B.A. or B.S. from accredited college.

Five (5) years administrative, accounting, and project management experience, preferably in a business
oriented not-for-profit organization.

LANGUAGE SKILLS
Ability to read and write legibly. Ability to document numbers quickly without transposing or dropping digits.
Ability to communicate verbally in English.

REASONING ABILITY

Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out moderately complex instructions. Ability to keep
track of, and organize, numerous and varied time sensitive tasks and concurrently deal with frequent urgent
situations requiring immediate decision and action.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
Ability to work irregular hours, evenings and weekends.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.
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While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to work with computers; stand; walk;
sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; and talk or hear. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and
ability to adjust focus.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The Vice President of Operations is required to wear proper/approved work attire at all times.

NOTE:

THIS IS NOT NECESSARILY AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST OF RESPONSIBILITIES, SKILLS, DUTIES,
REQUIREMENTS, EFFORTS, OR WORKING CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE JOB. WHILE
THIS LIST IS INTENDED TO BE AN ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE CURRENT JOB, THE
CHAMBER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE JOB TO
REQUIRE THAT ADDITIONAL OR DIFFERENT TASKS BE PERFORMED WHEN
CIRCUMSTANCES CHANGE (i e, EMERGENCIES, CHANGES IN PERSONNEL, WORK LOAD,
RUSH JOBS, OR TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS).

I have read and fully understand the contents of this job description. | understand the responsibilities,
requirements and duties expected of me. | also understand that the job description does not constitute a
contract of employment nor alter my status as an at-will employee. | have the right to terminate my
employment at any time and for any reason, and the chamber has a similar right.

Employee's Name Employee's Signature Date

Supervisor's Name Supervisor's Signature  Date

THE GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 1S
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.

145




THE

THE HARTFORD
BUSINESS SERVICE CENTER
3600 WISEMAN BLVD

HARTFORD SAN ANTONIO TX 78251

City of Tomball
401 MARKET ST
TOMBALL TX 77375

Account Information:

Policy Holder Details :

GREATER TOMBALL AREA
CHAMBE OF COMMERCE

Iltem 4.

June 1, 2022

Q Contact Us

Need Help?

Start a live chat online or call us at
(866) 467-8730.

We’'re here weekdays from 8:00 AM to
8:00 PM ET.

Enclosed please find a Certificate Of Insurance for the above referenced Policyholder. Please contact us if you have any

guestions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Your Hartford Service Team

WLTRO05
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) |

06/01/2(

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLD

Item 4.

THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE
POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S),
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not
confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER CONTACT
HIGGINBOTHAM INS AGENCY INC/PHS NAME:
61611737 PHONE (866) 467-8730 FAX (888) 443-6112
(AIC, No, Ext): (A/C, No):
The Hartford Business Service Center
3600 Wiseman Blvd E-MAIL
San Antonio, TX 78251 ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#
INSURED INSURER A : Hartford Lloyd's Insurance Company 38253
GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBE OF COMMERCE INSURER B :
292201 QUINN STEB
INSURER C :
TOMBALL TX 77375
INSURERD :
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL | SUBR POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS
LTR INSR_|WVD (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/Y YYY)
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
|CLAIMS-_MAD'I% OceuR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $300'000
X |General Liability MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000
A X 61 SBA VM8139 12/20/2021 | 12/20/2022 | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
PRO-
L POLICY I:l kot LoC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000
OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
ﬁTOMOBlLE LIABILITY 2 accident $1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED ]
A | |AuTos AUTOS 61 SBA VM8139 12/20/2021 | 12/20/2022 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
| HIRED x| NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
| 7 | AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
UMBRELLA LIAB | | OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-
MADE AGGREGATE
DED| |RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION |PER | |OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER
ANY YN E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE N/ A
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? I: E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
im Limi 5,000
A |EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 61 SBA VM8139 122012021 | 127202022 | Each Claim Limit $
LIABILITY Aggregate Limit $5,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Those usual to the Insured's Operations. Certificate holder is an additional insured per the Business Liability Coverage Form SS0008 attached to this
policy.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
City of Tomball SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
401 MARKET ST BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED
TOMBALL TX 77375 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Vision Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce will continue to be the business
resource center for the northwest Houston metropolitan area.

R.E.A.L. (Core) Values

Relationship
Connecting members for lasting relationships that promote growth and enhance success.
Education
Promoting development of our community through personal and business education.
Advocacy
Partnering with business and government to advocate for the community.
Legacy
Establishing the standards of tomorrow guided by the cornerstone of tradition.

Mission Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce provides resources
and fosters relationships that empower businesses to prosper in
Tomball and its surrounding communities.

Diversity Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce is committed to advancing the values
and benefits of diversity, equity and inclusion and believes it takes every member of the
community to maintain a thriving economy.

Representing

City of Tomball, Creekside, Decker Prairie, Hufsmith, Korhville, Lakewood,
Northpointe, Pinehurst, Rose Hill, Spring-Klein & Stagecoach

Critical Goals

Advance Region's Economy
Promote and enhance a vibrant, diverse and sustainable economy.

Improve Quality of Life
Foster a high-ranking quality of life for all residents.

Enhance Members' Success
Provide targeted services, events and programs.

Organization Improvement
Position the organization and its staff for long term success.
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 2
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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Business Resources Division

The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value added, quality
networking events to GTACC’s diverse membership by ensuring inclusion through new member
mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. The division
invites members to become involved in GTACC programs that will allow relationships to be formed
and sustained through a variety of networking events.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Business Resources and includes:

First Friday Luncheon, Networking Breakfast, Young Professionals, Ambassadors,
Business After Hours, Tomball Together, and Women’s Committee

Advocacy Division
The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for GTACC members and the greater
Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about
issues that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce
development, energy, and healthcare.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Advocacy and includes:

Government & Legislative Affairs Committee, Health & Wellness Alliance, Mobility &
Transportation Committee, Business & Education Partnership, Leadership North Houston,
Citizen of Year, Tomball Tidings, and Collaboration with City & Community partners

Prosperity Division
The Prosperity Division oversees the revenue generating activities that support the economic
activities of the GTACC. By supporting these quality events, the GTACC brings people together,
enhances Tomball’s overall quality of life, and provides many fundraising opportunities. All events
listed carry on the excellent reputation that the GTACC has earned statewide — events that attract tens
of thousands of visitors to the Tomball community. This division also concentrates on pursuing
various avenues to increase membership growth.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Prosperity and includes:

Membership Growth, Tomball Holiday Parade, Miss Tomball Pageant, Tomball Night,
Chairman’s Ball, and the Golf Classic

Operations Division

The Operations Division is responsible for the administrative oversight of the Greater Tomball Area
Chamber of Commerce’s financial, facilities, and marketing operations. The division also ensures the
Chamber’s compliance with all applicable internal and external rules, regulations, and guidelines.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Operations and includes:
Marketing, Accreditation, By-laws, Facilities, and Finances

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 3
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The GTACC Board of Directors will yearly develop an annual action plan to

focus our efforts each year. We will keep in mind our mission, vision and value
statements along with our long-term goals in development of this plan each year.

2022 Action Plan

Deliver Value to Members

Business Resources

Iltem 4.

1. Update value-based membership tiers Staff 03/01/22
2. Plan for showcasing members across multiple
communication platforms Board 03/01/22
3. Segment membership by interests for better engagement Board
4. Retain 50% of Spring-Klein Chamber memberships Board 12/31/22
Growth Prosperity
1. Increase membership % Board 12/31/22
2. Support Membership Director with quality leads Board monthly
3. Develop & implement effective on-boarding system to
improve first-year retentionby % Board 04/01/22
4. Increase membership investments at renewal by % Board 12/31/22
Develop Leaders Advocacy
1. Further develop leadership program (LNH) to include
Tomball Community Day Board 06/01/22
2. Improve board recognition, acknowledgement, and visibility
within chamber membership and community. Board 12/31/22
3. Develop current & future leaders through our Program of Work  Board 12/31/22
Operations Operations
1. Define a succession plan for President Board 06/30/22
2. Plan & Budget for an addition to staff Board 06/30/22
3. Integrate Five Star Accreditation Goals into
Board Strategic/Action plan Board 03/30/22
4. Implement a system for shifting past due efforts to effective
pre-renewal protocol Board 03/30/22

Community Support / Qutreach

Staff w/Board Support

1.

2.

Support citizens & downtown businesses during upcoming
2920 Redevelopment and Alley Projects

Support citizens & businesses through proposed Harris
County redistricting

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan

Staff

Staff

12/31/22

12/31/22
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e Support the advancement of our Region’s Economy:
o Transportation-improving the flow of goods, services and families
= 2920
= Business 249
= Major feeders to 249 and 2920
o Remove Legislative roadblocks
o Grow/Foster municipal relationships
o Provide information on growth, trends in all markets, and partnerships
e Support our community goals to enhance Quality of Life:
o Beautification of Tomball
o Develop and Foster downtown environment
o Create/Foster a livable center
= Churches, post office, golf courses, diverse business, EMS, post offices
o Diversity of business centers
o Healthcare
o Education
e Promote Members’ Success:
o Future leaders/Sustainable leadership
= Develop current and future leaders through our Program of Work
o Education/ Equipping programs
= Developing education opportunities for our members through the Chamber
and its Partners
o Promotion / Exposure of businesses/ Lead generation
o Resource Center
= Continue to provide information and resources on growth trends in all
markets and strategic partnerships for members and the community.
o Technology

e Cultivate Cultural Diversity from a position of leadership.
o ldentify community leaders and promote chamber membership
o ldentify chamber or community events to support diversity

e Identify the Top 10 Business Development Opportunities for Chamber Growth
o ldentify development opportunities in Tomball to strengthen our community and
Chamber

e Organization Improvement:
o Technology
= Continuous improvement of technology to implement current trends that
are productive for the Chamber and our members
o Advertising and branding

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 5
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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o Accreditation
= |dentify areas of improvement as suggested by our recent accreditation
review

o Communications
= Maintain timely and quality communications with staff
= Promote member connections and enhance flow of information in usable
formats
o Education/ Partners/ Consultants
= EDC/City/ Chambers/ College/ County

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 6
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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Item 5.

TAC Board Meeting
Agenda Item

Data Sheet
Meeting Date: 7/26/2022

Topic:

Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce for Grant from
FY 2021-2022 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the 2022 Tomball Night.

Background:

Origination: Finance

Recommendation:

Party(ies) responsible for placing this item on agenda: Katherine DuBose, Finance Director

FUNDING (IF APPLICABLE)
Are funds specifically designated in the current budget for the full amount required for this purpose?

Yes: X No: If yes, specify Account Number: 240-240-6351
If no, funds will be transferred from account To account
Signed  Katherine DuBose, CPA Approved by

Finance Director 7/20/2022 City Manager Date
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CITY OF TOMBALL
APPLICATION FOR USE OF HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

Applications may be mailed or hand delivered to:

Finance Director
City of Tomball
501 James Street
Tomball, TX 77375

Applicant Organization: Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

Organization Director: Bruce Hillegeist

Project or Event for which funding is requested: Tomball Night

Date of Event: August 5, 2022

Description of project or event for which funding is requested: SOMmMunity festival with over 90

vendors downtown, Parade of Lights and fireworks

Location of project or event: Ve€ndor booths on Market Street, parade on Main Street from

Vernon Street to Peach Street, fireworks at gravel yard across the railroad tracks from

the Depot

GRANT AMOUNTS:
Amount Requested for Current Fiscal Year: 2021-2022 $ 10,000
Amount Received for Previous Fiscal Year: 2020-2021 $ 17,500

% increase requested over last year’s grant: decrease %
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Organization Budget Summary for Previous Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Attached

City Funds

Other Funds

Total

Item 5.

Personnel

Contracted Services

Travel

Rental Expense

Depreciation/Mortgage N/A

Advertising

Insurance

Other Expenses

Volunteer Time N/A

Donated Goods/Services N/A

Total

Grants to an organization will not exceed 35% of the organization’s adopted budget for the fiscal year shown

above.

FUNDS FROM SOURCES OTHER THAN THE CITY OF TOMBALL

Government
Local
County
State
Federal

Other Investors/Contributors
Individual
Corporate
Foundations

Admissions
Applications
Vendors
Tuition

Concessions
Memberships

Subscriptions

Other
Total

Amount of Funds

e
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How many people do you expect will visit Tomball from out-of-town as a result of this project or event?

Explain the basis for your answer to the preceding question: W€ have no way to quantify
where the patrons are from, but we anticipate 5,000-7,500 people to attend the event

Are attendees for this event or users of this project expected to stay overnight in Tomball hotels or

motels? If you answer to this question is Yes, state the basis for your answer: Yes, people come
from many different places to attend and vendors travel from out of town.

Organization Contact Name: Brandy Beyer, Vice President
Title: Brandy Beyer, Vice President
Address: Brandy Beyer, Vice President

Phone Number: Brandy Beyer, Vice President

Digitally signed by Brandy Beyer
DN: cn=|

Contact N S Slgnature . B ra n d y B eye r Dalecr;grzag;iy‘ Ee‘yuer‘“o;l)ergg%eé.Tombalw Area Chamber of Commerce, ou, email=bbeyer@tombalichamber.org, c=US
Date. 07/15/2022
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VALIDATION OF APPLICATION

The signatory declares that he/she is an authorized official of the applicant, is authorized to make this
application, and certifies that the information in this application is true and correct to the best of his/her
knowledge. Signatory further declares that applicant, if previously funded by the City of Tomball, has

successfully fulfilled all prior Grant contract obligations.

Digitally si ion dbyB dyB

Brandy Beyer g cmmnse

D l 2022 07 15 1U 13 35 0500

Signature of Authorizing Official

Brandy Beyer

Typed Name

Vice President

Title within Organization

bbeyer@tomballchamber.org

Email address

07/15/2022

Date

281.351.7222

Telephone
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NARRATIVE QUESTIONS

Please look at the criteria in the grant guidelines when you answer the following questions. Be specific and
give examples. Answers to individual questions should be as brief as possible and should in no case exceed

one page.

1. Describe the history and purpose of the organization.

2. Describe how any grant funds will be used.

3. List the programs and activities for the grant year.

4. Show evidence of growth in community support prior to the grant year. Include the number of
performances, exhibitions, audience sizes, services or enrollment. Be sure to include specific
information as to the percent of activities taking place within the City of Tomball.

5. How does your project/event qualify for use of Municipal Hotel Occupancy Tax funds as defined in the
Hotel Occupancy Tax Guidelines?

6. How do you publicize your activities? How do you evaluate these efforts and what have you done to
increase the effectiveness of your marketing efforts?

7. Explain the public benefits to the City of Tomball that will result from your organization’s efforts.

8. What is your organization doing to bring visitors to Tomball, to stay in local hotels and otherwise

support the hospitality industry?
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OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION

The following information in required to process the grant application:

1.

2.

Articles of Incorporation, if applicable
Constitution and/or By-Laws

If your organization’s budget exceeds $100,000 (exclusive of in-kind) attach a copy of the last
independent audit of financial records. If no audit was completed, explain why.

Schedule of Board of Directors meetings for the period of October 1 of the current year through
September 30 of the following year. Board of Directors meetings must occur at least once per
quarter.

Resumes of principal staff and artists or relevant job descriptions.

Depending on the nature of the project or event for which grant funding is requested, the
organization will obtain a Certificate of Insurance for liability coverage as outlined in the attached
Exhibit A. The City of Tomball requires each grantee having an event in the City aimed to attract
both residents and tourists to have liability insurance to protect the public for acts by the grantee.
This mandated coverage does not cover the grantee or any of its members. We encourage the
grantee to acquire insurance to cover itself and its members as it deems fit. Please see your
insurance agent for the local government endorsement. The cost of the local government
endorsement may be included as part of your budget to be considered for a grant.

OPTIONAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

This should be additional material that you wish to attach that further explains the activities of your
organization such as:

1.

[98)

Long Range Plan — 3-5 years

One labeled videotape of performance(s), exhibits, workshops, capital project and /or other
activities for which City of Tomball grant funds will be utilized.

Programs, publicity, articles, reviews, etc.

Letters of support from patrons or other organizations in the community.
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EXHIBIT A

Organization shall procure and maintain for the duration of the grant agreement, insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the services performed
or to be performed hereunder by the Organization its agents, representatives, employees, volunteers, officers,
directors or sub-contractors.

The organization shall maintain insurance with limits not less than $500,000 per occurrence, $1,000,000
aggregate and will be as broad as ISO Form Number GL 0002 (Ed 1/72) covering Comprehensive General
Liability and ISO Form Number GL 0404 covering Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability, or ISO
Commercial General Liability coverage (“occurrence for CG 0001). Coverage will include: A) Premises —
Operations; B) Broad Form Contractual Liability, C) Broad Form Property Damage and D) Personal Injury.

The policy will be endorsed to contain the following provisions: The City, its officials, employees, volunteers,
Boards and Commissions are to be added as “Additional Insured” in respect to liability arising out of any
activities performed by or on behalf of the Organization. The policy shall contain no special limitations to the
scope of coverage afforded to the City. The Organization’s insurance shall be primary and any insurance or
self-insurance shall be in excess of the Organization’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. Certificate
must include a waiver of subrogation as regards to the workers compensation policy. If your organization has
no employees, and therefore doe not carry workers compensation insurance, you must provide to the City of
Tomball a letter stating that you have no employees and therefore do not carry workers compensation
insurance.

Insurance shall be placed with insurers with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A:VI or a Standard & Poor
rating of A or better.

The Organization shall furnish the City with a certificate of insurance which shows the coverage provided.
The insurance policy will be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, non-
renewed, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail,
return receipt requested, has been given to the City.
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2022 Tomball Night Budget

Port-o-Pottie 1,800.00
Fireworks 5,000.00
Shopper CASH 1,000.00
Advertising 1,500.00
Supplies 600.00
Debriefing Meeting 250.00
Rentals 2,000.00
Personnel 27,000.00

Total Expenses: 39,150.00

[Grant Request: 10000.00

Item 5.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2021 Budget Overview ltem 5.
January through December 2021

TOTAL
Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan - Dec 21
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Income
Rent Income 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 64,620.00
Capital Campaign 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 36,000.00
Health & Wellness 3,000.00 1,000.00 500.00 3,000.00 500.00 8,000.00
Hotel/Motel Tax 35,000.00 35,000.00
First Friday 1,800.00 1,800.00 2,000.00 2,400.00 2,300.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 14,300.00
Networking Breakfast 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 500.00 500.00 5,000.00
Interest Income 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 2,640.00
Membership Dues
New 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 4,000.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 54,000.00
Allowance Non-Renewal -4,384.33 -8,944.33 -1,879.33 -1,490.08 -1,796.08 -2,699.33 -2,218.58 -2,161.33 -2,837.08 -3,110.83 -2,087.58 -1,929.58 -35,538.50
Renewal 43,843.33 89,443.33 18,793.33 14,900.83 17,960.83 26,993.33 22,185.83 21,613.33 28,370.83 31,108.33 20,875.83 19,295.83 355,384.96
Total Membership Dues 44,459.00 85,499.00 21,914.00 18,410.75 21,164.75 28,294.00 23,467.25 22,952.00 30,033.75 32,497.50 23,288.25 21,866.25 373,846.46
Miscellaneous Income 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 3,600.00
Publications/Products
Magazine/Map/Website 500.00 3,500.00 1,500.00 8,500.00 3,000.00 500.00 500.00 18,000.00
Total Publications 3,500.00 1,500.00 8,500.00 3,000.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 17,500.00
Special Events
Banquet 10,000.00 10,000.00
Golf Classic 5,000.00 20,000.00 25,000.00
Tomball Night 6,000.00 11,000.00 4,000.00 21,000.00
Holiday Parade 3,000.00 10,000.00 12,000.00 25,000.00
Miss Tomball Pageant 4,000.00 13,000.00 8,000.00 25,000.00
Total Special Events 0.00 15,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 11,000.00 4,000.00 7,000.00 23,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 106,000.00
Total Income 56,764.00 114,304.00 52,719.00 36,715.75 33,469.75 48,399.00 46,072.25 38,257.00 84,238.75 67,602.50 54,693.25 33,271.25 666,506.46
Total Income 56,764.00 114,304.00 52,719.00 36,715.75 33,469.75 48,399.00 46,072.25 38,257.00 84,238.75 67,602.50 54,693.25 33,271.25 666,506.46
Gross Profit 56,764.00 114,304.00 52,719.00 36,715.75 33,469.75 48,399.00 46,072.25 38,257.00 84,238.75 67,602.50 54,693.25 33,271.25 666,506.46
Expense
Building Expense
Alarm 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 300.00
Cleaning 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 560.00 6,720.00
Electricity 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 10,800.00
Building Interest 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 2,650.00 31,800.00
Reimbursed by tenants -1,400.00 -600.00 -600.00 -1,100.00 -600.00 -600.00 -1,200.00 -600.00 -600.00 -1,200.00 -600.00 -600.00 -9,700.00
Repairs/Maintenance 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 12,000.00
Total Building Expense 3,735.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 4,035.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 3,935.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 3,935.00 4,535.00 4,535.00 51,920.00
163
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2021 Budget Overview ltem 5.
January through December 2021

TOTAL
Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan - Dec 21
Accounting Expense 200.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 7,000.00 2,300.00 17,500.00
Advertising 500.00 500.00 1,000.00 500.00 2,500.00
Bad Debt Expense 2,775.00 2,775.00 3,000.00 2,775.00 3,000.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 2,775.00 4,250.00 35,225.00
Health & Wellness 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,500.00 1,500.00 6,000.00
First Friday 2,200.00 2,200.00 1,700.00 2,500.00 2,100.00 2,200.00 2,000.00 14,900.00
Networking Breakfast 200.00 200.00 300.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 2,500.00
Young Professionals 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 1,200.00
Bank Fees 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 8,400.00
Board of Directors 300.00 100.00 200.00 200.00 3,000.00 3,700.00 7,500.00
Dues and Subscriptions 2,472.00 750.00 584.00 3,806.00
Employee Expense
SUTA 80.00 50.00 25.00 10.00 165.00
Development 600.00 550.00 500.00 500.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 1,550.00 300.00 1,500.00 9,000.00
FUTA 73.00 40.00 30.00 25.00 168.00
Group Insurance 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 3,942.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 48,978.00
Payroll Services 390.00 450.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 390.00 4,740.00
Payroll Taxes 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 18,000.00
Salaries
TACC 20,000.00 20,500.00 20,500.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,500.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 21,500.00 20,000.00 243,000.00
Bonus 12,150.00 12,150.00
Contract Labor 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 375.00 4,500.00
Total Salaries 20,375.00 20,875.00 20,875.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 20,875.00 20,375.00 20,375.00 21,875.00 32,525.00 259,650.00
Total Employee Expense 26,910.00 27,357.00 27,212.00 26,692.00 27,657.00 28,157.00 27,707.00 26,657.00 26,457.00 28,215.00 28,265.00 39,415.00 340,701.00
Insurance
Worker's Compensation 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 45.83 549.96
Officer & Director Liability 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 1,843.92
General Liab. 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 621.16 7,453.92
Total Insurance 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 820.65 9,847.80
Membership/Misc. Expense 1,000.00 3,000.00 1,500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 1,000.00 1,600.00 1,700.00 1,500.00 500.00 1,500.00 14,800.00
Office Equipment Expense
Database 3,500.00 3,500.00
Computer Maintenance 300.00 1,200.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 4,500.00
Copier Lease 1,000.00 800.00 1,500.00 600.00 500.00 800.00 1,200.00 1,000.00 700.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 700.00 10,800.00
Pitney Bowes 492.30 581.60 492.30 492.30 2,058.50
Total Office Equip Expense 1,792.30 5,500.00 1,800.00 1,481.60 800.00 1,100.00 1,992.30 1,300.00 1,000.00 1,792.30 1,300.00 1,000.00 20,858.50
Office Supplies 300.00 600.00 300.00 500.00 400.00 1,000.00 600.00 300.00 400.00 500.00 800.00 600.00 6,300.00
Postage & Delivery 500.00 300.00 800.00 1,500.00 0.00 700.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 1,500.00 0.00 500.00 6,300.00
Property Tax Expense 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 1,286.87 15,442.44
Income Tax Expense 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 2,160.00
Rent 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 180.00 i 0
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Special Events

Banquet

Golf Classic

Tomball Night

Holiday Parade

Miss Tomball Pageant
Scholarship Expense
Pageant - Other

Total Miss Tomball

Total Special Events

Telephone Expenses

Travel & Entertainment
Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Principal Building Payment
xDepreciation Expense

Net Income

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2021 Budget Overview ltem 5.
January through December 2021

TOTAL
Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Jul 21 Aug 21 Sep 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan - Dec 21
10,000.00 10,000.00
250.00 1,000.00 6,750.00 8,000.00
2,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 10,000.00
15,500.00 1,000.00 16,500.00
4,000.00 4,000.00
500.00 5,500.00 2,500.00 8,500.00
500.00 9,500.00 2,500.00 12,500.00
250.00 10,000.00 1,000.00 6,750.00 2,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 500.00 25,000.00 3,500.00 57,000.00
565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 565.00 6,780.00
60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 720.00
44,126.82 58,459.52 47,339.52 50,326.12 44,984.52 47,259.52 50,001.82 57,709.52 46,959.52 52,109.82 73,351.52 61,892.52 634,520.74
12,637.18 55,844.48 5,379.48 -13,610.37 -11,514.77 1,139.48 -3,929.57 -19,452.52 37,279.23 15,492.68 -18,658.27 -28,621.27 31,985.72
3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 36,000.00
1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 20,460.00
7,932.18 51,139.48 674.48 -18,315.37 -16,219.77 -3,565.52 -8,634.57 -24,157.52 32,574.23 10,787.68 -23,363.27 -33,326.27 -24,474.28
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Item 5.

Narrative Questions:
1. Describe the history and purpose of the organization.

Answer: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce provides resources and
empowers Tomball businesses to prosper. The value of being a GTACC member is evidenced
with research by the Shapiro Group, which shows a 63 percent increase in repeat business due
to chamber membership. Moreover, the GTACC directly impacts the Tomball area by fostering
partnerships and being visible in the community with annual events like the 2022 Tomball Night.

Incorporated in 1965, the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce has a history that began
in the 1920s. The Chamber has a reputation for actively representing and promoting the interest
of its members. As well, the Chamber is recognized throughout the region and the state for its
passionate promotion of the greater Tomball community.

The GTACC sponsors and organizes Tomball Night, the event which this application represents.
Recognized by the Houston Business Journal as an outstanding city-wide marketing event,
Tomball Night, on the first Friday in August, features an exciting evening for the entire family with
a unique nighttime parade including lighted floats, followed by fireworks. Tomball area stores and
shops remain open after hours and go all out to attract customers with door prizes, refreshments,
and free live entertainment.

2. Describe how any grant funds will be used.

Answer: Grant funds would be used to reimburse the GTACC for Tomball Night-related
expenses. The GTACC promotes sponsoring and participating Tomball businesses and
organizations through newspaper ads, articles, social media posts and magazine features. In
addition, funds are used to promote the event itself.

3. List the programs and activities for the grant year.

Answer: The Tomball Night organizers, headed by Chair Rob Greening, have been at work
this year with the goal to make this year’s event truly outstanding. Not only are Tomball
businesses and retailers encouraged to participate, but they are encouraged to stand out by
hosting independent events and contests.

A well-coordinated GTACC/local retail media campaign will get the word out to neighboring
communities and be used to promote the eagerly anticipated “Mystery Shopper” competition that
challenges participants, and rewards the winners with cash prizes.

4. Show evidence of growth in community support prior to the grant year. Include the number of
performances, exhibitions, audience sizes, services or enrollment. Be sure to include specific
information as to the percent of activities taking place within the City of Tomball.

Answer: Tomball Night is a single yearly event. This year Tomball Night will take place on
Friday, August 5, beginning at 5 p.m. Tomball Night attendance is anticipated to increase,
compared to 2021 as a result of social restrictions being lifted. The Parade of Lights had the
most participants and the largest crowd we have seen in 2021 and we anticipate this year to be
just as successful based on the number of applicants for the parade and the number of inquiries
received by attendees.
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5. How does your project/event qualify for use of Municipal Hotel Occupancy Tax funds as
defined in the Hotel Occupancy Tax Guidelines?

Answer: The 2022 Tomball Night and Parade of Lights qualifies for use of the Hotel Occupancy
Tax, Chapter 351.002 with three of the five criteria listed by the City of Tomball for this funding
request/report; in particular Listings 3,4 and 6. GTACC advertises, solicits and promotes this
event in the city of Tomball to attract tourists and potential convention delegates or registrants to
the city. The Tomball Night event encourages and promotes the arts including instrumental and
vocal music, dance, drama, folk art, and many other forms of art and music by featuring
organizations and individuals in the nighttime lighted parade. As well, the event hosts several
venues for musical performers and artists including live entertainment and live demonstrations of
various art mediums. Finally, the Tomball Night qualifies under Listing 6 with day-to-day
operations at the GTACC including supplies, salaries, office space, travel expenses and other
administrative costs directly incurred in the promotion and organization of the event and parade.

6. How do you publicize your activities? How do you evaluate these efforts and what have you
done to increase the effectiveness of your marketing efforts?

Answer: Tomball Night will be advertised in several hard copy and online publications including
The Houston Chronicle, The Tomball Potpourri and The Magnolia Potpourri. Also, social media
marketing efforts were increased this year including boosting Tomball Night posts and increasing
the social media platforms in which the event is promoted.

The GTACC evaluates the 2022 Tomball Night publicity efforts by tracking when and where an
article, photo or other event promotion is published. Marketing of Tomball Night has been
positively impacted each year when the Houston Business Journal publishes its Book of Lists
which included the event, due to its previous success in attracting large crowds.

7. Explain the public benefits to the City of Tomball that will result from your organization’s
efforts.

Answer: The public benefits to the City of Tomball resulting from the 2022 Tomball Night are
many. Expanding the city’s current focus to “Walk Tomball,” this event will bring a throng of
people to the streets of Tomball with an end-of-summer celebration suitable for all ages. Visitors
to the city are exposed to all that Tomball has to offer, including its Depot plaza, historic district,
Market Street antique district and numerous new shopping complexes. Additionally, civic booths
manned by city service departments and organizations like the Tomball Public Works, Northwest
Community Health, Tomball Fire Department and Tomball Police Department along with Lone
Star College-Tomball and the GTACC help visitors become familiar with the city of Tomball,
including its conference and meeting facilities. These visitors’ exposure and anticipated shopping
yields sales tax dollars for the city—something Tomball Night has a long history of producing
throughout the weekend. This event includes a Health & Wellness Expo which showcases the
amazing health and wellness resources in the Tomball area, thus highlighting Tomball's
dedication to the overall wellbeing of it residents.

8. What is your organization doing to bring visitors to Tomball, to stay in local hotels and
otherwise support the hospitality industry?

Answer: The 2022 Tomball Night brings tens of thousands to the city of Tomball. As the
sponsoring agency and organizer of this event, the GTACC makes hotel, motel and restaurant
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information readily available to callers who inquire about the event. Last year the GTACC
received an estimated 120 calls inquiring about Tomball Night; local lodging information was
given to all who called and brochures for local lodging and restaurants are available at the
GTACC office located at 29201 Quinn Rd., Ste. B.
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'OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

* CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
| OF =+ .

CITY OF TOMBALIL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
CHARTER NO. 215046

- The underéigned, as Seéretar’j ‘of' ‘State of the State of Texas, hereby certifies that
aupﬁcate originals of Articles of Iﬂcorporation for the above corporation duly
. signed and verified pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation

A(;t, have been received in this office Tand are found to conform to law.

 ACCORDINGLY the undersigriéd, as such Secreféry of State, and by virtue of | ;

'the authority vested in him by law, hereby issues this Certificate of Incorporation '

s

and attaches hereto a duphcate orlgmal of the Articles of Incorporatlon ~

Dated ___-__-__C[u_l_y_l.s-_-____, 18.65.. é@ ﬂ{gﬂ{ é( oy
. ‘a.ﬂv"u

‘/ Secretary of State

B ;"f"f‘v‘i.‘-"":":y:%" Pooraeatoem i . 169




ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF
CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

We, the undersigned natural persons of the age of twenty-one

(21) years of more, at least two of whom are citizens of the State
of Texas, acting as incorporators of a corporation under the Texas

Non-Profit Corporation Aet, do hereby adopt the following Articles

of Incorporation for such corporation:

ARTICLE ONE

The name of the Corporation is CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF

COMMERCE .

ARTICLE TWO

The Corporation is a non-profit corporation.

ARTICLE THREE

The period of its duration is perpetual.

ARTICLE FOUR
The purpose for which the Corporation is organized is Civiec,

providing and promoting the development of the City of Tomball, Texas.

ARTICLE FIVE

The Street Address of the initial registered office of the
corpofation is 314 Commerce Street, in Tomball, Texas, and the name

of its initial registered agent is Jesse C. Powell, whose address is

314 Commerce Street, in Tomball, Texas.

ARTICLE SIX

The number of directors, or trustees, constituting the initial

Board of Directors, or Trustees, of the Corporation is Three (3),

and the names and addreéses of the persons who are to serve as the
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initial directors, or trustees, are:

NAMES , ADDRESSES
Pete Still ‘ 719 Barbara, Tomball, Texas
Jesse C. Powell 732 James, Tomball, Texas
BillierdicLovett 408 W, Commerce, Tomball, Texas

ARTICLE SEVEN

The name and street address of each incorporator is:

Pete Still 719 Barbara, Tomball, Texas
Jesse C, Powell _ 732 James, Tomball, Texas
Bil¥ielJ,eLbvett 408 W. Commerce, Tomball, Texas

—

IN WITNESS WHEREOF we have hereto set our hands this /& Z° day

o/

of  lepize , A. D. 1965.
7 -
rrd "_;"‘ P 4 r
—7—
I~ . o = STTILL
) / .
1. sad? el A
; -nm
II
éiéf} '!'-ul
THE STATE OF TEXAS I
: |
COUNTY OF HARRIS Q
I, 7Z&«46J sc s Z/CZL, , a Notary Public, do hereby
certify that on this the /§Z° day of 4_/7/¢44u/ , 1965, personally

ILLIE
appeared before me, PETE STILL, JESSE C. POWELL and E? J. LOVETT, who

each being by me first duly sworn, severally declared that they are the
persons who signed the foregoing document as incorporatérs, and that
the statements therein contained are true.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and seal the day

and year above written,

Heoce 7.5,

Notary Public in and for Harris
County, T E X A S

FOYE A. BURKLIN
Notary Public in and far MHarris County, Tares
My Commission Expires June 1, 1967
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- STATE OF TEXAS
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

AUSTIN, TEXAS 7871 l
Crawford C. Martin
SECRETARY OF STATE : . July 2, 196 5

MR. HOWARD H, KLEIN
KleinOffice Building
311 Commerce Street
Tomball, Texas 77375

In replyvincludeﬁ
Charter No. 215046
Account No. 164647

RE: CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
TO THE ATTENTION OF THE CAPTIONED CORPORATION:

It has been our pleasure to approve and place on record the Articles of
Incorporation that created your corporation. We extend our best wishes
for success in your new venture. '

Unless shown as "EXEMPT" under Account No. above, you will be required

to file an annual franchise tax return with the Comptroller of Public
Accounts, Capitol Station, Austin, Texas, 78711, and pay the tax due
thereunder. Your first return and payment will be due within 90 days
after the end of the first corporate year. If the corporation should be
exempt under Article 12.03, Title 122A, Taxation-General, R.C.S. of
Texas, and is not shown "EXEMPT" above, you must apply to the Comptroller
for such exemption.” The SECRETARY OF STATE cannot make such a deter-—
mination for your corporation.

We suggest that you keep this letter as a reminder, or, so mark your
records that you will not unwittingly become liable for statutory
penalties for late filing and late payment. :

: Yours'very truly,

CRAWFORD C. MARTIN
Se ary of State

ROBERT L. TOWERY, Dir
Corporation Division
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4 PLEASE DIRECT
TR July 13, 1965 YOUR COMMUNICATIONS TO
. pivision _S0 FILE
TELEPHONE GR 5"1*771

. =~ Jffices of

*d H. Klein
“*ain Office Building
- T smmerce Street
T owl.li, Texas

Subject: City of Tomball Chamber of Commerce
Account No. 1,164,647
Charter No. 215046

e i Loy

--—L -\4&

Lo

<icz, cogether with the outline of the activities for the purpose of determining
itz status from & franchise tax standpoint.

A3 your requ:=st, we examined the Articles of Incorporation of this corpora-

-

IT is the opinion of this office that so long as the corporation confines
ctlvities exclusively to the purpose or purposes recited in the Articles
Incorporation, it is exempt from the franchise tax.

The Secretary of State is being furnished a& copy of this letter for his
ir“ormation.

Yours very truly, i

gank & 2@4.0,37«

ROBERT S. CALVERT
Comptroller of Public Accounts

-
"

WLE/ms : _ ST
Form No. 80-2.4k (Rev. L4/20/65) o T
cc: Corporation Division . :
Secretary of State
Austin, Texas
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Article | — Name
The name of this organization shall be the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.
Article Il — Purpose

Section 1. Vision: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce will continue
to be the business resource center for the northwest metropolitan area.

Section 2.  Mission: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce provides
resources and fosters relationships that empower businesses to prosper in
Tomball and its surrounding communities.

Article 1l — Area

The principal office of the organization shall always be located within the Tomball area.
The organization may have such offices as may from time to time be designated by the
Board of Directors.

Article IV — Limitation of Methods

This organization is incorporated under the laws of the state of Texas and shall transact
all business as the “Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.”

Article V — Membership

Section 1. Any person, association, corporation, partnership, or estate eligible for
membership may acquire more than one membership by paying the annual
dues of each such separate membership.

Section 2. New membership investments shall submit a membership application and
the appropriate fees to the Chamber. The membership application/inquiry
shall be brought before the Directors at the next scheduled Board of
Directors meeting for approval. No applicant shall be considered an
official member until approval of a majority of the votes of the Board of
Directors and application funds have been obtained.

Section 3. Any person, association, corporation, partnership, or estate holding a
membership shall be entitled to cast one vote per separate membership.

Section 4. Membership is subject to the following minimum investments.

A. The dues of each member per annum shall be an amount as
prescribed by the Board of Directors.

B. Honorary membership shall be given to individuals who have
rendered or may render the organization meritorious service and
shall have been nominated for such membership by the President

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 2 of 9

Item 5.
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Section 5.

Section 6.

or any Director and have received a majority vote from the
Directors present at the meeting when their name was proposed.
They shall not be subject to payment of dues and shall not have the
right to vote. This membership can be revoked at anytime by the
Board of Directors with advance notice to the member. The
member has the right to request a hearing before the Board of
Directors before the revocation.

Recurring membership investments shall become past due and considered
delinquent 90 days after date of billing. At the expiration of this period, if
said membership investment remains unpaid, the member shall be
removed from the rolls of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce. Members who shall be deemed delinquent or suspended shall
not be entitled to vote.

Termination of Membership

A Any member may resign from the Chamber upon notice to the
Chamber.

B. Membership shall end 90 days following the dues-paying period
unless extended by a vote of two-thirds majority of the Board of
Directors.

C. Any member may be expelled by a two-thirds vote of the Board of
Directors, at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof, for conduct
unbecoming a member or prejudicial to the aims or repute of the
Chamber, after notice and opportunity for a hearing are afforded
the member complained against.

Article VI — Meetings

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

The annual membership meeting of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce shall be held each year, the date, place, and hour to be
designated by the Board of Directors or under their authority.

Meetings of the members may be held at such times as the President or the
Board of Directors may determine, or upon written request of twenty-five
(25) percent of the members in good standing, provided that when called
otherwise than by the President or Board of Directors, the notice shall
contain a statement of the purpose of the meeting, and shall be issued at
least ten (10) days and not more than sixty (60) days preceding the
meeting. Meeting notices shall be emailed, faxed or mailed.

The Board of Directors shall meet regularly, the time and frequency to be
decided upon by majority vote of the board. Any meeting by the board
can include any director communicating by telephone as present and
participating.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 3 of 9
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Section 4.

Section 5.

By decision of the executive committee, a vote of the board upon limited
and specific issues may be conducted electronically. Or at a called
meeting, telephone participation may be allowed with board approval.

A majority of the Board of Directors at any meeting shall constitute a
quorum at that meeting. Upon notification to all voting members of a
membership meeting, those present shall constitute a quorum.

Article VIl — Referenda

Upon the written request of twenty-five (25) percent of the members in good standing,
the Board of Directors shall submit a question to members for a mail or electronic
referendum vote.

Article VII1 — Government & Leadership

Section 1.

Section 2.

A. The government of the organization, the direction of its work and
the control of its property shall be vested in a Board of Directors
consisting of fifteen members, one-third of whom shall be elected
annually for a term of three (3) years.

B. In the event that the Board of Directors determines that it is in the
best interest of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce,
additional board members may be appointed by the Board of Directors.
The term of such appointed directors shall expire at the next scheduled
annual meeting.

C. The Board of Directors shall at any time select Ex Officio
members. Ex Officio members of the Board may attend Board meetings
and take part in all discussion and can vote.

A nominating committee of three (3) members shall be selected from the
membership of the Chamber by the Board of Directors at a meeting held
not later than September 15. The nominating committee shall meet and
select five (5) members as nominees for Directors of the Chamber for
terms of three (3) years. The names of the persons nominated by the
nominating committee and approved by the board shall be published to the
members in alphabetical order. Additional nominees may be placed on the
ballot if supported by signatures of eight (8) chamber members in good
standing (dues current) and submitted within ten (10) days from the date
of publication of the nominating committee’s report. If no additional
nominations are thus made, the election of the five (5) members selected
shall have been approved by the membership. If, however, there are
additional nominations by written petition, the names of all persons
nominated shall be placed on an official ballot in alphabetical order and
brought before the membership or by mail ballot for voting. In case of a
tie vote, the Board of Directors shall make the selection.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 4 of 9
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Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

New directors shall be chosen prior to the Directors annual planning
session. New directors shall be installed at the beginning of each new
year.

The Board of Directors shall meet with the time and date to be fixed by
the Board. Absence from 40% of regular meetings per year shall be
construed as a resignation.

Any member of the Board of Directors may be expelled based on the good
faith determination by the Board or a committee authorized by the Board
to make such a determination, that the Board member has engaged in
conduct contrary or damaging to the Chamber or aims of the Chamber.
Action can be taken upon a majority vote of the Board of Directors. A
Director has the right to request a hearing before a panel of seven (7) non-
director members of the Chamber, three (3) shall be selected by the Board,
three (3) shall be selected by the member facing expulsion, and those six
(6) shall then select a single additional member. All members of the panel
must be members in good standing with the Chamber at the time of
selection. The panel shall vote on rulings before the panel by secret ballot,
and the panel’s majority ruling shall be binding.

Article IX — Officers

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Prior to the annual Board of Directors planning session, the Board shall
choose the Executive Board Members and delegate each as a Vice-Chair
to the Program of Work committees for the chamber year. The Board
shall also choose a Treasurer. Executive Board members shall be chosen
from the Directors that sit on the Board. All of the Board must be
members in good standing. Subsequently the Board shall employ a
President who is in charge of administration of the day-to-day operations
of the Chamber. The President is responsible to the Board of Directors,
and the Directors shall determine his/her compensation.

The Board of Directors may, by appointment or otherwise, provide for
such bureaus and the selection of such committees as may be deemed
advisable in promoting the object and purpose of this Chamber of
Commerce.

The individual chosen as Treasurer shall be a voting member of the Board
of Directors.

Duties & Responsibilities

A. The Chair of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of
Directors and shall be a member of all Chamber committees. It shall be
the primary responsibility of the Chair of the Board to see that the goals
and objectives of the Chamber as adopted by the Board of Directors are
carried out. The Chair of the Board may delegate these responsibilities to

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
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the various officers and directors. Subject to the approval of the Board of
Directors, the Chair of the Board shall execute all deeds, contracts, leases
and other similar documents affecting the operation of the Chamber. In
addition, the Chair of the Board shall have such other duties and exercise
such other powers as may be directed or delegated by the Board of
Directors.

B. The Chair-Elect of the Board shall be a member of all chamber
committees and shall closely observe the entire operation of the chamber
and serve as special assistant to the Chair. If the Chair is absent from a
Board meeting, the Chair-Elect of the Board shall preside at such Board
meeting. A nominating committee consisting of the immediate past Chair,
the Chair, and the Chair-Elect will nominate the incoming Chair-elect for
the next Chamber year subject to Board approval.

C. The Treasurer shall serve as Chair of the Budget Committee
appointed by the Chair of the Board. The Treasurer shall be responsible
for the safeguarding of all funds received by the Chamber and for their
proper disbursement. The Treasurer shall cause a frequent financial report
to be prepared for the Board of Directors.

D. The Vice Chairs should attend meetings of all committees within
their responsibilities and make periodic reports to the Executive Board and
the Board of Directors on the status of the goals and objectives for the
year.

E. The President shall be the chief administrative and executive
officer, shall serve as secretary to the Board of Directors, and shall cause
to be prepared special notices, agendas and minutes of meetings of the
Board. The President shall serve as advisor to the Chair of the Board and
to the Long-Range Planning Committee on program planning, and shall
assemble information and data and cause to be prepared special reports as
directed by the Chair of the Board, the Executive Committee or the Board
of Directors. With assistance of the Vice-Chairs, the President shall be
responsible for administration of the goals and objectives in accordance
with the policies and regulations of the Board of Directors. The President
shall be responsible for hiring, discharging, directing and supervising all
chamber employees.

Article X — Committees

Section 1.

The Board of Directors shall establish such committees as are necessary to
carry out the goals and objectives of the Chamber. The Chair of the Board
with advice from the President, shall appoint all committee chairs subject
to board approval. The Chair of the Board may appoint such ad hoc
committees and their chairs as deemed necessary. Such ad hoc committee
appointments and the terms of such committees shall be at the will and

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
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pleasure of the Chair of the Board, unless a different term is approved by
the Board of Directors. It shall be the function of committees to make
investigations, conduct studies and hearings, make recommendations to
the Board of Directors, and to carry on such activities as may be delegated
to them.

Section 2. No action by any member, committee, division, employee, director or
officer shall be binding upon, or constitute an expression of, the policy of
the Chamber until it has been approved or ratified by the Board of
Directors.

Article XI- Finances
Section 1. The fiscal year shall be the calendar year, January 1 through December 31.

Section 2. All money paid to the Chamber shall be kept on deposit in financial
institutions or invested in a manner approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. At the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, they may require the
Treasurer and President of this organization to furnish surety company
bonds in such amount as the Board of Directors shall deem necessary, the
costs to be paid by the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.

Section 4. With advice and counsel of the President and the Staff, the Budget
Committee shall prepare an annual budget to be submitted to the
Executive Board and the Board of Directors for approval at the December
Board Meeting.

Article XI1 — Dissolution

The Chamber shall use its funds only to accomplish the objects and purposes specified in
these bylaws, and no part of said funds shall inure, or be distributed to the members of
the Chamber. On dissolution of the Chamber, any funds remaining shall be distributed to
one or more regularly organized and qualified charitable, educational, scientific, or
philanthropic organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors.

Article X111 — Indemnification

The Chamber may, by resolution of the Board of Directors, provide for indemnification
by the Chamber of any and all of its Directors or Officers, volunteers, employees, or
former Directors or Officers against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them
in connection with the defense of any action, suite, or proceeding, in which they or any of
them are made parties, or a party, by reason of having been Directors or Officers,
volunteers, or employees of the Chamber, except in relation to matters as to which such
Director or Officer, volunteer, employees, or former Director or Officer shall be adjudged
in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the
performance of duty and to such matters as shall be settled by agreement predicated on
the existence of such liability for negligence or misconduct.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 7 of 9
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Article X1V — Parliamentary Authority

The current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall be the final source of authority in all
questions of parliamentary procedure when such rules are not inconsistent with the
bylaws of the Chamber.

Article XV — Amendments

Section 1.  These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the members in good
standing in attendance at any special meeting called for that purpose
provided that said amendments shall be plainly stated in the call for the
meeting at which they are to be considered.

Section 2. Notice of meetings at which such amendments are to be considered must
be given at least ten (10) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to
the time of the meeting.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 8 of 9
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Date
Approved Chair, Board of Directors

President

Jan, 2016 Ryan Aduddell

Bruce Hillegeist

Jan, 2017 DeniseDavis

BruceHillegeis:

Jan, 2018 Gail Randolpl

BruceHillegeis!

Jan, 2019 Jim Ros:

BruceHillegeisi

Jan, 2020 CraigBogne

BruceHillegeis!

Jan, 2021 JerrelWade

BruceHillegeisi

Jan, 2022
DawnaDysor

BruceHillegeis

Jan, 2023 ShaneBoatmal

BruceHillegeist

Jan, 2024

Jan, 2025

Jan, 2026

Jan, 2027

Jan, 2028

Jan, 2029

Jan, 2030

Jan, 2031

Jan, 2032

Jan, 2033

Jan, 2034

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
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13831 Northwest Frwy
hd Ste. 350B

ipton & Company

Certified Public Accountants e nonprofitaccta.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Tomball, Texas

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and
making inquiries of entity management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which
is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountants’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those
standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant's Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s 2020 financial statements dated May
42, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

Tipton & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

April 14, 2022
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Financial Position

Item 5.

Reviewed Audited
As of December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 459,950 $ 349,800
Accounts receivable, net 40,848 53,474
Prepaid expenses 9,835 9,422
Property and equipment, net 884,005 914,047
Total Assets $ 1,394,638 $ 1,326,743
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 1,752 $ 3,232
Deferred revenues 164,664 157,891
Long term debt 573,315 610,370
Deposits 8,300 8,300
Total Liabilities 748,031 779,793
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 646,607 546,950
Total Net Assets 646,607 546,950
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,394,638 $ 1,326,743

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of CommerCJ,:Item -

Statement of Activities

Reviewed Audited
Year ended December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020
Revenue and Support
Membership dues $ 395,831 $ 510,128
Special events revenue 139,640 45,405
Direct benefits to donors (10,151) (10,640)
Capital improvement campaign 36,000 33,000
First Friday luncheon 15,452 11,342
Networking Breakfast 4,035 1,665
City of Tomball hotel tax revenue 35,000 35,000
Rental income 64,624 64,624
Tenent reimbursements 10,635 11,990
Ads and ad commission 20,767 16,895
Interest income 2,217 3,377
Other income 66,636 11,592
Total Revenue and Support 780,686 734,378
Expenses
Program Services
Business resources 235,360 252,245
Advocacy 241,414 248,661
Total Program Services 476,774 500,906
Supporting Services
General and administrative 101,906 117,336
Fundraising 102,349 110,957
Total Supporting Services 204,255 228,293
Total Expenses 681,029 729,199
Change in Net Assets 99,657 5,179
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 546,950 541,771
Net Assets, End of Year $ 646,607 $ 546,950

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report 3 187




Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Functional Expenses

Item 5.

Program Services Supporting Services Reviewed Audited
Year ended December 31, Business Total Program General and Total Supporting 2021 2020
(with comparative totals for 2020) Resources Advocacy Services Administrative Fundraising Services Total Total
Payroll and related expenses
Salaries $ 98,426 $ 98,426 $ 196,852 $ 24,607 $ 24,607 $ 49214 $ 246,066 $ 254,302
Payroll taxes 7174 7,174 14,348 1,794 1,794 3,588 17,936 19,640
Employee benefits 15,710 15,710 31,420 3,927 3,927 7,854 39,274 39,992
Total payroll and related expenses 121,310 121,310 242,620 30,328 30,328 60,656 303,276 313,934
Other expenses
Advertising 283 283 566 283 1,980 2,263 2,829 288
Bad debt 21,520 21,520 43,040 21,520 21,520 43,040 86,080 210,368
Bank fees 789 789 1,578 3,156 3,156 6,312 7,890 4,838
Board expenses - - - 6,935 - 6,935 6,935 6,475
Building expenses 130 130 260 32 33 65 325 300
Computer maintenance 1,686 1,686 3,372 422 422 844 4,216 4,730
Contract labor 501 501 1,002 125 125 250 1,252 1,060
Depreciation 12,017 12,017 24,034 3,004 3,004 6,008 30,042 29,984
Dues and subscriptions 985 985 1,970 246 246 492 2,462 4,706
Employee development 3,853 3,853 7,706 963 963 1,926 9,632 4,170
Equipment lease 3,988 3,988 7,976 997 997 1,994 9,970 10,110
First Friday 15,142 - 15,142 - - - 15,142 9,095
Health committee 4,859 - 4,859 - - - 4,859 1,975
Insurance 3,846 3,846 7,692 962 962 1,924 9,616 9,594
Interest 12,034 12,034 24,068 3,009 3,009 6,018 30,086 32,010
Miscellaneous 4,037 5,383 9,420 4,035 - 4,035 13,455 8,095
Networking breakfast 280 - 280 - - - 280 450
Office supplies 1,954 1,954 3,908 488 488 976 4,884 4,192
Payroll service 2,209 2,209 4,418 552 552 1,104 5,522 5,122
Postage and delivery 812 406 1,218 406 1,083 1,489 2,707 1,793
Professional fees - - - 13,565 - 13,565 13,565 6,601
Rent 480 480 960 120 120 240 1,200 2,160
Repairs and maintenance 7,606 7,606 15,212 1,901 1,901 3,802 19,014 10,608
Software 1,940 1,940 3,880 485 485 970 4,850 3,508
Special events - 26,106 26,106 - 38,029 38,029 64,135 23,035
Taxes - income - - 4,515 - 4,515 4,515 436
Taxes - property 5,568 5,568 11,136 1,392 1,392 2,784 13,920 13,920
Telephone 2,616 2,616 5,232 654 654 1,308 6,540 6,536
Travel and entertainment - - - 760 - 760 760 480
Utilities 4,204 4,204 8,408 1,051 1,051 2,102 10,510 8,980
Young professionals 711 - 711 - - - 711 286
Total other expenses 114,050 120,104 234,154 71,578 82,172 153,750 387,904 425,905
Subtotal 235,360 241,414 476,774 101,906 112,500 214,406 691,180 739,839
Less: Direct benefit to donor - - - - (10,151) (10,151) (10,151) (10,640)
Total Expenses $ 235,360 $ 241414 $ 476,774 $ 101,906 $ 102,349 $ 204,255 $ 681,029 $ 729,199

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Cash Flows

Reviewed Audited
Year Ended December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 99,657 $ 5,179
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net change in operating activities:

Depreciation 30,042 29,984
Bad debt expense 86,080 210,368
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (73,454) (208,668)
Prepaid expenses (413) (229)
Accrued expenses (1,480) (2,000)
Deferred revenues 6,773 2,201
Total Adjustments 47,548 31,656
Net Change in Operating Activities 147,205 36,835

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment - (1,164)

Net Change in Investing Activities - (1,164)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Payments on long-term debt (37,055) (35,133)
Net Change in Financing Activities (37,055) (35,133)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 110,150 538
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 349,800 349,262
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 459,950 $ 349,800
Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid $ 30,086 $ 32,010
See accompanying notes and accountants' review report 5
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (the “Chamber) is a not-for-profit organization of citizens who
are investing their time and money in a community development program working together to improve the economic,
civic, and cultural fortitude of the region, community, or area. The Chamber’s mission is to provide resources and
foster relationships that empower businesses to prosper in Tomball and its surrounding communities.

The Chamber is supported through membership dues, contributions, rental income and other miscellaneous
revenue. The Chamber conducts the following programs:

e Business resources — The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value
added, quality networking events to the Chamber’s diverse membership, by ensuring inclusion through new
member mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. This
division invites members to become involved in the Chamber’s programs that will allow relationships to be
formed and sustained through a variety of networking events.

e Advocacy — The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for the Chamber’'s members and
the greater Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about issues
that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce development,
energy and healthcare.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Chamber have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Chamber reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets
that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors: net assets without
donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

e Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations and not subject to donor
restrictions. The only limits on the use of net assets without donor restrictions are the broad limits resulting
from the nature of the Chamber, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its corporate
documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements
with creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations. Assets restricted solely through
the actions of the Board of Directors are reported as net assets without donor restrictions, board-
designated.

¢ Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or use
for a purpose specified by the donor. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires,
that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-restricted endowment earnings are
released when those earnings are appropriated with spending policies and are used for the specified
purpose.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Chamber considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. The carrying values of any cash and cash equivalents
are deemed to approximate their fair values because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge
to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the allowance for
bad debts was $7,021 and $7,021, respectively.

Property and Equipment

The Chamber capitalizes all expenditures for property, plant and equipment in excess of $500. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Major improvements and renewals that extend the life of the asset
are capitalized. Purchased property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-
line method based on their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 39 years
Computers and software 3-5 years
Office equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years

Donated Assets

Donated investments and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their fair values at the date of
donation.

Donated Property and Equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at fair value at the date of donation. Such
donations are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions
of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Chamber reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. The Chamber reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Deferred Revenue

Income from membership dues and subscription fees received in advance is deferred and recognized over the
periods to which the dues and fees relate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates. The significant estimates included in the financial statements are the
estimates of useful lives used for depreciating property and equipment items.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Membership Dues

Membership dues are recognized in the applicable membership period. Any unearned amounts are included in
deferred revenue at the end of each accounting period.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b)
require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Chamber. Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Chamber with program
services and fundraising events. No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for these donated
services as the recognition criteria were not met.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses are categorized in the Statement of Activities as program services, management and general and
fundraising. The Chamber’s expenses are allocated on a functional basis among these benefited categories:

e Program service expenses: include direct and indirect (allocated) expenses for the various programs
offered by the Chamber to fulfill member investment expectations. Expenses that can be identified with a
specific program and support services are allocated directly according to their natural expenditure
classification. Other expenses, that are common to several functions, are allocated to program services
based on time and effort.

e Management and general expenses: include those expenses, ranging from office management to financial
services, that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support
and direction of the Chamber. Those expenses include the basic necessities to be an accredited, well
rounded, and effective organization.

e Fundraising expenses: represent costs incurred in connection with fundraising efforts to continue the
Chamber’s mission. The membership dues alone are not adequate enough to accomplish the Chamber’s
goals; therefore, fundraising events are held to fill the gap between membership dues and total expenses.

Advertising Cost

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
amounted to $2,829 and $288, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Chamber is operating as a not-for-profit corporation, under Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and is not subject to income taxes with the exception of unrelated business income. The Chamber conducted
unrelated business activities during the current year. Therefore, the Chamber paid $4,515 and $436 for federal
income taxes in the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Chamber applies the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, which prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken
or expected to be taken in a tax return. Topic 740 also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures and transition. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, no
uncertain tax positions were identified.

NOTE 2 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Chamber maintains its cash balances in a local bank. These balances are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Management periodically assesses the financial condition of the
financial institutions and believes that any possible credit risk is minimal. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
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Item 5.

Notes to Financial Statements

Chamber had approximately $210,000 and $100,000, respectively, of cash balances that were not insured by the
FDIC. The Chamber has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes the risk of future loss is
mitigated by monitoring the balances and the financial institutions where the cash is deposited.

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

Reviewed Audited
2021 2020
Building and improvements $1,112,383 $1,112,383
Computers and software 17,517 17,517
Office equipment 13,102 13,102
Furniture and fixtures 17,990 17,990
Land 145,000 145,000
Total property and equipment, gross 1,305,992 1,305,992
Less: Accumulated depreciation (421,987) (391,945)
Total property and equipment, net $884,005 $914,047

Depreciation expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $30,042 and
$29,984, respectively.

NOTE 4 — RENTAL INCOME

The Chamber leases office space to three other organizations under four to five year leases as follows:

Current monthly Lease Renewal

rent Lease initiation expiration Lease renewal expiration
TEDC $1,506 9/1/2008 10/31/2013 11/1/2013 10/31/2018
11/1/2018 10/31/2023
TRHF $3,729 11/1/2012 10/31/2017 11/1/2017 10/31/2022
Envirocon $150 4/1/2016 3/31/2020 4/1/2020 3/31/2024

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, rental income was $64,624 and $64,624, respectively.
Future minimum rentals expected to be collected are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 57,165
2023 16,860
2024 450
Total $ 74,475

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS

The Chamber leases office equipment under noncancelable leases that expire in 2024 and 2026. For the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the total rental expense under these leases was $9,970 and $10,110,
respectively. These expenses are included in equipment lease expense in the Statement of Functional Expenses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 6,789
2023 6,651
2024 2,749
2025 1,969
2026 492
Thereafter -
Total $18,650

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The Chamber had a note payable due in monthly installments to a financial institution for an office building in the
amount of $6,729 for 83 months beginning January 10, 2010 through November 10, 2016. This note was secured
by the Quinn Road office building, with interest at 5%. On December 10, 2016, a balloon payment of any unpaid
principal and interest became due and payable, at which time the loan was modified to require monthly installments
of $5,595 at the same interest rate and terms and to become due and payable on December 10, 2023. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balance was $573,315 and $610,370, respectively.

Future scheduled maturities of the note payable is as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 38,885
2023 40,874
Thereafter 493,556
Total $573,315

NOTE 7 — LIQUIDITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
one year of December 31, 2021, comprise the following:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $459,950

Accounts receivable, net 40,848
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year $500,798

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Chamber
considers all expenditures related to its ongoing program activities, as well as the conduct of services undertaken
to support those activities, to be general expenditures. None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other
contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of
financial position date. The Chamber sets a goal of having financial assets on hand to meet a minimum of 90 days
of normal operating expenses, which are, on average, around $56,000. As part of its liquidity management, the
Chamber has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations become due.
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 8 — CONCENTRATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, approximately fifty-one percent (51%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and
support came from membership dues. For the year ended December 31, 2020, approximately sixty-nine percent
(69%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and support came from membership dues.

The Chamber conducts its operations solely in the greater Tomball area, and, therefore, is subject to risks from
changes in local economic conditions. A downturn in the local economy could cause a decrease in membership
dues and revenue.

NOTE 9 — FEDERAL COVID RELIEF

On February 25, 2021, the Chamber received $49,436 under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act’). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses and are forgivable if the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains average payroll levels. The Organization applied for forgiveness and in
August 2021, was notified that the advance was forgiven in full. The proceeds have been recognized as other
income during the year ended December 31, 2021.

NOTE 10 - CHAMBER MEMBERSHIP ABSORPTION AGREEMENT

In 2021, the Spring-Klein Chamber of Commerce (SKCC) ceased operations. The Chamber entered into an
agreement with SKCC to absorb their current members and honor the remaining membership benefits. No assets
or liabilities were transferred to the Chamber as part of the agreement.

NOTE 11 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Organization continues to evaluate current economic conditions and
the impact on the Organization’s operations for the year ended December 31, 2021, as the long-term effects of the
pandemic are uncertain.

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through April 14, 2022, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Tomball, Texas

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce as of December 31, 2020, and the changes in net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Greater Tomball Area Chamber
of Commerce and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based

on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously reviewed Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s 2019 financial statements dated
September 22, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
which it has been derived.

Tipton & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

May 24, 2021
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Statement of Financial Position

As of December 31, Audited Reviewed
(with comparative totals for 2019) 2020 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 349,800 $ 349,262
Accounts receivable, net 53,474 55,174
Prepaid expenses 9,422 9,193
Property and equipment, net 914,047 942,867
Total Assets $ 1,326,743 $ 1,356,496
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 3,232 § 5,232
Deferred revenues 157,891 155,690
Long term debt 610,370 645,503
Deposits 8,300 8,300
Total Liabilities 779,793 814,725
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 546,950 541,771
Total Net Assets 546,950 541,771
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,326,743 $ 1,356,496

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Activities

Year ended December 31,
(with comparative totals for 2019)

Audited Reviewed
2020 2019

Revenue and Support
Membership dues
Special events revenue
Less: Cost of direct benefits to donors

$ 510,128 $ 480,171
45,405

(10,640)

Special events revenue, net 34,765 132,345
Capital improvement campaign 33,000 36,000
First Friday luncheon 11,342 41,829
Networking Breakfast 1,665 4,992
City of Tomball hotel tax revenue 35,000 35,000
Rental income 64,624 64,624
Tenent reimbursements 11,990 9,662
Ads and ad commission 16,895 15,389
In-kind donations - 28,795
Interest income 3,377 5,450
Other income 11,592 11,535
Total Revenue and Support 734,378 865,792
Expenses
Program Services
Business resources 252,245 282,361
Advocacy 248,661 273,616
Total Program Services 500,906 555,977
Supporting Services
General and administrative 117,336 111,043
Fundraising 110,957 105,901
Total Supporting Services 228,293 216,944
Total Expenses 729,199 772,921
Change in Net Assets 5,179 92,871
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 541,771 448,900

Net Assets, End of Year

$ 546,950 $ 541,771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Program Services Supporting Services Audited Reviewed
Year ended December 31, Business Total Program General and Total Supporting 2020 2019
(with comparative totals for 2019) Resources Advocacy Services Administrative ~ Fundraising Services Total Total
T’ayroll and related expenses
Salaries $ 101,721 $ 101,721 $ 203,442 $ 25430 $ 25430 $ 50,860 $ 254,302 $ 253,742
Payroll taxes 7,856 7,856 15,712 1,964 1,964 3,928 19,640 18,734
Employee benefits 15,997 15,997 31,994 3,999 3,999 7,998 39,992 29,188
Total payroll and related expenses 125,574 125,574 251,148 31,393 31,393 62,786 313,934 301,664
Other expenses
Advertising 29 29 58 29 201 230 288 24,443
Bad debt 52,592 52,592 105,184 52,592 52,592 105,184 210,368 36,226
Bank fees 484 484 968 1,935 1,935 3,870 4,838 10,796
Board expenses - - - 6,475 - 6,475 6,475 3,964
Building expenses 120 120 240 30 30 60 300 300
Computer maintenance 1,892 1,892 3,784 473 473 946 4,730 3,310
Contract labor 424 424 848 106 106 212 1,060 3,933
Depreciation 11,993 11,993 23,986 2,999 2,999 5,998 29,984 30,132
Dues and subscriptions - 4,706 4,706 - - - 4,706 3,465
Employee development 1,668 1,668 3,336 417 417 834 4,170 9,875
Equipment lease 4,044 4,044 8,088 1,011 1,011 2,022 10,110 14,001
First Friday 9,095 - 9,095 - - - 9,095 44,033
Health committee 1,975 - 1,975 - - - 1,975 5,670
Insurance 3,838 3,838 7,676 959 959 1,918 9,594 8,488
Interest 12,804 12,804 25,608 3,201 3,201 6,402 32,010 33,780
Membership development - - - - - - - 62,397
Miscellaneous 2,429 3,239 5,668 2,427 - 2,427 8,095 20,653
Networking breakfast 450 - 450 - - - 450 1,456
Office supplies 1,677 1,677 3,354 419 419 838 4,192 6,404
Payroll service 2,049 2,049 4,098 512 512 1,024 5,122 4,452
Postage and delivery 538 269 807 269 717 986 1,793 5,840
Professional fees - - - 6,601 - 6,601 6,601 14,820
Rent 864 864 1,728 216 216 432 2,160 2,160
Repairs and maintenance 4,243 4,243 8,486 1,061 1,061 2,122 10,608 24,618
Software 1,403 1,403 2,806 351 351 702 3,508 3,382
Special events - 2,975 2,975 - 20,060 20,060 23,035 75,118
Taxes - income - - - 436 - 436 436 2,160
Taxes - property 5,568 5,568 11,136 1,392 1,392 2,784 13,920 13,920
Telephone 2,614 2,614 5,228 654 654 1,308 6,536 6,812
Travel and entertainment - - - 480 - 480 480 702
Utilities 3,592 3,592 7,184 898 898 1,796 8,980 10,620
Young professionals 286 - 286 - - - 286 814
Total other expenses 126,671 123,087 249,758 85,943 90,204 176,147 425,905 488,744
Subtotal 252,245 248,661 500,906 117,336 121,597 238,933 739,839 790,408
Less: Direct benefit to donor - - - - (10,640) (10,640) (10,640) (17,487)
Total Expenses $ 252,245 $ 248,661 $ 500,906 $ 117,336 $ 110,957 $ 228,293 $ 729,199 $ 772,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, Audited Reviewed
(with comparative totals for 2019) 2020 2019

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 5179 $ 92,871
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net change in operating activities:

Depreciation 29,984 30,132
Bad debt expense 210,368 36,226
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (208,668) (39,867)
Prepaid expenses (229) (7,973)
Accrued expenses (2,000) 1,956
Deferred revenues 2,201 30,178
Total Adjustments 31,656 50,652
Net Change in Operating Activities 36,835 143,523
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (1,164) (6,126)
Net Change in Investing Activities (1,164) (6,126)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Payments on long-term debt (35,133) (36,000)
Net Change in Financing Activities (35,133) (36,000)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 538 101,397
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 349,262 247,865
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 349,800 $ 349,262
Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid $ 32,010 $ 35,650
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 6
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (the “Chamber) is a not-for-profit organization of citizens who
are investing their time and money in a community development program working together to improve the economic,
civic, and cultural fortitude of the region, community, or area. The Chamber’s mission is to provide resources and
foster relationships that empower businesses to prosper in Tomball and its surrounding communities.

The Chamber is supported through membership dues, contributions, rental income and other miscellaneous
revenue. The Chamber conducts the following programs:

e Business resources — The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value
added, quality networking events to the Chamber’s diverse membership, by ensuring inclusion through new
member mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. This
division invites members to become involved in the Chamber’s programs that will allow relationships to be
formed and sustained through a variety of networking events.

e Advocacy — The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for the Chamber’s members and
the greater Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about issues
that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce development,
energy and healthcare.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Chamber have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Chamber reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets
that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors: net assets without
donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

e Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations and not subject to donor
restrictions. The only limits on the use of net assets without donor restrictions are the broad limits resulting
from the nature of the Chamber, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its corporate
documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements
with creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations. Assets restricted solely through
the actions of the Board of Directors are reported as net assets without donor restrictions, board-
designated.

¢ Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or use
for a purpose specified by the donor. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires,
that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-restricted endowment earnings are
released when those earnings are appropriated with spending policies and are used for the specified
purpose.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Chamber considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. The carrying values of any cash and cash equivalents
are deemed to approximate their fair values because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge
to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the allowance for
bad debts was $7,021 and $7,021, respectively.

Property and Equipment

The Chamber capitalizes all expenditures for property, plant and equipment in excess of $500. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Major improvements and renewals that extend the life of the asset
are capitalized. Purchased property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-
line method based on their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 39 years
Computers and software 3-5 years
Office equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years

Donated Assets

Donated investments and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their fair values at the date of
donation.

Donated Property and Equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at fair value at the date of donation. Such
donations are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions
of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Chamber reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. The Chamber reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Deferred Revenue

Income from membership dues and subscription fees received in advance is deferred and recognized over the
periods to which the dues and fees relate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual
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Notes to Financial Statements

results could differ from those estimates. The significant estimates included in the financial statements are the
estimates of useful lives used for depreciating property and equipment items.

Membership Dues

Membership dues are recognized in the applicable membership period. Any unearned amounts are included in
deferred revenue at the end of each accounting period.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b)
require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Chamber. Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Chamber with program
services and fundraising events. No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for these donated
services as the recognition criteria were not met.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses are categorized in the Statement of Activities as program services, management and general and
fundraising. The Chamber’s expenses are allocated on a functional basis among these benefited categories:

e Program service expenses: include direct and indirect (allocated) expenses for the various programs
offered by the Chamber to fulfill member investment expectations. Expenses that can be identified with a
specific program and support services are allocated directly according to their natural expenditure
classification. Other expenses, that are common to several functions, are allocated to program services
based on time and effort.

e Management and general expenses: include those expenses, ranging from office management to financial
services, that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support
and direction of the Chamber. Those expenses include the basic necessities to be an accredited, well
rounded, and effective organization.

e Fundraising expenses: represent costs incurred in connection with fundraising efforts to continue the
Chamber’s mission. The membership dues alone are not adequate enough to accomplish the Chamber’s
goals; therefore, fundraising events are held to fill the gap between membership dues and total expenses.

Advertising Cost

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
amounted to $288 and $24,443, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Chamber is operating as a not-for-profit corporation, under Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and is not subject to income taxes with the exception of unrelated business income. The Chamber conducted
unrelated business activities during the current year. Therefore, the Chamber paid $436 and $2,160 for federal
income taxes in the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Chamber applies the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, (formerly FASB Interpretation No. 48
(FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109), which
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures and transition. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, no uncertain tax positions were identified.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments — ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (formerly SFAS 157),
defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in the principal
or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The valuation techniques required by ASC 820 are based upon observable and unobservable inputs, and ASC 820
establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The three levels
of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

e Level | - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market is a market in
which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. Level | assets include cash and cash equivalents with a fair value at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 of $349,800 and $349,262, respectively.

e Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level |, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

e Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity.

The asset’s or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used are to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

NOTE 2 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Chamber maintains its cash balances in a local bank. These balances are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Management periodically assesses the financial condition of the
financial institutions and believes that any possible credit risk is minimal. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Chamber had approximately $100,000 and $99,000, respectively, of cash balances that were not insured by the
FDIC. The Chamber has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes the risk of future loss is
mitigated by monitoring the balances and the financial institutions where the cash is deposited..

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

Audited Reviewed
2020 2019
Building and improvements $1,112,383 $1,112,383
Computers and software 17,517 16,353
Office equipment 13,102 13,102
Furniture and fixtures 17,990 17,990
Land 145,000 145,000
Total property and equipment, gross 1,305,992 1,304,828
Less: Accumulated depreciation (391,945) (361,961)
Total property and equipment, net $914,047 $942,867

Depreciation expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $29,984 and
$30,132, respectively.
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NOTE 4 — RENTAL INCOME

The Chamber leases office space to three other organizations under four to five year leases as follows:

Current monthly Lease Renewal

rent Lease initiation expiration Lease renewal expiration
TEDC $1,506 9/1/2008 10/31/2013 11/1/2013 10/31/2018
11/1/2018 10/31/2023
TRHF $3,729 11/1/2012 10/31/2017 11/1/2017 10/31/2022
Envirocon $150 4/1/2016 3/31/2020 4/1/2020 3/31/2024

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, rental income was $64,624 and $64,624, respectively.
Future minimum rentals are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $62,624
2022 57,165
2023 16,860
2024 450
Total $137,099

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS

The Chamber has two noncancelable operating leases for office equipment. The terms of the leases vary from 36
to 60 months beginning in 2015 and expiring in 2021. The monthly rental payments are $393 and $210 plus
maintenance costs. Both leases were renewed subsequent to year end. For the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, the total rental expense under these leases was $10,110 and $14,001, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $6,788
2022 6,651
2023 6,651
2024 2,749
2025 1,969
Thereafter 492
Total $25,300

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The Chamber had a note payable due in monthly instaliments to a financial institution for an office building in the
amount of $6,729 for 83 months beginning January 10, 2010 through November 10, 2016. This note was secured
by the Quinn Road office building, with interest at 5%. On December 10, 2016, a balloon payment of any unpaid
principal and interest became due and payable, at which time the loan was modified to require monthly installments
of $5,595 at the same interest rate and terms and to become due and payable on December 10, 2023. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance was $610,370 and $645,503, respectively.

11
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Future scheduled maturities of the note payable is as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $36,992
2022 38,885
2023 40,874
Thereafter 493,619
Total $610,370

NOTE 7 - LIQUIDITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
one year of December 31, 2020, comprise the following:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $349,800

Accounts receivable, net 53,474
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year $403,274

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Chamber
considers all expenditures related to its ongoing program activities, as well as the conduct of services undertaken
to support those activities, to be general expenditures. None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other
contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of
financial position date. The Chamber sets a goal of having financial assets on hand to meet a minimum of 90 days
of normal operating expenses, which are, on average, around $56,000. As part of its liquidity management, the
Chamber has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations become due.

NOTE 8 — CONCENTRATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2020, approximately sixty-nine percent (69%) of the Chamber’s total revenue
and support came from membership dues. For the year ended December 31, 2019, approximately fifty-five percent
(55%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and support came from membership dues.

The Chamber conducts its operations solely in the greater Tomball area, and, therefore, is subject to risks from
changes in local economic conditions. A downturn in the local economy could cause a decrease in membership
dues and revenue.

NOTE 9 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the Chamber has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through May 24, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. In
early 2020, an outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) emerged globally. The spread of COVID-19
and related global responses have caused material disruptions to many economies around the world, resulting in
an economic slowdown. Global equity markets have also experienced significant volatility and weakness. Although
governments and central banks have reacted with interventions designed to stabilize economic conditions, the
duration and extent of the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak remains unclear.
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On February 25, 2021, the Chamber received $49,436 under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act’). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses and are forgivable if the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains average payroll levels. Any unforgiven portion of the PPP loan will be
payable over two years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first six months. While the
Chamber believes its use of the PPP loan proceeds meet the conditions of forgiveness, it is possible the Chamber
may be ineligible for forgiveness of the loan, in whole or in part.

The Chamber has determined that these events are non-adjusting subsequent events. Accordingly, the financial
position and statement of activities as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 have not been adjusted to
reflect their impact. As of May 24, 2021, the virus and related responses have caused disruptions to the Chamber's
operations through cancelled events and reduced membership dues, and the Chamber expects these disruptions
to negatively impact its operating results. However, the ultimate impact of COVID-19 is not reasonably estimable at
this time.
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2021-2022 Board Meetings

Wednesday, October 13 — Board Retreat

Time: 9:00 am — 5:00 pm

Location: Tomball ISD Event Center
Wednesday, November 17 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, December 15 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, January 19 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, February 16 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, March 16 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, April 20 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, May 18 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, June 15 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, July 20 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)

Item 5.
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Wednesday, August 17 — Board Meeting

Item 5.

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, September 21 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
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Job Title: PRESIDENT
Department: N/A

Reports To: Board of Directors
Approved By: Board of Directors

Approved Date: _May 20,2015

Revised Date:

The President, as the chief administrative executive plans, organizes, directs and controls the Chamber’s

§ Eiqﬁ%:ﬁ) (ﬂ;@ﬁ economic development and public policy activities and responds to the needs of its members
within-available and agreed upon financial resources. The President develops and maintains collaborative
working relationships between the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce and other key business and
public policy organizations, other area chambers of commerce and other organizations to foster a nurturing
business environment for members. The President delegates portions of his/her responsibilities consistent
with sound operations and authorized policies and procedures (together with proportionate authority for their
fulfillment through subordinate managers responsible for developing operational strategies that ensure the
flawless execution of the Chamber's internal affairs) in support of the chamber's external goals for business
and membership growth.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Strategic
e Direct development of short and long range objectives, policies, budgets, and operating plans for the
organization and oversees their consistent interpretation, implementation and achievement.
e Oversee the development of established policies, systems and processes for the proper,
consistent, and efficient execution of financial and operational activities, in compliance with all
relevant internal, local, state, and federal guidelines.
e  Work with committees to identify issues and needs and develop plans to address them.

2. Managerial

e Develop and ensure successful implementation of the Chamber’s multi-year strategic plan and the
corresponding annual business plan as approved by the Board of Directors.

e Integrate the needs and constraints of other functional/departmental managers and directors into
planning and execution of day-to-day operations.

e Ensure activities meet with chamber requirements for quality management, health and safety, legal
stipulations, environmental policies and general duty of care.

e Manage and develop direct reporting staff, including establishing and enforcing accountability
guidelines, directing and supervising staff day-to-day activities, training, and recruiting in line with
the Operational Plan and chamber goals and guidelines.

e Delegate and outsource activities as appropriate to meet goals and deliverables in the most efficient
and productive manner.

3. Financial
e Advise the Board of Directors of the Chamber's financial activities including cash flow, expenditures,
billing and event budgeting.
e Monitor accounting procedures and records in accordance with relevant internal and external
guidelines, including an annual audit.

e Approve disbursements, co-sign checks with the officers and maintain general control of expenditures.
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Item 5.

4. Administrative
e Employ staff necessary to carry out the work of the organization.
e Conduct employee evaluations in conjunction with the Vice President.
e Monitor the established employee benefits packages, payroll, tax deductions, and appropriate
records as approved by the Board of Directors, and in compliance with local, state, and federal HR
guidelines.

5. Communication

e Act as primary spokesperson for the organization.

e Maintain an open line of communication with the Board of Directors, providing objective and factual
input regarding relevant operational and financial activities to facilitate informed decision making.

e Maintain and develop effective communications and relations with other community leaders, other
organizations, and elected officials.

e  Work closely with Communications Director to ensure all information that is published by and through
the Chamber is correct, timely, addressed to the proper parties and/or audience, and in line with
chamber, local, state, and federal guidelines.

6. Self-Development

e Conduct all business in an ethical and professional manner.

e Keep abreast of new developments in community, legislation, Board of Directors, the membership
base, and any other area that could affect the Chamber’s operations.

e Know and understand the federal, state, and local laws which govern the different aspects of chamber
activities.

e Attend training seminars and courses as requested by the Board of Directors, or required by
developments in regulatory bodies.

QUALIFICATIONS

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE

B.A. or B.S. from accredited college.

Five (5) years experience as a successful business leader, familiarity with public relations and marketing,
and management experience.

LANGUAGE SKILLS
Ability to read and write legibly. Ability to document numbers quickly without transposing or dropping digits.
Ability to communicate verbally in English.

REASONING ABILITY

Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out moderately complex instructions. Ability to keep
track of, and organize, numerous and varied time sensitive tasks and concurrently deal with frequent urgent
situations requiring immediate decision and action.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
Ability to work irregular hours, evenings and weekends.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to work with computers; stand; walk;
sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; and talk or hear. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and
ability to adjust focus.
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WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The President is required to wear proper/approved work attire at all times.

NOTE:

THIS IS NOT NECESSARILY AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST OF RESPONSIBILITIES, SKILLS, DUTIES,
REQUIREMENTS, EFFORTS, OR WORKING CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE JOB. WHILE
THIS LIST IS INTENDED TO BE AN ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE CURRENT JOB, THE
CHAMBER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE JOB TO
REQUIRE THAT ADDITIONAL OR DIFFERENT TASKS BE PERFORMED WHEN
CIRCUMSTANCES CHANGE (i e, EMERGENCIES, CHANGES IN PERSONNEL, WORK LOAD,
RUSH JOBS, OR TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS).

I have read and fully understand the contents of this job description. | understand the responsibilities,
requirements and duties expected of me. | also understand that the job description does not constitute a
contract of employment nor alter my status as an at-will employee. | have the right to terminate my
employment at any time and for any reason, and the Chamber has a similar right.

Employee's Name Employee's Signature Date

Supervisor's Name Supervisor's Signature  Date

THE GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE IS
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

JOB DESCRIPTION

Job Title: VICE PRESIDENT OF OPERATIONS (U.S Chamber job code U105)
Department: N/A

Reports To: PRESIDENT

Prepared By: Pascale Nicolet-Smith — TOP solutions

Prepared Date: 1-10-2007

Approved By: BRUCE HILLEGEIST - PRESIDENT

Approved Date:

Revised Date:

Item 5.

JOB DEFINITION

The Vice President of Operations serves as the Chief Operating Officer, ensuring execution of the day-to-day
business operations of the organization, including policy development and management of financial activities and
personnel. The Vice President of Operations is responsible for developing operational strategies that ensure
the flawless execution of the chamber's internal affairs in support of the chamber's external goals for business
and membership growth.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Strategic
e Contribute to development of strategic plan as a member of executive team.
e Plan, develop and implement strategy for operational management and execution so as to meet
agreed Chamber goals within agreed budgets and timeframes.
e Develop and establish policies, systems and processes for the proper, consistent, and efficient
execution of financial and operational activities, in compliance with all relevant internal, local, state,
and federal guidelines.

2. Managerial

e Develop and implement Annual Operational Plan that defines deliverables, resource requirements,
processes, and timeframes for chamber driven activities.

e Integrate the needs and constraints of other functional/departmental managers and directors into
planning and execution of day-to-day operations.

e Ensure activities meet with chamber requirements for quality management, health and safety, legal
stipulations, environmental policies and general duty of care.

e Manage and develop direct reporting staff, including establishing and enforcing accountability
guidelines, directing and supervising staff day-to-day activities, training, and recruiting in line with
Operational Plan and chamber goals and guidelines.

e Delegate and outsource activities as appropriate to meet goals and deliverables in the most efficient
and productive manner.

3. Financial
e Plan, Develop, and manage annual budget with Board of Directors.
e Oversee the chamber's financial activities including managing and controlling cash flow,
expenditures, billing and event budgeting.
e Maintain proper accounting procedures and records in accordance with relevant internal and external
guidelines, including and annual audit.
e Keep and distribute financial notes, records, and reports to President and the Board of Directors.
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4. Administrative

e Manage and maintain appropriate records for company insurance, contracts and agreements,
corporate level negotiations (e.g. premises), vendors, regulatory bodies relationships and strategies,
approvals and accreditations.

e Establish and maintain appropriate IT and communication systems to ensure financial records,
membership databases, web presence and all communication channels are functional and meet
chamber goals and guidelines.

e Establish and manage employee benefits packages, payroll, tax deductions, and appropriate records
as approved by the Board of Directors, and in compliance with local, state, and federal HR guidelines

5. Communication

e Maintain an open line of communication with Chamber executives and Board of Directors, providing
objective and factual input regarding relevant operational and financial activities, to facilitate informed
decision making.

e  Work closely with Communications Director to ensure all information that is published by and through
the chamber is correct, timely, addressed to the proper parties and/or audience, and in line with
chamber, local, state, and federal guidelines.

e Maintain appropriate communication with direct report staff, ensuring they have the
necessary information to perform their day-to-day work effectively.

6. Self-Development

e Conduct all business in an ethical and professional manner.

o Keep abreast of new developments in community, legislation, Board of Directors, membership
base, and any other area that could affect the chamber operations.

¢ Know and understand the federal, state, and local laws which govern the different aspects of chamber
activities.

e Attend training seminars and courses as requested by the President and/or Board of Directors,
or required by developments in regulatory bodies.

QUALIFICATIONS

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE

B.A. or B.S. from accredited college.

Five (5) years administrative, accounting, and project management experience, preferably in a business
oriented not-for-profit organization.

LANGUAGE SKILLS
Ability to read and write legibly. Ability to document numbers quickly without transposing or dropping digits.
Ability to communicate verbally in English.

REASONING ABILITY

Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out moderately complex instructions. Ability to keep
track of, and organize, numerous and varied time sensitive tasks and concurrently deal with frequent urgent
situations requiring immediate decision and action.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
Ability to work irregular hours, evenings and weekends.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Item 5.
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While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to work with computers; stand; walk;
sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; and talk or hear. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and
ability to adjust focus.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The Vice President of Operations is required to wear proper/approved work attire at all times.

NOTE:

THIS IS NOT NECESSARILY AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST OF RESPONSIBILITIES, SKILLS, DUTIES,
REQUIREMENTS, EFFORTS, OR WORKING CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE JOB. WHILE
THIS LIST IS INTENDED TO BE AN ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE CURRENT JOB, THE
CHAMBER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE JOB TO
REQUIRE THAT ADDITIONAL OR DIFFERENT TASKS BE PERFORMED WHEN
CIRCUMSTANCES CHANGE (i e, EMERGENCIES, CHANGES IN PERSONNEL, WORK LOAD,
RUSH JOBS, OR TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS).

I have read and fully understand the contents of this job description. | understand the responsibilities,
requirements and duties expected of me. | also understand that the job description does not constitute a
contract of employment nor alter my status as an at-will employee. | have the right to terminate my
employment at any time and for any reason, and the chamber has a similar right.

Employee's Name Employee's Signature Date

Supervisor's Name Supervisor's Signature  Date

THE GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 1S
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.
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THE

THE HARTFORD
BUSINESS SERVICE CENTER
3600 WISEMAN BLVD

HARTFORD SAN ANTONIO TX 78251

City of Tomball
401 MARKET ST
TOMBALL TX 77375

Account Information:

Policy Holder Details :

GREATER TOMBALL AREA
CHAMBE OF COMMERCE

Item 5.

June 1, 2022

Q Contact Us

Need Help?

Start a live chat online or call us at
(866) 467-8730.

We’'re here weekdays from 8:00 AM to
8:00 PM ET.

Enclosed please find a Certificate Of Insurance for the above referenced Policyholder. Please contact us if you have any

guestions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Your Hartford Service Team

WLTRO05
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) |

06/01/2(

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLD

Item 5.

THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE
POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S),
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not
confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER CONTACT
HIGGINBOTHAM INS AGENCY INC/PHS NAME:
61611737 PHONE (866) 467-8730 FAX (888) 443-6112
(AIC, No, Ext): (A/C, No):
The Hartford Business Service Center
3600 Wiseman Blvd E-MAIL
San Antonio, TX 78251 ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#
INSURED INSURER A : Hartford Lloyd's Insurance Company 38253
GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBE OF COMMERCE INSURER B :
292201 QUINN STEB
INSURER C :
TOMBALL TX 77375
INSURERD :
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL | SUBR POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS
LTR INSR_|WVD (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/Y YYY)
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
|CLAIMS-_MAD'I% OceuR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $300'000
X |General Liability MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000
A X 61 SBA VM8139 12/20/2021 | 12/20/2022 | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
PRO-
L POLICY I:l kot LoC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000
OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
ﬁTOMOBlLE LIABILITY 2 accident $1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED ]
A | |AuTos AUTOS 61 SBA VM8139 12/20/2021 | 12/20/2022 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
| HIRED x| NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
| 7 | AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
UMBRELLA LIAB | | OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-
MADE AGGREGATE
DED| |RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION |PER | |OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER
ANY YN E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE N/ A
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? I: E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
im Limi 5,000
A |EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 61 SBA VM8139 122012021 | 127202022 | Each Claim Limit $
LIABILITY Aggregate Limit $5,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Those usual to the Insured's Operations. Certificate holder is an additional insured per the Business Liability Coverage Form SS0008 attached to this
policy.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
City of Tomball SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
401 MARKET ST BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED
TOMBALL TX 77375 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Item 5.

Vision Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce will continue to be the business
resource center for the northwest Houston metropolitan area.

R.E.A.L. (Core) Values

Relationship
Connecting members for lasting relationships that promote growth and enhance success.
Education
Promoting development of our community through personal and business education.
Advocacy
Partnering with business and government to advocate for the community.
Legacy
Establishing the standards of tomorrow guided by the cornerstone of tradition.

Mission Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce provides resources
and fosters relationships that empower businesses to prosper in
Tomball and its surrounding communities.

Diversity Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce is committed to advancing the values
and benefits of diversity, equity and inclusion and believes it takes every member of the
community to maintain a thriving economy.

Representing

City of Tomball, Creekside, Decker Prairie, Hufsmith, Korhville, Lakewood,
Northpointe, Pinehurst, Rose Hill, Spring-Klein & Stagecoach

Critical Goals

Advance Region's Economy
Promote and enhance a vibrant, diverse and sustainable economy.

Improve Quality of Life
Foster a high-ranking quality of life for all residents.

Enhance Members' Success
Provide targeted services, events and programs.

Organization Improvement
Position the organization and its staff for long term success.
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 2
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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Business Resources Division

The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value added, quality
networking events to GTACC’s diverse membership by ensuring inclusion through new member
mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. The division
invites members to become involved in GTACC programs that will allow relationships to be formed
and sustained through a variety of networking events.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Business Resources and includes:

First Friday Luncheon, Networking Breakfast, Young Professionals, Ambassadors,
Business After Hours, Tomball Together, and Women’s Committee

Advocacy Division
The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for GTACC members and the greater
Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about
issues that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce
development, energy, and healthcare.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Advocacy and includes:

Government & Legislative Affairs Committee, Health & Wellness Alliance, Mobility &
Transportation Committee, Business & Education Partnership, Leadership North Houston,
Citizen of Year, Tomball Tidings, and Collaboration with City & Community partners

Prosperity Division
The Prosperity Division oversees the revenue generating activities that support the economic
activities of the GTACC. By supporting these quality events, the GTACC brings people together,
enhances Tomball’s overall quality of life, and provides many fundraising opportunities. All events
listed carry on the excellent reputation that the GTACC has earned statewide — events that attract tens
of thousands of visitors to the Tomball community. This division also concentrates on pursuing
various avenues to increase membership growth.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Prosperity and includes:

Membership Growth, Tomball Holiday Parade, Miss Tomball Pageant, Tomball Night,
Chairman’s Ball, and the Golf Classic

Operations Division

The Operations Division is responsible for the administrative oversight of the Greater Tomball Area
Chamber of Commerce’s financial, facilities, and marketing operations. The division also ensures the
Chamber’s compliance with all applicable internal and external rules, regulations, and guidelines.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Operations and includes:
Marketing, Accreditation, By-laws, Facilities, and Finances

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 3

2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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The GTACC Board of Directors will yearly develop an annual action plan to

focus our efforts each year. We will keep in mind our mission, vision and value
statements along with our long-term goals in development of this plan each year.

2022 Action Plan

Deliver Value to Members

Business Resources

Item 5.

1. Update value-based membership tiers Staff 03/01/22
2. Plan for showcasing members across multiple
communication platforms Board 03/01/22
3. Segment membership by interests for better engagement Board
4. Retain 50% of Spring-Klein Chamber memberships Board 12/31/22
Growth Prosperity
1. Increase membership % Board 12/31/22
2. Support Membership Director with quality leads Board monthly
3. Develop & implement effective on-boarding system to
improve first-year retentionby % Board 04/01/22
4. Increase membership investments at renewal by % Board 12/31/22
Develop Leaders Advocacy
1. Further develop leadership program (LNH) to include
Tomball Community Day Board 06/01/22
2. Improve board recognition, acknowledgement, and visibility
within chamber membership and community. Board 12/31/22
3. Develop current & future leaders through our Program of Work  Board 12/31/22
Operations Operations
1. Define a succession plan for President Board 06/30/22
2. Plan & Budget for an addition to staff Board 06/30/22
3. Integrate Five Star Accreditation Goals into
Board Strategic/Action plan Board 03/30/22
4. Implement a system for shifting past due efforts to effective
pre-renewal protocol Board 03/30/22

Community Support / Qutreach

Staff w/Board Support

1.

2.

Support citizens & downtown businesses during upcoming
2920 Redevelopment and Alley Projects

Support citizens & businesses through proposed Harris
County redistricting

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan

Staff

Staff

12/31/22

12/31/22
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e Support the advancement of our Region’s Economy:
o Transportation-improving the flow of goods, services and families
= 2920
= Business 249
= Major feeders to 249 and 2920
o Remove Legislative roadblocks
o Grow/Foster municipal relationships
o Provide information on growth, trends in all markets, and partnerships
e Support our community goals to enhance Quality of Life:
o Beautification of Tomball
o Develop and Foster downtown environment
o Create/Foster a livable center
= Churches, post office, golf courses, diverse business, EMS, post offices
o Diversity of business centers
o Healthcare
o Education
e Promote Members’ Success:
o Future leaders/Sustainable leadership
= Develop current and future leaders through our Program of Work
o Education/ Equipping programs
= Developing education opportunities for our members through the Chamber
and its Partners
o Promotion / Exposure of businesses/ Lead generation
o Resource Center
= Continue to provide information and resources on growth trends in all
markets and strategic partnerships for members and the community.
o Technology

e Cultivate Cultural Diversity from a position of leadership.
o ldentify community leaders and promote chamber membership
o ldentify chamber or community events to support diversity

e Identify the Top 10 Business Development Opportunities for Chamber Growth
o ldentify development opportunities in Tomball to strengthen our community and
Chamber

e Organization Improvement:
o Technology
= Continuous improvement of technology to implement current trends that
are productive for the Chamber and our members
o Advertising and branding

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 5
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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o Accreditation
= |dentify areas of improvement as suggested by our recent accreditation
review

o Communications
= Maintain timely and quality communications with staff
= Promote member connections and enhance flow of information in usable
formats
o Education/ Partners/ Consultants
= EDC/City/ Chambers/ College/ County

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 6
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan

Item 5.

226




Item 6.

TAC Board Meeting
Agenda Item

Data Sheet
Meeting Date: 7/26/2022

Topic:

Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce for Grant from
FY 2022-2023 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the Visitor Center.

Background:

Origination: Finance

Recommendation:

Party(ies) responsible for placing this item on agenda: Katherine Tapscott, Finance Director

FUNDING (IF APPLICABLE)
Are funds specifically designated in the current budget for the full amount required for this purpose?

Yes: X No: If yes, specify Account Number: 240-240-6351
If no, funds will be transferred from account To account
Signed  Katherine Tapscott, CPA Approved by

Finance Director 7/20/2022 City Manager Date
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CITY OF TOMBALL
APPLICATION FOR USE OF HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

Applications may be mailed or hand delivered to:

Finance Director
City of Tomball
501 James Street
Tomball, TX 77375

Applicant Organization: Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

Organization Director: Bruce Hillegeist

Project or Event for which funding is requested: Visitor Center

Date of Event: Monday-Friday 8am-5pm

Description of project or event for which funding is requested: S€rVing the public with questions

about Tomball

Location of project or event: 29201 Quinn Road, Suite B, Tomball, TX 77375

GRANT AMOUNTS:
Amount Requested for Current Fiscal Year: 2022-2023 $ 10,000
Amount Received for Previous Fiscal Year: 2021-2022 $ 10000

% increase requested over last year’s grant: 0 %
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Organization Budget Summary for Previous Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Attached

City Funds

Other Funds

Total

Item 6.

Personnel

Contracted Services

Travel

Rental Expense

Depreciation/Mortgage N/A

Advertising

Insurance

Other Expenses

Volunteer Time N/A

Donated Goods/Services N/A

Total

Grants to an organization will not exceed 35% of the organization’s adopted budget for the fiscal year shown

above.

FUNDS FROM SOURCES OTHER THAN THE CITY OF TOMBALL

Government
Local
County
State
Federal

Other Investors/Contributors
Individual
Corporate
Foundations

Admissions
Applications
Vendors
Tuition

Concessions
Memberships

Subscriptions

Other
Total

Amount of Funds

e
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How many people do you expect will visit Tomball from out-of-town as a result of this project or event?

Explain the basis for your answer to the preceding question: 500 annually, with numerous daily
calls and walk in customers; 500 is a conservative estimate

Are attendees for this event or users of this project expected to stay overnight in Tomball hotels or

motels? If you answer to this question is Yes, state the basis for your answer: Yes, every day
people ask the staff for hotel options in the area and for activities to do while in town

Organization Contact Name: Brandy Beyer, Vice President

Title: Brandy Beyer, Vice President
Address: Brandy Beyer, Vice President

Phone Number: Brandy Beyer, Vice President

Digitally signed by Brandy Beyer
DN: cn=|

Contact b) S Signature : B ra n d y B eye r Dalecr;grzag;iy‘ Ee‘yuer“‘o;oGVrgg‘lg&Tombal\ Area Chamber of Commerce, ou, email=bbeyer@tomballchamber.org, c=US
Date: 07/15/2022
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VALIDATION OF APPLICATION

The signatory declares that he/she is an authorized official of the applicant, is authorized to make this
application, and certifies that the information in this application is true and correct to the best of his/her
knowledge. Signatory further declares that applicant, if previously funded by the City of Tomball, has

successfully fulfilled all prior Grant contract obligations.

Digitally si ion dbyB dyB

Brandy Beyer g cmmnse

D l 2022 07 15 1U 13 35 0500

Signature of Authorizing Official

Brandy Beyer

Typed Name

Vice President

Title within Organization

bbeyer@tomballchamber.org

Email address

07/15/2022

Date

281.351.7222

Telephone
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NARRATIVE QUESTIONS

Please look at the criteria in the grant guidelines when you answer the following questions. Be specific and
give examples. Answers to individual questions should be as brief as possible and should in no case exceed

one page.

1. Describe the history and purpose of the organization.

2. Describe how any grant funds will be used.

3. List the programs and activities for the grant year.

4. Show evidence of growth in community support prior to the grant year. Include the number of
performances, exhibitions, audience sizes, services or enrollment. Be sure to include specific
information as to the percent of activities taking place within the City of Tomball.

5. How does your project/event qualify for use of Municipal Hotel Occupancy Tax funds as defined in the
Hotel Occupancy Tax Guidelines?

6. How do you publicize your activities? How do you evaluate these efforts and what have you done to
increase the effectiveness of your marketing efforts?

7. Explain the public benefits to the City of Tomball that will result from your organization’s efforts.

8. What is your organization doing to bring visitors to Tomball, to stay in local hotels and otherwise

support the hospitality industry?
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Item 6.

OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION
The following information in required to process the grant application:
1. Articles of Incorporation, if applicable
2. Constitution and/or By-Laws

3. If your organization’s budget exceeds $100,000 (exclusive of in-kind) attach a copy of the last
independent audit of financial records. If no audit was completed, explain why.

4. Schedule of Board of Directors meetings for the period of October 1 of the current year through
September 30 of the following year. Board of Directors meetings must occur at least once per
quarter.

5. Resumes of principal staff and artists or relevant job descriptions.

6. Depending on the nature of the project or event for which grant funding is requested, the
organization will obtain a Certificate of Insurance for liability coverage as outlined in the attached
Exhibit A. The City of Tomball requires each grantee having an event in the City aimed to attract
both residents and tourists to have liability insurance to protect the public for acts by the grantee.
This mandated coverage does not cover the grantee or any of its members. We encourage the
grantee to acquire insurance to cover itself and its members as it deems fit. Please see your
insurance agent for the local government endorsement. The cost of the local government
endorsement may be included as part of your budget to be considered for a grant.

OPTIONAL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

This should be additional material that you wish to attach that further explains the activities of your
organization such as:

1. Long Range Plan — 3-5 years

One labeled videotape of performance(s), exhibits, workshops, capital project and /or other
activities for which City of Tomball grant funds will be utilized.

Programs, publicity, articles, reviews, etc.

4. Letters of support from patrons or other organizations in the community.

[98)
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Item 6.

EXHIBIT A

Organization shall procure and maintain for the duration of the grant agreement, insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the services performed
or to be performed hereunder by the Organization its agents, representatives, employees, volunteers, officers,
directors or sub-contractors.

The organization shall maintain insurance with limits not less than $500,000 per occurrence, $1,000,000
aggregate and will be as broad as ISO Form Number GL 0002 (Ed 1/72) covering Comprehensive General
Liability and ISO Form Number GL 0404 covering Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability, or ISO
Commercial General Liability coverage (“occurrence for CG 0001). Coverage will include: A) Premises —
Operations; B) Broad Form Contractual Liability, C) Broad Form Property Damage and D) Personal Injury.

The policy will be endorsed to contain the following provisions: The City, its officials, employees, volunteers,
Boards and Commissions are to be added as “Additional Insured” in respect to liability arising out of any
activities performed by or on behalf of the Organization. The policy shall contain no special limitations to the
scope of coverage afforded to the City. The Organization’s insurance shall be primary and any insurance or
self-insurance shall be in excess of the Organization’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. Certificate
must include a waiver of subrogation as regards to the workers compensation policy. If your organization has
no employees, and therefore doe not carry workers compensation insurance, you must provide to the City of
Tomball a letter stating that you have no employees and therefore do not carry workers compensation
insurance.

Insurance shall be placed with insurers with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A:VI or a Standard & Poor
rating of A or better.

The Organization shall furnish the City with a certificate of insurance which shows the coverage provided.
The insurance policy will be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, non-
renewed, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail,
return receipt requested, has been given to the City.
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Visitor Center Budget

Rent
CAM Expense

Office Supplies/Postage

Personnel

Total Expenses:

25,974.00
12,000.00

1,200.00
29,000.00

68,174.00

[Grant Request:

10,000.00]

Item 6.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2022 Budget Overview ltem 6.
January through December 2022

TOTAL
Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan - Dec 22
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Income
Rent Income 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 5,385.00 64,620.00
Capital Campaign 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 36,000.00
Health & Wellness 1,000.00 1,000.00 4,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 8,000.00
Hotel/Motel Tax 35,000.00 35,000.00
First Friday 2,000.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 24,000.00
Networking Breakfast 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 500.00 500.00 5,000.00
Women's Committee 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 5,500.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 9,900.00
Interest Income 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 190.00 2,280.00
Membership Dues
New 8,000.00 10,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 8,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 8,000.00 100,000.00
Allowance Non-Renewal -4,177.75 -6,612.75 -1,731.00 -2,208.50 -1,484.50 -2,289.00 -2,205.25 -2,314.75 -3,393.25 -3,412.00 -2,173.50 -2,383.75 -34,386.00
Renewal 41,777.50 66,127.50 17,310.00 22,085.00 14,845.00 22,890.00 22,052.50 23,147.50 33,932.50 34,120.00 21,735.00 23,837.50 343,860.00
Total Membership Dues 45,599.75 69,514.75 24,579.00 28,876.50 21,360.50 26,601.00 25,847.25 28,832.75 38,539.25 40,708.00 29,561.50 29,453.75 409,474.00
Miscellaneous Income 355.00 355.00 355.00 355.00 355.00 355.00 355.00 355.00 355.00 355.00 355.00 355.00 4,260.00
Publications/Products
Magazine/Map/Website 1,000.00 9,000.00 1,250.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 750.00 14,000.00
Total Publications 1,000.00 0.00 9,000.00 1,250.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 750.00 0.00 0.00 14,000.00
Special Events
Tomball Together/Tidings 10,000.00 6,000.00 16,000.00
Banquet 5,000.00 17,000.00 22,000.00
Golf Classic 6,000.00 20,000.00 26,000.00
Tomball Night 8,000.00 15,000.00 6,000.00 29,000.00
Holiday Parade 3,000.00 10,000.00 12,000.00 25,000.00
Miss Tomball Pageant 4,000.00 18,000.00 13,000.00 35,000.00
Total Special Events 5,000.00 23,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 8,000.00 15,000.00 6,000.00 7,000.00 28,000.00 25,000.00 6,000.00 153,000.00
Total Income 63,329.75 105,444.75 65,509.00 41,856.50 44,090.50 50,131.00 54,377.25 47,562.75 97,369.25 82,188.00 66,391.50 47,283.75 765,534.00
Total Income 63,329.75 105,444.75 65,509.00 41,856.50 44,090.50 50,131.00 54,377.25 47,562.75 97,369.25 82,188.00 66,391.50 47,283.75 765,534.00
Gross Profit 63,329.75 105,444.75 65,509.00 41,856.50 44,090.50 50,131.00 54,377.25 47,562.75 97,369.25 82,188.00 66,391.50 47,283.75 765,534.00
Expense
Building Expense
Alarm 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 300.00
Cleaning 740.00 740.00 740.00 740.00 740.00 740.00 740.00 740.00 740.00 740.00 740.00 740.00 8,880.00
Electricity 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 10,800.00
Building Interest 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 2,650.00 23,275.00
Reimbursed by tenants -1,400.00 -600.00 -700.00 -1,100.00 -700.00 -600.00 -1,200.00 -600.00 -600.00 -1,200.00 -600.00 -600.00 -9,900.00
Repairs/Maintenance 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 S %
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Total Building Expense

Accounting Expense
Advertising
Bad Debt Expense
Past Due Collections
Health & Wellness
First Friday
Networking Breakfast
Women's Committee
Young Professionals
Bank Fees
Board of Directors
Dues and Subscriptions
Employee Expense
SUTA
Development
FUTA
Group Insurance
Payroll Services
Payroll Taxes
Salaries
TACC
Bonus
Contract Labor
Total Salaries

Total Employee Expense

Insurance
Worker's Compensation
Officer & Director Liability
General Liab.

Total Insurance

Membership/Misc. Expense
Office Equipment Expense
Database
Computer Maintenance
Copier Lease
Pitney Bowes
Total Office Equip Expense

Office Supplies
Postage & Delivery

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2022 Budget Overview ltem 6.
January through December 2022
TOTAL
Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan - Dec 22
3,140.00 3,940.00 3,840.00 3,440.00 3,840.00 3,940.00 3,340.00 3,940.00 3,940.00 3,340.00 3,940.00 4,715.00 45,355.00
200.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,400.00 6,600.00
1,000.00 500.00 1,000.00 500.00 3,000.00
4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 6,000.00 50,000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 12,000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 1,000.00 6,000.00
2,100.00 2,300.00 2,300.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 1,900.00 1,900.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 25,200.00
100.00 100.00 150.00 100.00 100.00 150.00 100.00 100.00 150.00 100.00 150.00 200.00 1,500.00
400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 500.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 4,900.00
100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 1,200.00
700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 8,400.00
300.00 100.00 200.00 200.00 3,000.00 3,700.00 7,500.00
1,130.00 1,250.00 750.00 45.00 584.00 3,759.00
150.00 150.00 100.00 100.00 500.00
600.00 550.00 1,500.00 500.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 1,550.00 300.00 1,500.00 10,000.00
73.00 40.00 30.00 25.00 168.00
2,812.00 2,812.00 2,812.00 2,812.00 2,812.00 2,812.00 2,812.00 2,812.00 2,812.00 2,812.00 2,812.00 2,812.00 33,744.00
445.00 600.00 445.00 445.00 445.00 445.00 445.00 445.00 445.00 445.00 445.00 445.00 5,495.00
1,250.00 1,300.00 1,250.00 1,300.00 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,300.00 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,300.00 1,250.00 15,200.00
20,500.00 21,000.00 20,500.00 21,000.00 20,500.00 20,500.00 20,500.00 21,000.00 20,500.00 20,500.00 21,000.00 20,500.00 248,000.00
12,400.00 12,400.00
200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 2,400.00
20,700.00 21,200.00 20,700.00 21,200.00 20,700.00 20,700.00 20,700.00 21,200.00 20,700.00 20,700.00 21,200.00 33,100.00 262,800.00
26,030.00 26,652.00 26,837.00 26,382.00 26,707.00 27,207.00 26,757.00 25,757.00 25,507.00 26,707.00 25,757.00 37,607.00 327,907.00
42.75 42.75 42.75 42.75 42.75 42.75 42.75 42.75 42.75 42.75 42.75 42.75 513.00
153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 153.66 1,843.92
640.50 640.50 640.50 640.50 640.50 640.50 640.50 640.50 640.50 640.50 640.50 640.50 7,686.00
836.91 836.91 836.91 836.91 836.91 836.91 836.91 836.91 836.91 836.91 836.91 836.91 10,042.92
1,000.00 3,000.00 1,500.00 500.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 500.00 3,000.00 1,500.00 500.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 17,000.00
4,850.00 4,850.00
300.00 1,200.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 4,500.00
400.00 600.00 800.00 600.00 600.00 900.00 600.00 600.00 200.00 1,000.00 800.00 700.00 7,800.00
528.30 581.60 528.30 528.30 2,166.50
1,228.30 6,650.00 1,100.00 1,481.60 900.00 1,200.00 1,428.30 900.00 500.00 1,828.30 1,100.00 1,000.00 19,316.50
300.00 1,000.00 100.00 500.00 300.00 200.00 200.00 700.00 200.00 400.00 1,000.00 200.00 5,100.00
500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 100.00 o= 00
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Property Tax Expense
Income Tax Expense
Rent
Special Events
Tomball Together/Tidings
Banquet
Golf Classic
Tomball Night
Holiday Parade
Miss Tomball Pageant
Scholarship Expense
Pageant - Other
Total Miss Tomball

Total Special Events

Telephone Expenses

Travel & Entertainment
Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Principal Building Payment
xDepreciation Expense

Net Income

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

2022 Budget Overview ltem 6.
January through December 2022
TOTAL
Jan 22 Feb 22 Mar 22 Apr 22 May 22 Jun 22 Jul 22 Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan - Dec 22
1,186.60 1,186.60 1,186.60 1,186.60 1,186.60 1,186.60 1,186.60 1,186.60 1,186.60 1,186.60 1,186.60 1,186.60 14,239.20
473.00 473.00 473.00 473.00 473.00 473.00 473.00 473.00 473.00 473.00 473.00 473.00 5,676.00
100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 1,200.00
1,000.00 1,000.00
11,000.00 11,000.00
250.00 3,000.00 6,750.00 10,000.00
2,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 10,000.00
15,500.00 1,000.00 16,500.00
4,000.00 4,000.00
500.00 12,500.00 3,000.00 16,000.00
500.00 16,500.00 3,000.00 20,000.00
250.00 11,000.00 3,000.00 6,750.00 3,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00 500.00 32,000.00 4,000.00 68,500.00
550.00 550.00 550.00 550.00 550.00 550.00 550.00 550.00 550.00 550.00 550.00 550.00 6,600.00
60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00 720.00
45,484.81 67,098.51 50,733.51 51,160.11 49,353.51 46,703.51  49,331.81 54,153.51  46,403.51  50,081.81 80,398.51 64,412.51 655,315.62
17,844.94 38,346.24 14,775.49 -9,303.61 -5,263.01 3,427.49 5,045.44 -6,590.76  50,965.74  32,106.19 -14,007.01  -17,128.76 110,218.38
3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 45,000.00
1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 20,460.00
12,389.94 32,891.24 9,320.49 -14,758.61 -10,718.01 -2,027.51 -409.56  -12,045.76 ~ 45510.74  26,651.19 -19,462.01  -22,583.76 44,758.38
New Net Income
3% 5,916.00 38,842.38
Salary/Market Adjustment ~ 14,800.00 29,958.38
(Recommended by Committee) Salary/Market Adjustment + 3%  21,300.00 23,458.38
238
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Item 6.

Narrative Questions:
1. Describe the history and purpose of the organization.

Answer: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (GTACC) provides resources
and empowers Tomball businesses to prosper. The value of being a GTACC member is
evidenced with research by the Shapiro Group, which shows a 63 percent increase in repeat
business due to chamber membership. Moreover, the Chamber staff regularly and routinely
welcomes visitors to Tomball and places information in their hands that promotes the city and
region, in particularly local hotels, motels and restaurants.

Incorporated in 1965, the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce has a history that
began in the 1920s. The Chamber has a reputation for actively representing and promoting the
interest of its members. As well, the Chamber is recognized throughout the region and the state
for its passionate promotion of the greater Tomball community.

The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce also serves as a visitor’s information
center.

2. Describe how any grant funds will be used.

Answer: Grant funds would be used to reimburse the GTACC for Visitor Center related
expenses. The GTACC staff regularly and routinely welcomes visitors to Tomball and places
information in their hands that promotes the city and region, specifically a map of the area, The
Spirit of Tomball Texas magazine, and information on local hotels, motels and restaurants. Time
dedicated to this function of the GTACC fluctuates, however all Chamber staff participates in this
service and materials are kept current for the purpose of maintaining a vital visitor’s information
center.

3. List the programs and activities for the grant year.

Answer: The GTACC annually organizes and hosts Tomball Night and the Tomball
Holiday Parade with an emphasis on local retailers, hotels and motels. In its press releases
related to these events the Chamber suggests inviting family and guests for a weekend in
Tomball, which includes overnight stays at local lodging.

With the large amount of growth in the area, there are individuals in the office daily requesting
information on relocation. Many are here staying in the local hotels as they search for a new
home. The amount of welcome packets we mail out has increased as well.

4. Show evidence of growth in community support prior to the grant year. Include the number of
performances, exhibitions, audience sizes, services or enrollment. Be sure to include specific
information as to the percent of activities taking place within the City of Tomball.

Answer: The GTACC has experienced growth over the past several years. This year
membership is staying consistent, but event participation has increased. The City of Tomball
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Item 6.

and the greater Tomball area has experienced growth as well. At the end of 2008 the Chamber
relocated to a facility that exudes professionalism, is in a high profile location and is welcoming
to all visitors. Chamber’s activities including Tomball Night and the Tomball Holiday Parade take
place in the city limits — 100%.

5. How does your project/event qualify for use of Municipal Hotel Occupancy Tax funds as
defined in the Hotel Occupancy Tax Guidelines?

Answer: The GTACC Visitor Center qualifies for use of the Hotel Occupancy Tax,
Chapter 351.101 with two banks of walls and a kiosk dedicated to pamphlets, booklets,
promotional materials and other contact information. The Chamber provides an extensive library
of current information concerning city, area and regional lodging, entertainment, amusements
and even day-trip venues. Daily the GTACC staff place these printed, promotional materials
about Tomball in the hands of visitors; a conservative estimated number of this exchange is 5
five visitors a day. In addition, the GTACC staff answers numerous phone inquiries; a
conservative number of inquiries by phone related to tourism is 5 per day.

6. How do you publicize your activities? How do you evaluate these efforts and what have you
done to increase the effectiveness of your marketing efforts?

Answer: As a visitor center, chambers of commerce have a long standing history of being
the first place visitors stop when they come to a new town. The GTACC is publicized on the
Internet through www.tomballchamber.org, in the World Chamber of Commerce Directory, as a
member of the US Chamber of Commerce, as a member of the Texas Association of Business,
as a member of the Texas Chamber of Commerce Executives and as a member of the American
Chamber of Commerce Executives.

The GTACC publicizes its activities and all partnership city and non profit organization
activities in Tomball through local and Houston area newspapers including The Houston
Chronicle and online news services. The GTACC checks for its press releases in these
publications and online. The GTACC is constantly adding to its publicity list. It is notable that
the GTACC promotes all partnership city and non profit organization activities, such as the
various City of Tomball festivals and the Tomball German Festivals, as a courtesy without
compensation or reimbursement.

7. Explain the public benefits to the City of Tomball that will result from your organization’s
efforts.

Answer: The public benefits to the City of Tomball resulting from the visitor center at the
GTACC offices are many. First, the Chamber strives to keep current information on local
businesses and growth moving into the area. Through these efforts the public uses the GTACC
as an information resource. Also, the Chamber maintains relationships with many entities —
like Texas Department of Transportation and the Harris County Precinct 4 Commissioner’s office
— that serve the greater Tomball area in order to better serve the public. First and foremost, the
public benefits by having a visitor center at the GTACC because having been established since
1965, the public is habitual in seeking out the Chamber for information. Moreover, the GTACC

has proven to be a stable, tenured, and reliable organization that proudly serves the public. 10
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Item 6.

8. What is your organization doing to bring visitors to Tomball, to stay in local hotels and
otherwise support the hospitality industry?

Answer: The GTACC is maintaining an Internet presence with www.tomballchamber.org
where a community calendar with Tomball events is posted and updated, routinely. These
events are also placed in the Texas Events Calendar, a statewide publication. The Chamber
also provides events such as the Tomball Holiday Parade, Tomball Night, and the Miss Tomball
Pageant, which has a history of bringing families to Tomball for overnight stays.
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ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF
CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

We, the undersigned natural persons of the age of twenty-one

(21) years of more, at least two of whom are citizens of the State
of Texas, acting as incorporators of a corporation under the Texas

Non-Profit Corporation Aet, do hereby adopt the following Articles

of Incorporation for such corporation:

ARTICLE ONE

The name of the Corporation is CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF

COMMERCE .

ARTICLE TWO

The Corporation is a non-profit corporation.

ARTICLE THREE

The period of its duration is perpetual.

ARTICLE FOUR
The purpose for which the Corporation is organized is Civiec,

providing and promoting the development of the City of Tomball, Texas.

ARTICLE FIVE

The Street Address of the initial registered office of the
corpofation is 314 Commerce Street, in Tomball, Texas, and the name

of its initial registered agent is Jesse C. Powell, whose address is

314 Commerce Street, in Tomball, Texas.

ARTICLE SIX

The number of directors, or trustees, constituting the initial

Board of Directors, or Trustees, of the Corporation is Three (3),

and the names and addreéses of the persons who are to serve as the
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Item 6.

initial directors, or trustees, are:

NAMES , ADDRESSES
Pete Still ‘ 719 Barbara, Tomball, Texas
Jesse C. Powell 732 James, Tomball, Texas
BillierdicLovett 408 W, Commerce, Tomball, Texas

ARTICLE SEVEN

The name and street address of each incorporator is:

Pete Still 719 Barbara, Tomball, Texas
Jesse C, Powell _ 732 James, Tomball, Texas
Bil¥ielJ,eLbvett 408 W. Commerce, Tomball, Texas

—

IN WITNESS WHEREOF we have hereto set our hands this /& Z° day

o/

of  lepize , A. D. 1965.
7 -
rrd "_;"‘ P 4 r
—7—
I~ . o = STTILL
) / .
1. sad? el A
; -nm
II
éiéf} '!'-ul
THE STATE OF TEXAS I
: |
COUNTY OF HARRIS Q
I, 7Z&«46J sc s Z/CZL, , a Notary Public, do hereby
certify that on this the /§Z° day of 4_/7/¢44u/ , 1965, personally

ILLIE
appeared before me, PETE STILL, JESSE C. POWELL and E? J. LOVETT, who

each being by me first duly sworn, severally declared that they are the
persons who signed the foregoing document as incorporatérs, and that
the statements therein contained are true.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and seal the day

and year above written,

Heoce 7.5,

Notary Public in and for Harris
County, T E X A S

FOYE A. BURKLIN
Notary Public in and far MHarris County, Tares
My Commission Expires June 1, 1967

244




Item 6.

- STATE OF TEXAS
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

AUSTIN, TEXAS 7871 l
Crawford C. Martin
SECRETARY OF STATE : . July 2, 196 5

MR. HOWARD H, KLEIN
KleinOffice Building
311 Commerce Street
Tomball, Texas 77375

In replyvincludeﬁ
Charter No. 215046
Account No. 164647

RE: CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
TO THE ATTENTION OF THE CAPTIONED CORPORATION:

It has been our pleasure to approve and place on record the Articles of
Incorporation that created your corporation. We extend our best wishes
for success in your new venture. '

Unless shown as "EXEMPT" under Account No. above, you will be required

to file an annual franchise tax return with the Comptroller of Public
Accounts, Capitol Station, Austin, Texas, 78711, and pay the tax due
thereunder. Your first return and payment will be due within 90 days
after the end of the first corporate year. If the corporation should be
exempt under Article 12.03, Title 122A, Taxation-General, R.C.S. of
Texas, and is not shown "EXEMPT" above, you must apply to the Comptroller
for such exemption.” The SECRETARY OF STATE cannot make such a deter-—
mination for your corporation.

We suggest that you keep this letter as a reminder, or, so mark your
records that you will not unwittingly become liable for statutory
penalties for late filing and late payment. :

: Yours'very truly,

CRAWFORD C. MARTIN
Se ary of State

ROBERT L. TOWERY, Dir
Corporation Division
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Dampiraller af Bublir Ao

Ausiin
4 PLEASE DIRECT
TR July 13, 1965 YOUR COMMUNICATIONS TO
. pivision _S0 FILE
TELEPHONE GR 5"1*771

. =~ Jffices of

*d H. Klein
“*ain Office Building
- T smmerce Street
T owl.li, Texas

Subject: City of Tomball Chamber of Commerce
Account No. 1,164,647
Charter No. 215046

e i Loy

--—L -\4&

Lo

<icz, cogether with the outline of the activities for the purpose of determining
itz status from & franchise tax standpoint.

A3 your requ:=st, we examined the Articles of Incorporation of this corpora-

-

IT is the opinion of this office that so long as the corporation confines
ctlvities exclusively to the purpose or purposes recited in the Articles
Incorporation, it is exempt from the franchise tax.

The Secretary of State is being furnished a& copy of this letter for his
ir“ormation.

Yours very truly, i

gank & 2@4.0,37«

ROBERT S. CALVERT
Comptroller of Public Accounts

-
"

WLE/ms : _ ST
Form No. 80-2.4k (Rev. L4/20/65) o T
cc: Corporation Division . :
Secretary of State
Austin, Texas
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Article | — Name
The name of this organization shall be the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.
Article Il — Purpose

Section 1. Vision: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce will continue
to be the business resource center for the northwest metropolitan area.

Section 2.  Mission: The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce provides
resources and fosters relationships that empower businesses to prosper in
Tomball and its surrounding communities.

Article 1l — Area

The principal office of the organization shall always be located within the Tomball area.
The organization may have such offices as may from time to time be designated by the
Board of Directors.

Article IV — Limitation of Methods

This organization is incorporated under the laws of the state of Texas and shall transact
all business as the “Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.”

Article V — Membership

Section 1. Any person, association, corporation, partnership, or estate eligible for
membership may acquire more than one membership by paying the annual
dues of each such separate membership.

Section 2. New membership investments shall submit a membership application and
the appropriate fees to the Chamber. The membership application/inquiry
shall be brought before the Directors at the next scheduled Board of
Directors meeting for approval. No applicant shall be considered an
official member until approval of a majority of the votes of the Board of
Directors and application funds have been obtained.

Section 3. Any person, association, corporation, partnership, or estate holding a
membership shall be entitled to cast one vote per separate membership.

Section 4. Membership is subject to the following minimum investments.

A. The dues of each member per annum shall be an amount as
prescribed by the Board of Directors.

B. Honorary membership shall be given to individuals who have
rendered or may render the organization meritorious service and
shall have been nominated for such membership by the President

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 2 of 9
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Section 5.

Section 6.

or any Director and have received a majority vote from the
Directors present at the meeting when their name was proposed.
They shall not be subject to payment of dues and shall not have the
right to vote. This membership can be revoked at anytime by the
Board of Directors with advance notice to the member. The
member has the right to request a hearing before the Board of
Directors before the revocation.

Recurring membership investments shall become past due and considered
delinquent 90 days after date of billing. At the expiration of this period, if
said membership investment remains unpaid, the member shall be
removed from the rolls of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce. Members who shall be deemed delinquent or suspended shall
not be entitled to vote.

Termination of Membership

A Any member may resign from the Chamber upon notice to the
Chamber.

B. Membership shall end 90 days following the dues-paying period
unless extended by a vote of two-thirds majority of the Board of
Directors.

C. Any member may be expelled by a two-thirds vote of the Board of
Directors, at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof, for conduct
unbecoming a member or prejudicial to the aims or repute of the
Chamber, after notice and opportunity for a hearing are afforded
the member complained against.

Article VI — Meetings

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

The annual membership meeting of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce shall be held each year, the date, place, and hour to be
designated by the Board of Directors or under their authority.

Meetings of the members may be held at such times as the President or the
Board of Directors may determine, or upon written request of twenty-five
(25) percent of the members in good standing, provided that when called
otherwise than by the President or Board of Directors, the notice shall
contain a statement of the purpose of the meeting, and shall be issued at
least ten (10) days and not more than sixty (60) days preceding the
meeting. Meeting notices shall be emailed, faxed or mailed.

The Board of Directors shall meet regularly, the time and frequency to be
decided upon by majority vote of the board. Any meeting by the board
can include any director communicating by telephone as present and
participating.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 3 of 9
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Section 4.

Section 5.

By decision of the executive committee, a vote of the board upon limited
and specific issues may be conducted electronically. Or at a called
meeting, telephone participation may be allowed with board approval.

A majority of the Board of Directors at any meeting shall constitute a
quorum at that meeting. Upon notification to all voting members of a
membership meeting, those present shall constitute a quorum.

Article VIl — Referenda

Upon the written request of twenty-five (25) percent of the members in good standing,
the Board of Directors shall submit a question to members for a mail or electronic
referendum vote.

Article VII1 — Government & Leadership

Section 1.

Section 2.

A. The government of the organization, the direction of its work and
the control of its property shall be vested in a Board of Directors
consisting of fifteen members, one-third of whom shall be elected
annually for a term of three (3) years.

B. In the event that the Board of Directors determines that it is in the
best interest of the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce,
additional board members may be appointed by the Board of Directors.
The term of such appointed directors shall expire at the next scheduled
annual meeting.

C. The Board of Directors shall at any time select Ex Officio
members. Ex Officio members of the Board may attend Board meetings
and take part in all discussion and can vote.

A nominating committee of three (3) members shall be selected from the
membership of the Chamber by the Board of Directors at a meeting held
not later than September 15. The nominating committee shall meet and
select five (5) members as nominees for Directors of the Chamber for
terms of three (3) years. The names of the persons nominated by the
nominating committee and approved by the board shall be published to the
members in alphabetical order. Additional nominees may be placed on the
ballot if supported by signatures of eight (8) chamber members in good
standing (dues current) and submitted within ten (10) days from the date
of publication of the nominating committee’s report. If no additional
nominations are thus made, the election of the five (5) members selected
shall have been approved by the membership. If, however, there are
additional nominations by written petition, the names of all persons
nominated shall be placed on an official ballot in alphabetical order and
brought before the membership or by mail ballot for voting. In case of a
tie vote, the Board of Directors shall make the selection.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 4 of 9
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Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

New directors shall be chosen prior to the Directors annual planning
session. New directors shall be installed at the beginning of each new
year.

The Board of Directors shall meet with the time and date to be fixed by
the Board. Absence from 40% of regular meetings per year shall be
construed as a resignation.

Any member of the Board of Directors may be expelled based on the good
faith determination by the Board or a committee authorized by the Board
to make such a determination, that the Board member has engaged in
conduct contrary or damaging to the Chamber or aims of the Chamber.
Action can be taken upon a majority vote of the Board of Directors. A
Director has the right to request a hearing before a panel of seven (7) non-
director members of the Chamber, three (3) shall be selected by the Board,
three (3) shall be selected by the member facing expulsion, and those six
(6) shall then select a single additional member. All members of the panel
must be members in good standing with the Chamber at the time of
selection. The panel shall vote on rulings before the panel by secret ballot,
and the panel’s majority ruling shall be binding.

Article IX — Officers

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Prior to the annual Board of Directors planning session, the Board shall
choose the Executive Board Members and delegate each as a Vice-Chair
to the Program of Work committees for the chamber year. The Board
shall also choose a Treasurer. Executive Board members shall be chosen
from the Directors that sit on the Board. All of the Board must be
members in good standing. Subsequently the Board shall employ a
President who is in charge of administration of the day-to-day operations
of the Chamber. The President is responsible to the Board of Directors,
and the Directors shall determine his/her compensation.

The Board of Directors may, by appointment or otherwise, provide for
such bureaus and the selection of such committees as may be deemed
advisable in promoting the object and purpose of this Chamber of
Commerce.

The individual chosen as Treasurer shall be a voting member of the Board
of Directors.

Duties & Responsibilities

A. The Chair of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of
Directors and shall be a member of all Chamber committees. It shall be
the primary responsibility of the Chair of the Board to see that the goals
and objectives of the Chamber as adopted by the Board of Directors are
carried out. The Chair of the Board may delegate these responsibilities to

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 5 of 9
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the various officers and directors. Subject to the approval of the Board of
Directors, the Chair of the Board shall execute all deeds, contracts, leases
and other similar documents affecting the operation of the Chamber. In
addition, the Chair of the Board shall have such other duties and exercise
such other powers as may be directed or delegated by the Board of
Directors.

B. The Chair-Elect of the Board shall be a member of all chamber
committees and shall closely observe the entire operation of the chamber
and serve as special assistant to the Chair. If the Chair is absent from a
Board meeting, the Chair-Elect of the Board shall preside at such Board
meeting. A nominating committee consisting of the immediate past Chair,
the Chair, and the Chair-Elect will nominate the incoming Chair-elect for
the next Chamber year subject to Board approval.

C. The Treasurer shall serve as Chair of the Budget Committee
appointed by the Chair of the Board. The Treasurer shall be responsible
for the safeguarding of all funds received by the Chamber and for their
proper disbursement. The Treasurer shall cause a frequent financial report
to be prepared for the Board of Directors.

D. The Vice Chairs should attend meetings of all committees within
their responsibilities and make periodic reports to the Executive Board and
the Board of Directors on the status of the goals and objectives for the
year.

E. The President shall be the chief administrative and executive
officer, shall serve as secretary to the Board of Directors, and shall cause
to be prepared special notices, agendas and minutes of meetings of the
Board. The President shall serve as advisor to the Chair of the Board and
to the Long-Range Planning Committee on program planning, and shall
assemble information and data and cause to be prepared special reports as
directed by the Chair of the Board, the Executive Committee or the Board
of Directors. With assistance of the Vice-Chairs, the President shall be
responsible for administration of the goals and objectives in accordance
with the policies and regulations of the Board of Directors. The President
shall be responsible for hiring, discharging, directing and supervising all
chamber employees.

Article X — Committees

Section 1.

The Board of Directors shall establish such committees as are necessary to
carry out the goals and objectives of the Chamber. The Chair of the Board
with advice from the President, shall appoint all committee chairs subject
to board approval. The Chair of the Board may appoint such ad hoc
committees and their chairs as deemed necessary. Such ad hoc committee
appointments and the terms of such committees shall be at the will and

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 6 of 9

Item 6.

252




pleasure of the Chair of the Board, unless a different term is approved by
the Board of Directors. It shall be the function of committees to make
investigations, conduct studies and hearings, make recommendations to
the Board of Directors, and to carry on such activities as may be delegated
to them.

Section 2. No action by any member, committee, division, employee, director or
officer shall be binding upon, or constitute an expression of, the policy of
the Chamber until it has been approved or ratified by the Board of
Directors.

Article XI- Finances
Section 1. The fiscal year shall be the calendar year, January 1 through December 31.

Section 2. All money paid to the Chamber shall be kept on deposit in financial
institutions or invested in a manner approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. At the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, they may require the
Treasurer and President of this organization to furnish surety company
bonds in such amount as the Board of Directors shall deem necessary, the
costs to be paid by the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce.

Section 4. With advice and counsel of the President and the Staff, the Budget
Committee shall prepare an annual budget to be submitted to the
Executive Board and the Board of Directors for approval at the December
Board Meeting.

Article XI1 — Dissolution

The Chamber shall use its funds only to accomplish the objects and purposes specified in
these bylaws, and no part of said funds shall inure, or be distributed to the members of
the Chamber. On dissolution of the Chamber, any funds remaining shall be distributed to
one or more regularly organized and qualified charitable, educational, scientific, or
philanthropic organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors.

Article X111 — Indemnification

The Chamber may, by resolution of the Board of Directors, provide for indemnification
by the Chamber of any and all of its Directors or Officers, volunteers, employees, or
former Directors or Officers against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them
in connection with the defense of any action, suite, or proceeding, in which they or any of
them are made parties, or a party, by reason of having been Directors or Officers,
volunteers, or employees of the Chamber, except in relation to matters as to which such
Director or Officer, volunteer, employees, or former Director or Officer shall be adjudged
in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the
performance of duty and to such matters as shall be settled by agreement predicated on
the existence of such liability for negligence or misconduct.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016 Page 7 of 9
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Article X1V — Parliamentary Authority

The current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall be the final source of authority in all
questions of parliamentary procedure when such rules are not inconsistent with the
bylaws of the Chamber.

Article XV — Amendments

Section 1.  These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the members in good
standing in attendance at any special meeting called for that purpose
provided that said amendments shall be plainly stated in the call for the
meeting at which they are to be considered.

Section 2. Notice of meetings at which such amendments are to be considered must
be given at least ten (10) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to
the time of the meeting.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
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Date
Approved Chair, Board of Directors

President

Jan, 2016 Ryan Aduddell

Bruce Hillegeist

Jan, 2017 DeniseDavis

BruceHillegeis:

Jan, 2018 Gail Randolpl

BruceHillegeis!

Jan, 2019 Jim Ros:

BruceHillegeisi

Jan, 2020 CraigBogne

BruceHillegeis!

Jan, 2021 JerrelWade

BruceHillegeisi

Jan, 2022
DawnaDysor

BruceHillegeis

Jan, 2023 ShaneBoatmal

BruceHillegeist

Jan, 2024

Jan, 2025

Jan, 2026

Jan, 2027

Jan, 2028

Jan, 2029

Jan, 2030

Jan, 2031

Jan, 2032

Jan, 2033

Jan, 2034

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
By-Laws, Amended and Adopted February 17, 2016
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of
Commerce

Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2021 (Reviewed)
(with comparative totals for December 31, 2020 (Audited))
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13831 Northwest Frwy
hd Ste. 350B

ipton & Company

Certified Public Accountants e nonprofitaccta.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Tomball, Texas

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and
making inquiries of entity management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which
is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountants’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those
standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant's Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s 2020 financial statements dated May
42, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

Tipton & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

April 14, 2022
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Financial Position

Item 6.

Reviewed Audited
As of December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 459,950 $ 349,800
Accounts receivable, net 40,848 53,474
Prepaid expenses 9,835 9,422
Property and equipment, net 884,005 914,047
Total Assets $ 1,394,638 $ 1,326,743
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 1,752 $ 3,232
Deferred revenues 164,664 157,891
Long term debt 573,315 610,370
Deposits 8,300 8,300
Total Liabilities 748,031 779,793
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 646,607 546,950
Total Net Assets 646,607 546,950
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,394,638 $ 1,326,743

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of CommerCJ,:Item -

Statement of Activities

Reviewed Audited
Year ended December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020
Revenue and Support
Membership dues $ 395,831 $ 510,128
Special events revenue 139,640 45,405
Direct benefits to donors (10,151) (10,640)
Capital improvement campaign 36,000 33,000
First Friday luncheon 15,452 11,342
Networking Breakfast 4,035 1,665
City of Tomball hotel tax revenue 35,000 35,000
Rental income 64,624 64,624
Tenent reimbursements 10,635 11,990
Ads and ad commission 20,767 16,895
Interest income 2,217 3,377
Other income 66,636 11,592
Total Revenue and Support 780,686 734,378
Expenses
Program Services
Business resources 235,360 252,245
Advocacy 241,414 248,661
Total Program Services 476,774 500,906
Supporting Services
General and administrative 101,906 117,336
Fundraising 102,349 110,957
Total Supporting Services 204,255 228,293
Total Expenses 681,029 729,199
Change in Net Assets 99,657 5,179
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 546,950 541,771
Net Assets, End of Year $ 646,607 $ 546,950

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report 3 260




Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Functional Expenses

Item 6.

Program Services Supporting Services Reviewed Audited
Year ended December 31, Business Total Program General and Total Supporting 2021 2020
(with comparative totals for 2020) Resources Advocacy Services Administrative Fundraising Services Total Total
Payroll and related expenses
Salaries $ 98,426 $ 98,426 $ 196,852 $ 24,607 $ 24,607 $ 49214 $ 246,066 $ 254,302
Payroll taxes 7174 7,174 14,348 1,794 1,794 3,588 17,936 19,640
Employee benefits 15,710 15,710 31,420 3,927 3,927 7,854 39,274 39,992
Total payroll and related expenses 121,310 121,310 242,620 30,328 30,328 60,656 303,276 313,934
Other expenses
Advertising 283 283 566 283 1,980 2,263 2,829 288
Bad debt 21,520 21,520 43,040 21,520 21,520 43,040 86,080 210,368
Bank fees 789 789 1,578 3,156 3,156 6,312 7,890 4,838
Board expenses - - - 6,935 - 6,935 6,935 6,475
Building expenses 130 130 260 32 33 65 325 300
Computer maintenance 1,686 1,686 3,372 422 422 844 4,216 4,730
Contract labor 501 501 1,002 125 125 250 1,252 1,060
Depreciation 12,017 12,017 24,034 3,004 3,004 6,008 30,042 29,984
Dues and subscriptions 985 985 1,970 246 246 492 2,462 4,706
Employee development 3,853 3,853 7,706 963 963 1,926 9,632 4,170
Equipment lease 3,988 3,988 7,976 997 997 1,994 9,970 10,110
First Friday 15,142 - 15,142 - - - 15,142 9,095
Health committee 4,859 - 4,859 - - - 4,859 1,975
Insurance 3,846 3,846 7,692 962 962 1,924 9,616 9,594
Interest 12,034 12,034 24,068 3,009 3,009 6,018 30,086 32,010
Miscellaneous 4,037 5,383 9,420 4,035 - 4,035 13,455 8,095
Networking breakfast 280 - 280 - - - 280 450
Office supplies 1,954 1,954 3,908 488 488 976 4,884 4,192
Payroll service 2,209 2,209 4,418 552 552 1,104 5,522 5,122
Postage and delivery 812 406 1,218 406 1,083 1,489 2,707 1,793
Professional fees - - - 13,565 - 13,565 13,565 6,601
Rent 480 480 960 120 120 240 1,200 2,160
Repairs and maintenance 7,606 7,606 15,212 1,901 1,901 3,802 19,014 10,608
Software 1,940 1,940 3,880 485 485 970 4,850 3,508
Special events - 26,106 26,106 - 38,029 38,029 64,135 23,035
Taxes - income - - 4,515 - 4,515 4,515 436
Taxes - property 5,568 5,568 11,136 1,392 1,392 2,784 13,920 13,920
Telephone 2,616 2,616 5,232 654 654 1,308 6,540 6,536
Travel and entertainment - - - 760 - 760 760 480
Utilities 4,204 4,204 8,408 1,051 1,051 2,102 10,510 8,980
Young professionals 711 - 711 - - - 711 286
Total other expenses 114,050 120,104 234,154 71,578 82,172 153,750 387,904 425,905
Subtotal 235,360 241,414 476,774 101,906 112,500 214,406 691,180 739,839
Less: Direct benefit to donor - - - - (10,151) (10,151) (10,151) (10,640)
Total Expenses $ 235,360 $ 241414 $ 476,774 $ 101,906 $ 102,349 $ 204,255 $ 681,029 $ 729,199

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report

4
261




Item 6.

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerc
Statement of Cash Flows

Reviewed Audited
Year Ended December 31, (with comparative totals for 2020) 2021 2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 99,657 $ 5,179
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net change in operating activities:

Depreciation 30,042 29,984
Bad debt expense 86,080 210,368
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (73,454) (208,668)
Prepaid expenses (413) (229)
Accrued expenses (1,480) (2,000)
Deferred revenues 6,773 2,201
Total Adjustments 47,548 31,656
Net Change in Operating Activities 147,205 36,835

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment - (1,164)

Net Change in Investing Activities - (1,164)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Payments on long-term debt (37,055) (35,133)
Net Change in Financing Activities (37,055) (35,133)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 110,150 538
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 349,800 349,262
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 459,950 $ 349,800
Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid $ 30,086 $ 32,010
See accompanying notes and accountants' review report 5
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (the “Chamber) is a not-for-profit organization of citizens who
are investing their time and money in a community development program working together to improve the economic,
civic, and cultural fortitude of the region, community, or area. The Chamber’s mission is to provide resources and
foster relationships that empower businesses to prosper in Tomball and its surrounding communities.

The Chamber is supported through membership dues, contributions, rental income and other miscellaneous
revenue. The Chamber conducts the following programs:

e Business resources — The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value
added, quality networking events to the Chamber’s diverse membership, by ensuring inclusion through new
member mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. This
division invites members to become involved in the Chamber’s programs that will allow relationships to be
formed and sustained through a variety of networking events.

e Advocacy — The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for the Chamber’'s members and
the greater Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about issues
that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce development,
energy and healthcare.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Chamber have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Chamber reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets
that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors: net assets without
donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

e Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations and not subject to donor
restrictions. The only limits on the use of net assets without donor restrictions are the broad limits resulting
from the nature of the Chamber, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its corporate
documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements
with creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations. Assets restricted solely through
the actions of the Board of Directors are reported as net assets without donor restrictions, board-
designated.

¢ Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or use
for a purpose specified by the donor. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires,
that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-restricted endowment earnings are
released when those earnings are appropriated with spending policies and are used for the specified
purpose.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Chamber considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. The carrying values of any cash and cash equivalents
are deemed to approximate their fair values because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge
to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the allowance for
bad debts was $7,021 and $7,021, respectively.

Property and Equipment

The Chamber capitalizes all expenditures for property, plant and equipment in excess of $500. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Major improvements and renewals that extend the life of the asset
are capitalized. Purchased property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-
line method based on their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 39 years
Computers and software 3-5 years
Office equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years

Donated Assets

Donated investments and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their fair values at the date of
donation.

Donated Property and Equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at fair value at the date of donation. Such
donations are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions
of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Chamber reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. The Chamber reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Deferred Revenue

Income from membership dues and subscription fees received in advance is deferred and recognized over the
periods to which the dues and fees relate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates. The significant estimates included in the financial statements are the
estimates of useful lives used for depreciating property and equipment items.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Membership Dues

Membership dues are recognized in the applicable membership period. Any unearned amounts are included in
deferred revenue at the end of each accounting period.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b)
require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Chamber. Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Chamber with program
services and fundraising events. No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for these donated
services as the recognition criteria were not met.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses are categorized in the Statement of Activities as program services, management and general and
fundraising. The Chamber’s expenses are allocated on a functional basis among these benefited categories:

e Program service expenses: include direct and indirect (allocated) expenses for the various programs
offered by the Chamber to fulfill member investment expectations. Expenses that can be identified with a
specific program and support services are allocated directly according to their natural expenditure
classification. Other expenses, that are common to several functions, are allocated to program services
based on time and effort.

e Management and general expenses: include those expenses, ranging from office management to financial
services, that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support
and direction of the Chamber. Those expenses include the basic necessities to be an accredited, well
rounded, and effective organization.

e Fundraising expenses: represent costs incurred in connection with fundraising efforts to continue the
Chamber’s mission. The membership dues alone are not adequate enough to accomplish the Chamber’s
goals; therefore, fundraising events are held to fill the gap between membership dues and total expenses.

Advertising Cost

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
amounted to $2,829 and $288, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Chamber is operating as a not-for-profit corporation, under Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and is not subject to income taxes with the exception of unrelated business income. The Chamber conducted
unrelated business activities during the current year. Therefore, the Chamber paid $4,515 and $436 for federal
income taxes in the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Chamber applies the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, which prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken
or expected to be taken in a tax return. Topic 740 also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures and transition. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, no
uncertain tax positions were identified.

NOTE 2 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Chamber maintains its cash balances in a local bank. These balances are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Management periodically assesses the financial condition of the
financial institutions and believes that any possible credit risk is minimal. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
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Chamber had approximately $210,000 and $100,000, respectively, of cash balances that were not insured by the
FDIC. The Chamber has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes the risk of future loss is
mitigated by monitoring the balances and the financial institutions where the cash is deposited.

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

Reviewed Audited
2021 2020
Building and improvements $1,112,383 $1,112,383
Computers and software 17,517 17,517
Office equipment 13,102 13,102
Furniture and fixtures 17,990 17,990
Land 145,000 145,000
Total property and equipment, gross 1,305,992 1,305,992
Less: Accumulated depreciation (421,987) (391,945)
Total property and equipment, net $884,005 $914,047

Depreciation expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $30,042 and
$29,984, respectively.

NOTE 4 — RENTAL INCOME

The Chamber leases office space to three other organizations under four to five year leases as follows:

Current monthly Lease Renewal

rent Lease initiation expiration Lease renewal expiration
TEDC $1,506 9/1/2008 10/31/2013 11/1/2013 10/31/2018
11/1/2018 10/31/2023
TRHF $3,729 11/1/2012 10/31/2017 11/1/2017 10/31/2022
Envirocon $150 4/1/2016 3/31/2020 4/1/2020 3/31/2024

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, rental income was $64,624 and $64,624, respectively.
Future minimum rentals expected to be collected are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 57,165
2023 16,860
2024 450
Total $ 74,475

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS

The Chamber leases office equipment under noncancelable leases that expire in 2024 and 2026. For the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the total rental expense under these leases was $9,970 and $10,110,
respectively. These expenses are included in equipment lease expense in the Statement of Functional Expenses.
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Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 6,789
2023 6,651
2024 2,749
2025 1,969
2026 492
Thereafter -
Total $18,650

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The Chamber had a note payable due in monthly installments to a financial institution for an office building in the
amount of $6,729 for 83 months beginning January 10, 2010 through November 10, 2016. This note was secured
by the Quinn Road office building, with interest at 5%. On December 10, 2016, a balloon payment of any unpaid
principal and interest became due and payable, at which time the loan was modified to require monthly installments
of $5,595 at the same interest rate and terms and to become due and payable on December 10, 2023. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balance was $573,315 and $610,370, respectively.

Future scheduled maturities of the note payable is as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2022 $ 38,885
2023 40,874
Thereafter 493,556
Total $573,315

NOTE 7 — LIQUIDITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
one year of December 31, 2021, comprise the following:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $459,950

Accounts receivable, net 40,848
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year $500,798

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Chamber
considers all expenditures related to its ongoing program activities, as well as the conduct of services undertaken
to support those activities, to be general expenditures. None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other
contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of
financial position date. The Chamber sets a goal of having financial assets on hand to meet a minimum of 90 days
of normal operating expenses, which are, on average, around $56,000. As part of its liquidity management, the
Chamber has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations become due.
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NOTE 8 — CONCENTRATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, approximately fifty-one percent (51%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and
support came from membership dues. For the year ended December 31, 2020, approximately sixty-nine percent
(69%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and support came from membership dues.

The Chamber conducts its operations solely in the greater Tomball area, and, therefore, is subject to risks from
changes in local economic conditions. A downturn in the local economy could cause a decrease in membership
dues and revenue.

NOTE 9 — FEDERAL COVID RELIEF

On February 25, 2021, the Chamber received $49,436 under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act’). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses and are forgivable if the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains average payroll levels. The Organization applied for forgiveness and in
August 2021, was notified that the advance was forgiven in full. The proceeds have been recognized as other
income during the year ended December 31, 2021.

NOTE 10 - CHAMBER MEMBERSHIP ABSORPTION AGREEMENT

In 2021, the Spring-Klein Chamber of Commerce (SKCC) ceased operations. The Chamber entered into an
agreement with SKCC to absorb their current members and honor the remaining membership benefits. No assets
or liabilities were transferred to the Chamber as part of the agreement.

NOTE 11 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Organization continues to evaluate current economic conditions and
the impact on the Organization’s operations for the year ended December 31, 2021, as the long-term effects of the
pandemic are uncertain.

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through April 14, 2022, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
Tomball, Texas

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce as of December 31, 2020, and the changes in net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Greater Tomball Area Chamber
of Commerce and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based

on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously reviewed Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce’s 2019 financial statements dated
September 22, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
which it has been derived.

Tipton & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas

May 24, 2021
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As of December 31, Audited Reviewed
(with comparative totals for 2019) 2020 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 349,800 $ 349,262
Accounts receivable, net 53,474 55,174
Prepaid expenses 9,422 9,193
Property and equipment, net 914,047 942,867
Total Assets $ 1,326,743 $ 1,356,496
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accrued expenses $ 3,232 § 5,232
Deferred revenues 157,891 155,690
Long term debt 610,370 645,503
Deposits 8,300 8,300
Total Liabilities 779,793 814,725
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 546,950 541,771
Total Net Assets 546,950 541,771
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,326,743 $ 1,356,496

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Year ended December 31,
(with comparative totals for 2019)

Audited Reviewed
2020 2019

Revenue and Support
Membership dues
Special events revenue
Less: Cost of direct benefits to donors

$ 510,128 $ 480,171
45,405

(10,640)

Special events revenue, net 34,765 132,345
Capital improvement campaign 33,000 36,000
First Friday luncheon 11,342 41,829
Networking Breakfast 1,665 4,992
City of Tomball hotel tax revenue 35,000 35,000
Rental income 64,624 64,624
Tenent reimbursements 11,990 9,662
Ads and ad commission 16,895 15,389
In-kind donations - 28,795
Interest income 3,377 5,450
Other income 11,592 11,535
Total Revenue and Support 734,378 865,792
Expenses
Program Services
Business resources 252,245 282,361
Advocacy 248,661 273,616
Total Program Services 500,906 555,977
Supporting Services
General and administrative 117,336 111,043
Fundraising 110,957 105,901
Total Supporting Services 228,293 216,944
Total Expenses 729,199 772,921
Change in Net Assets 5,179 92,871
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 541,771 448,900

Net Assets, End of Year

$ 546,950 $ 541,771

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Program Services Supporting Services Audited Reviewed
Year ended December 31, Business Total Program General and Total Supporting 2020 2019
(with comparative totals for 2019) Resources Advocacy Services Administrative ~ Fundraising Services Total Total
T’ayroll and related expenses
Salaries $ 101,721 $ 101,721 $ 203,442 $ 25430 $ 25430 $ 50,860 $ 254,302 $ 253,742
Payroll taxes 7,856 7,856 15,712 1,964 1,964 3,928 19,640 18,734
Employee benefits 15,997 15,997 31,994 3,999 3,999 7,998 39,992 29,188
Total payroll and related expenses 125,574 125,574 251,148 31,393 31,393 62,786 313,934 301,664
Other expenses
Advertising 29 29 58 29 201 230 288 24,443
Bad debt 52,592 52,592 105,184 52,592 52,592 105,184 210,368 36,226
Bank fees 484 484 968 1,935 1,935 3,870 4,838 10,796
Board expenses - - - 6,475 - 6,475 6,475 3,964
Building expenses 120 120 240 30 30 60 300 300
Computer maintenance 1,892 1,892 3,784 473 473 946 4,730 3,310
Contract labor 424 424 848 106 106 212 1,060 3,933
Depreciation 11,993 11,993 23,986 2,999 2,999 5,998 29,984 30,132
Dues and subscriptions - 4,706 4,706 - - - 4,706 3,465
Employee development 1,668 1,668 3,336 417 417 834 4,170 9,875
Equipment lease 4,044 4,044 8,088 1,011 1,011 2,022 10,110 14,001
First Friday 9,095 - 9,095 - - - 9,095 44,033
Health committee 1,975 - 1,975 - - - 1,975 5,670
Insurance 3,838 3,838 7,676 959 959 1,918 9,594 8,488
Interest 12,804 12,804 25,608 3,201 3,201 6,402 32,010 33,780
Membership development - - - - - - - 62,397
Miscellaneous 2,429 3,239 5,668 2,427 - 2,427 8,095 20,653
Networking breakfast 450 - 450 - - - 450 1,456
Office supplies 1,677 1,677 3,354 419 419 838 4,192 6,404
Payroll service 2,049 2,049 4,098 512 512 1,024 5,122 4,452
Postage and delivery 538 269 807 269 717 986 1,793 5,840
Professional fees - - - 6,601 - 6,601 6,601 14,820
Rent 864 864 1,728 216 216 432 2,160 2,160
Repairs and maintenance 4,243 4,243 8,486 1,061 1,061 2,122 10,608 24,618
Software 1,403 1,403 2,806 351 351 702 3,508 3,382
Special events - 2,975 2,975 - 20,060 20,060 23,035 75,118
Taxes - income - - - 436 - 436 436 2,160
Taxes - property 5,568 5,568 11,136 1,392 1,392 2,784 13,920 13,920
Telephone 2,614 2,614 5,228 654 654 1,308 6,536 6,812
Travel and entertainment - - - 480 - 480 480 702
Utilities 3,592 3,592 7,184 898 898 1,796 8,980 10,620
Young professionals 286 - 286 - - - 286 814
Total other expenses 126,671 123,087 249,758 85,943 90,204 176,147 425,905 488,744
Subtotal 252,245 248,661 500,906 117,336 121,597 238,933 739,839 790,408
Less: Direct benefit to donor - - - - (10,640) (10,640) (10,640) (17,487)
Total Expenses $ 252,245 $ 248,661 $ 500,906 $ 117,336 $ 110,957 $ 228,293 $ 729,199 $ 772,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, Audited Reviewed
(with comparative totals for 2019) 2020 2019

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 5179 $ 92,871
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net change in operating activities:

Depreciation 29,984 30,132
Bad debt expense 210,368 36,226
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (208,668) (39,867)
Prepaid expenses (229) (7,973)
Accrued expenses (2,000) 1,956
Deferred revenues 2,201 30,178
Total Adjustments 31,656 50,652
Net Change in Operating Activities 36,835 143,523
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (1,164) (6,126)
Net Change in Investing Activities (1,164) (6,126)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Payments on long-term debt (35,133) (36,000)
Net Change in Financing Activities (35,133) (36,000)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 538 101,397
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 349,262 247,865
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 349,800 $ 349,262
Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid $ 32,010 $ 35,650
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 6
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NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce (the “Chamber) is a not-for-profit organization of citizens who
are investing their time and money in a community development program working together to improve the economic,
civic, and cultural fortitude of the region, community, or area. The Chamber’s mission is to provide resources and
foster relationships that empower businesses to prosper in Tomball and its surrounding communities.

The Chamber is supported through membership dues, contributions, rental income and other miscellaneous
revenue. The Chamber conducts the following programs:

e Business resources — The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value
added, quality networking events to the Chamber’s diverse membership, by ensuring inclusion through new
member mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. This
division invites members to become involved in the Chamber’s programs that will allow relationships to be
formed and sustained through a variety of networking events.

e Advocacy — The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for the Chamber’s members and
the greater Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about issues
that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce development,
energy and healthcare.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Chamber have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Chamber reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets
that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors: net assets without
donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

e Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations and not subject to donor
restrictions. The only limits on the use of net assets without donor restrictions are the broad limits resulting
from the nature of the Chamber, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its corporate
documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements
with creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations. Assets restricted solely through
the actions of the Board of Directors are reported as net assets without donor restrictions, board-
designated.

¢ Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or use
for a purpose specified by the donor. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires,
that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-restricted endowment earnings are
released when those earnings are appropriated with spending policies and are used for the specified
purpose.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Chamber considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents. The carrying values of any cash and cash equivalents
are deemed to approximate their fair values because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge
to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the allowance for
bad debts was $7,021 and $7,021, respectively.

Property and Equipment

The Chamber capitalizes all expenditures for property, plant and equipment in excess of $500. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Major improvements and renewals that extend the life of the asset
are capitalized. Purchased property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated using the straight-
line method based on their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 39 years
Computers and software 3-5 years
Office equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years

Donated Assets

Donated investments and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their fair values at the date of
donation.

Donated Property and Equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at fair value at the date of donation. Such
donations are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions
of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Chamber reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. The Chamber reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Deferred Revenue

Income from membership dues and subscription fees received in advance is deferred and recognized over the
periods to which the dues and fees relate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual
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results could differ from those estimates. The significant estimates included in the financial statements are the
estimates of useful lives used for depreciating property and equipment items.

Membership Dues

Membership dues are recognized in the applicable membership period. Any unearned amounts are included in
deferred revenue at the end of each accounting period.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b)
require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Chamber. Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Chamber with program
services and fundraising events. No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for these donated
services as the recognition criteria were not met.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses are categorized in the Statement of Activities as program services, management and general and
fundraising. The Chamber’s expenses are allocated on a functional basis among these benefited categories:

e Program service expenses: include direct and indirect (allocated) expenses for the various programs
offered by the Chamber to fulfill member investment expectations. Expenses that can be identified with a
specific program and support services are allocated directly according to their natural expenditure
classification. Other expenses, that are common to several functions, are allocated to program services
based on time and effort.

e Management and general expenses: include those expenses, ranging from office management to financial
services, that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support
and direction of the Chamber. Those expenses include the basic necessities to be an accredited, well
rounded, and effective organization.

e Fundraising expenses: represent costs incurred in connection with fundraising efforts to continue the
Chamber’s mission. The membership dues alone are not adequate enough to accomplish the Chamber’s
goals; therefore, fundraising events are held to fill the gap between membership dues and total expenses.

Advertising Cost

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
amounted to $288 and $24,443, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Chamber is operating as a not-for-profit corporation, under Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and is not subject to income taxes with the exception of unrelated business income. The Chamber conducted
unrelated business activities during the current year. Therefore, the Chamber paid $436 and $2,160 for federal
income taxes in the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Chamber applies the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, (formerly FASB Interpretation No. 48
(FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109), which
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures and transition. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, no uncertain tax positions were identified.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments — ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (formerly SFAS 157),
defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in the principal
or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The valuation techniques required by ASC 820 are based upon observable and unobservable inputs, and ASC 820
establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The three levels
of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

e Level | - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market is a market in
which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. Level | assets include cash and cash equivalents with a fair value at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 of $349,800 and $349,262, respectively.

e Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level |, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

e Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity.

The asset’s or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used are to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

NOTE 2 — CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Chamber maintains its cash balances in a local bank. These balances are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Management periodically assesses the financial condition of the
financial institutions and believes that any possible credit risk is minimal. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Chamber had approximately $100,000 and $99,000, respectively, of cash balances that were not insured by the
FDIC. The Chamber has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes the risk of future loss is
mitigated by monitoring the balances and the financial institutions where the cash is deposited..

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

Audited Reviewed
2020 2019
Building and improvements $1,112,383 $1,112,383
Computers and software 17,517 16,353
Office equipment 13,102 13,102
Furniture and fixtures 17,990 17,990
Land 145,000 145,000
Total property and equipment, gross 1,305,992 1,304,828
Less: Accumulated depreciation (391,945) (361,961)
Total property and equipment, net $914,047 $942,867

Depreciation expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $29,984 and
$30,132, respectively.
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NOTE 4 — RENTAL INCOME

The Chamber leases office space to three other organizations under four to five year leases as follows:

Current monthly Lease Renewal

rent Lease initiation expiration Lease renewal expiration
TEDC $1,506 9/1/2008 10/31/2013 11/1/2013 10/31/2018
11/1/2018 10/31/2023
TRHF $3,729 11/1/2012 10/31/2017 11/1/2017 10/31/2022
Envirocon $150 4/1/2016 3/31/2020 4/1/2020 3/31/2024

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, rental income was $64,624 and $64,624, respectively.
Future minimum rentals are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $62,624
2022 57,165
2023 16,860
2024 450
Total $137,099

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS

The Chamber has two noncancelable operating leases for office equipment. The terms of the leases vary from 36
to 60 months beginning in 2015 and expiring in 2021. The monthly rental payments are $393 and $210 plus
maintenance costs. Both leases were renewed subsequent to year end. For the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, the total rental expense under these leases was $10,110 and $14,001, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $6,788
2022 6,651
2023 6,651
2024 2,749
2025 1,969
Thereafter 492
Total $25,300

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The Chamber had a note payable due in monthly instaliments to a financial institution for an office building in the
amount of $6,729 for 83 months beginning January 10, 2010 through November 10, 2016. This note was secured
by the Quinn Road office building, with interest at 5%. On December 10, 2016, a balloon payment of any unpaid
principal and interest became due and payable, at which time the loan was modified to require monthly installments
of $5,595 at the same interest rate and terms and to become due and payable on December 10, 2023. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance was $610,370 and $645,503, respectively.

11
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Future scheduled maturities of the note payable is as follows:

For the years ending December 31,

2021 $36,992
2022 38,885
2023 40,874
Thereafter 493,619
Total $610,370

NOTE 7 - LIQUIDITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
one year of December 31, 2020, comprise the following:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $349,800

Accounts receivable, net 53,474
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for

general expenditures within one year $403,274

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Chamber
considers all expenditures related to its ongoing program activities, as well as the conduct of services undertaken
to support those activities, to be general expenditures. None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other
contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of
financial position date. The Chamber sets a goal of having financial assets on hand to meet a minimum of 90 days
of normal operating expenses, which are, on average, around $56,000. As part of its liquidity management, the
Chamber has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations become due.

NOTE 8 — CONCENTRATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2020, approximately sixty-nine percent (69%) of the Chamber’s total revenue
and support came from membership dues. For the year ended December 31, 2019, approximately fifty-five percent
(55%) of the Chamber’s total revenue and support came from membership dues.

The Chamber conducts its operations solely in the greater Tomball area, and, therefore, is subject to risks from
changes in local economic conditions. A downturn in the local economy could cause a decrease in membership
dues and revenue.

NOTE 9 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the Chamber has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through May 24, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. In
early 2020, an outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) emerged globally. The spread of COVID-19
and related global responses have caused material disruptions to many economies around the world, resulting in
an economic slowdown. Global equity markets have also experienced significant volatility and weakness. Although
governments and central banks have reacted with interventions designed to stabilize economic conditions, the
duration and extent of the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak remains unclear.
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On February 25, 2021, the Chamber received $49,436 under the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act’). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses and are forgivable if the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains average payroll levels. Any unforgiven portion of the PPP loan will be
payable over two years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first six months. While the
Chamber believes its use of the PPP loan proceeds meet the conditions of forgiveness, it is possible the Chamber
may be ineligible for forgiveness of the loan, in whole or in part.

The Chamber has determined that these events are non-adjusting subsequent events. Accordingly, the financial
position and statement of activities as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 have not been adjusted to
reflect their impact. As of May 24, 2021, the virus and related responses have caused disruptions to the Chamber's
operations through cancelled events and reduced membership dues, and the Chamber expects these disruptions
to negatively impact its operating results. However, the ultimate impact of COVID-19 is not reasonably estimable at
this time.
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2022-2023 Board Meetings

Wednesday, October 19 — Board Retreat

Time: 9:00 am — 5:00 pm

Location: TBD
Wednesday, November 16 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, December 21 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, January 18 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, February 15 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, March 15 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, April 19 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, May 17 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, June 21 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, July 19 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)

Item 6.
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Wednesday, August 16 — Board Meeting

Item 6.

Time: 4:00 pm - 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
Wednesday, September 20 — Board Meeting

Time: 4:00 pm — 5:30 pm

Location: Chamber Board Room (2" floor of Chamber Office)
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

JOB DESCRIPTION

Item 6.

Job Title: PRESIDENT
Department: N/A

Reports To: Board of Directors
Approved By: Board of Directors

Approved Date: _May 20,2015

Revised Date:

The President, as the chief administrative executive plans, organizes, directs and controls the Chamber’s

§ Eiqﬁ%:ﬁ) (ﬂ;@ﬁ economic development and public policy activities and responds to the needs of its members
within-available and agreed upon financial resources. The President develops and maintains collaborative
working relationships between the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce and other key business and
public policy organizations, other area chambers of commerce and other organizations to foster a nurturing
business environment for members. The President delegates portions of his/her responsibilities consistent
with sound operations and authorized policies and procedures (together with proportionate authority for their
fulfillment through subordinate managers responsible for developing operational strategies that ensure the
flawless execution of the Chamber's internal affairs) in support of the chamber's external goals for business
and membership growth.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Strategic
e Direct development of short and long range objectives, policies, budgets, and operating plans for the
organization and oversees their consistent interpretation, implementation and achievement.
e Oversee the development of established policies, systems and processes for the proper,
consistent, and efficient execution of financial and operational activities, in compliance with all
relevant internal, local, state, and federal guidelines.
e  Work with committees to identify issues and needs and develop plans to address them.

2. Managerial

e Develop and ensure successful implementation of the Chamber’s multi-year strategic plan and the
corresponding annual business plan as approved by the Board of Directors.

e Integrate the needs and constraints of other functional/departmental managers and directors into
planning and execution of day-to-day operations.

e Ensure activities meet with chamber requirements for quality management, health and safety, legal
stipulations, environmental policies and general duty of care.

e Manage and develop direct reporting staff, including establishing and enforcing accountability
guidelines, directing and supervising staff day-to-day activities, training, and recruiting in line with
the Operational Plan and chamber goals and guidelines.

e Delegate and outsource activities as appropriate to meet goals and deliverables in the most efficient
and productive manner.

3. Financial
e Advise the Board of Directors of the Chamber's financial activities including cash flow, expenditures,
billing and event budgeting.
e Monitor accounting procedures and records in accordance with relevant internal and external
guidelines, including an annual audit.

e Approve disbursements, co-sign checks with the officers and maintain general control of expenditures.
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4. Administrative
e Employ staff necessary to carry out the work of the organization.
e Conduct employee evaluations in conjunction with the Vice President.
e Monitor the established employee benefits packages, payroll, tax deductions, and appropriate
records as approved by the Board of Directors, and in compliance with local, state, and federal HR
guidelines.

5. Communication

e Act as primary spokesperson for the organization.

e Maintain an open line of communication with the Board of Directors, providing objective and factual
input regarding relevant operational and financial activities to facilitate informed decision making.

e Maintain and develop effective communications and relations with other community leaders, other
organizations, and elected officials.

e  Work closely with Communications Director to ensure all information that is published by and through
the Chamber is correct, timely, addressed to the proper parties and/or audience, and in line with
chamber, local, state, and federal guidelines.

6. Self-Development

e Conduct all business in an ethical and professional manner.

e Keep abreast of new developments in community, legislation, Board of Directors, the membership
base, and any other area that could affect the Chamber’s operations.

e Know and understand the federal, state, and local laws which govern the different aspects of chamber
activities.

e Attend training seminars and courses as requested by the Board of Directors, or required by
developments in regulatory bodies.

QUALIFICATIONS

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE

B.A. or B.S. from accredited college.

Five (5) years experience as a successful business leader, familiarity with public relations and marketing,
and management experience.

LANGUAGE SKILLS
Ability to read and write legibly. Ability to document numbers quickly without transposing or dropping digits.
Ability to communicate verbally in English.

REASONING ABILITY

Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out moderately complex instructions. Ability to keep
track of, and organize, numerous and varied time sensitive tasks and concurrently deal with frequent urgent
situations requiring immediate decision and action.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
Ability to work irregular hours, evenings and weekends.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to work with computers; stand; walk;
sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; and talk or hear. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and
ability to adjust focus.

Item 6.
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WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The President is required to wear proper/approved work attire at all times.

NOTE:

THIS IS NOT NECESSARILY AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST OF RESPONSIBILITIES, SKILLS, DUTIES,
REQUIREMENTS, EFFORTS, OR WORKING CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE JOB. WHILE
THIS LIST IS INTENDED TO BE AN ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE CURRENT JOB, THE
CHAMBER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE JOB TO
REQUIRE THAT ADDITIONAL OR DIFFERENT TASKS BE PERFORMED WHEN
CIRCUMSTANCES CHANGE (i e, EMERGENCIES, CHANGES IN PERSONNEL, WORK LOAD,
RUSH JOBS, OR TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS).

I have read and fully understand the contents of this job description. | understand the responsibilities,
requirements and duties expected of me. | also understand that the job description does not constitute a
contract of employment nor alter my status as an at-will employee. | have the right to terminate my
employment at any time and for any reason, and the Chamber has a similar right.

Employee's Name Employee's Signature Date

Supervisor's Name Supervisor's Signature  Date

THE GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE IS
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.
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Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce

JOB DESCRIPTION

Job Title: VICE PRESIDENT OF OPERATIONS (U.S Chamber job code U105)
Department: N/A

Reports To: PRESIDENT

Prepared By: Pascale Nicolet-Smith — TOP solutions

Prepared Date: 1-10-2007

Approved By: BRUCE HILLEGEIST - PRESIDENT

Approved Date:

Revised Date:

Item 6.

JOB DEFINITION

The Vice President of Operations serves as the Chief Operating Officer, ensuring execution of the day-to-day
business operations of the organization, including policy development and management of financial activities and
personnel. The Vice President of Operations is responsible for developing operational strategies that ensure
the flawless execution of the chamber's internal affairs in support of the chamber's external goals for business
and membership growth.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Strategic
e Contribute to development of strategic plan as a member of executive team.
e Plan, develop and implement strategy for operational management and execution so as to meet
agreed Chamber goals within agreed budgets and timeframes.
e Develop and establish policies, systems and processes for the proper, consistent, and efficient
execution of financial and operational activities, in compliance with all relevant internal, local, state,
and federal guidelines.

2. Managerial

e Develop and implement Annual Operational Plan that defines deliverables, resource requirements,
processes, and timeframes for chamber driven activities.

e Integrate the needs and constraints of other functional/departmental managers and directors into
planning and execution of day-to-day operations.

e Ensure activities meet with chamber requirements for quality management, health and safety, legal
stipulations, environmental policies and general duty of care.

e Manage and develop direct reporting staff, including establishing and enforcing accountability
guidelines, directing and supervising staff day-to-day activities, training, and recruiting in line with
Operational Plan and chamber goals and guidelines.

e Delegate and outsource activities as appropriate to meet goals and deliverables in the most efficient
and productive manner.

3. Financial
e Plan, Develop, and manage annual budget with Board of Directors.
e Oversee the chamber's financial activities including managing and controlling cash flow,
expenditures, billing and event budgeting.
e Maintain proper accounting procedures and records in accordance with relevant internal and external
guidelines, including and annual audit.
e Keep and distribute financial notes, records, and reports to President and the Board of Directors.
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4. Administrative

e Manage and maintain appropriate records for company insurance, contracts and agreements,
corporate level negotiations (e.g. premises), vendors, regulatory bodies relationships and strategies,
approvals and accreditations.

e Establish and maintain appropriate IT and communication systems to ensure financial records,
membership databases, web presence and all communication channels are functional and meet
chamber goals and guidelines.

e Establish and manage employee benefits packages, payroll, tax deductions, and appropriate records
as approved by the Board of Directors, and in compliance with local, state, and federal HR guidelines

5. Communication

e Maintain an open line of communication with Chamber executives and Board of Directors, providing
objective and factual input regarding relevant operational and financial activities, to facilitate informed
decision making.

e  Work closely with Communications Director to ensure all information that is published by and through
the chamber is correct, timely, addressed to the proper parties and/or audience, and in line with
chamber, local, state, and federal guidelines.

e Maintain appropriate communication with direct report staff, ensuring they have the
necessary information to perform their day-to-day work effectively.

6. Self-Development

e Conduct all business in an ethical and professional manner.

o Keep abreast of new developments in community, legislation, Board of Directors, membership
base, and any other area that could affect the chamber operations.

¢ Know and understand the federal, state, and local laws which govern the different aspects of chamber
activities.

e Attend training seminars and courses as requested by the President and/or Board of Directors,
or required by developments in regulatory bodies.

QUALIFICATIONS

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE

B.A. or B.S. from accredited college.

Five (5) years administrative, accounting, and project management experience, preferably in a business
oriented not-for-profit organization.

LANGUAGE SKILLS
Ability to read and write legibly. Ability to document numbers quickly without transposing or dropping digits.
Ability to communicate verbally in English.

REASONING ABILITY

Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out moderately complex instructions. Ability to keep
track of, and organize, numerous and varied time sensitive tasks and concurrently deal with frequent urgent
situations requiring immediate decision and action.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
Ability to work irregular hours, evenings and weekends.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Item 6.
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While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to work with computers; stand; walk;
sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; and talk or hear. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and
ability to adjust focus.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The Vice President of Operations is required to wear proper/approved work attire at all times.

NOTE:

THIS IS NOT NECESSARILY AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST OF RESPONSIBILITIES, SKILLS, DUTIES,
REQUIREMENTS, EFFORTS, OR WORKING CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE JOB. WHILE
THIS LIST IS INTENDED TO BE AN ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE CURRENT JOB, THE
CHAMBER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE JOB TO
REQUIRE THAT ADDITIONAL OR DIFFERENT TASKS BE PERFORMED WHEN
CIRCUMSTANCES CHANGE (i e, EMERGENCIES, CHANGES IN PERSONNEL, WORK LOAD,
RUSH JOBS, OR TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS).

I have read and fully understand the contents of this job description. | understand the responsibilities,
requirements and duties expected of me. | also understand that the job description does not constitute a
contract of employment nor alter my status as an at-will employee. | have the right to terminate my
employment at any time and for any reason, and the chamber has a similar right.

Employee's Name Employee's Signature Date

Supervisor's Name Supervisor's Signature  Date

THE GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 1S
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER.
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THE

THE HARTFORD
BUSINESS SERVICE CENTER
3600 WISEMAN BLVD

HARTFORD SAN ANTONIO TX 78251

City of Tomball
401 MARKET ST
TOMBALL TX 77375

Account Information:

Policy Holder Details :

GREATER TOMBALL AREA
CHAMBE OF COMMERCE

Item 6.

June 1, 2022

Q Contact Us

Need Help?

Start a live chat online or call us at
(866) 467-8730.

We’'re here weekdays from 8:00 AM to
8:00 PM ET.

Enclosed please find a Certificate Of Insurance for the above referenced Policyholder. Please contact us if you have any

guestions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Your Hartford Service Team

WLTRO05
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) |

06/01/2(

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLD

Item 6.

THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE
POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S),
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not
confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER CONTACT
HIGGINBOTHAM INS AGENCY INC/PHS NAME:
61611737 PHONE (866) 467-8730 FAX (888) 443-6112
(AIC, No, Ext): (A/C, No):
The Hartford Business Service Center
3600 Wiseman Blvd E-MAIL
San Antonio, TX 78251 ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#
INSURED INSURER A : Hartford Lloyd's Insurance Company 38253
GREATER TOMBALL AREA CHAMBE OF COMMERCE INSURER B :
292201 QUINN STEB
INSURER C :
TOMBALL TX 77375
INSURERD :
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL | SUBR POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS
LTR INSR_|WVD (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/Y YYY)
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
|CLAIMS-_MAD'I% OceuR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $300'000
X |General Liability MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000
A X 61 SBA VM8139 12/20/2021 | 12/20/2022 | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
PRO-
L POLICY I:l kot LoC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000
OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
ﬁTOMOBlLE LIABILITY 2 accident $1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED ]
A | |AuTos AUTOS 61 SBA VM8139 12/20/2021 | 12/20/2022 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
| HIRED x| NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
| 7 | AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
UMBRELLA LIAB | | OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-
MADE AGGREGATE
DED| |RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION |PER | |OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER
ANY YN E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE N/ A
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? I: E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
im Limi 5,000
A |EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 61 SBA VM8139 122012021 | 127202022 | Each Claim Limit $
LIABILITY Aggregate Limit $5,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Those usual to the Insured's Operations. Certificate holder is an additional insured per the Business Liability Coverage Form SS0008 attached to this
policy.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
City of Tomball SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
401 MARKET ST BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED
TOMBALL TX 77375 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

293




Greater
Tomball Area *

Chamber of Commerce

2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan




Item 6.

Vision Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce will continue to be the business
resource center for the northwest Houston metropolitan area.

R.E.A.L. (Core) Values

Relationship
Connecting members for lasting relationships that promote growth and enhance success.
Education
Promoting development of our community through personal and business education.
Advocacy
Partnering with business and government to advocate for the community.
Legacy
Establishing the standards of tomorrow guided by the cornerstone of tradition.

Mission Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce provides resources
and fosters relationships that empower businesses to prosper in
Tomball and its surrounding communities.

Diversity Statement
The Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce is committed to advancing the values
and benefits of diversity, equity and inclusion and believes it takes every member of the
community to maintain a thriving economy.

Representing

City of Tomball, Creekside, Decker Prairie, Hufsmith, Korhville, Lakewood,
Northpointe, Pinehurst, Rose Hill, Spring-Klein & Stagecoach

Critical Goals

Advance Region's Economy
Promote and enhance a vibrant, diverse and sustainable economy.

Improve Quality of Life
Foster a high-ranking quality of life for all residents.

Enhance Members' Success
Provide targeted services, events and programs.

Organization Improvement
Position the organization and its staff for long term success.
Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 2
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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Business Resources Division

The Business Resources Division is dedicated to providing and promoting value added, quality
networking events to GTACC’s diverse membership by ensuring inclusion through new member
mentorship programs and by presenting opportunities for personal and business growth. The division
invites members to become involved in GTACC programs that will allow relationships to be formed
and sustained through a variety of networking events.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Business Resources and includes:

First Friday Luncheon, Networking Breakfast, Young Professionals, Ambassadors,
Business After Hours, Tomball Together, and Women’s Committee

Advocacy Division
The Advocacy Division is committed to being a strong voice for GTACC members and the greater
Tomball area community. This will be accomplished by addressing public policy issues with
participation from the public, members and elected officials, and holding open discussions about
issues that affect the business community including: economic development, education, workforce
development, energy, and healthcare.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Advocacy and includes:

Government & Legislative Affairs Committee, Health & Wellness Alliance, Mobility &
Transportation Committee, Business & Education Partnership, Leadership North Houston,
Citizen of Year, Tomball Tidings, and Collaboration with City & Community partners

Prosperity Division
The Prosperity Division oversees the revenue generating activities that support the economic
activities of the GTACC. By supporting these quality events, the GTACC brings people together,
enhances Tomball’s overall quality of life, and provides many fundraising opportunities. All events
listed carry on the excellent reputation that the GTACC has earned statewide — events that attract tens
of thousands of visitors to the Tomball community. This division also concentrates on pursuing
various avenues to increase membership growth.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Prosperity and includes:

Membership Growth, Tomball Holiday Parade, Miss Tomball Pageant, Tomball Night,
Chairman’s Ball, and the Golf Classic

Operations Division

The Operations Division is responsible for the administrative oversight of the Greater Tomball Area
Chamber of Commerce’s financial, facilities, and marketing operations. The division also ensures the
Chamber’s compliance with all applicable internal and external rules, regulations, and guidelines.

This Division is led by the Vice-Chair of Operations and includes:
Marketing, Accreditation, By-laws, Facilities, and Finances

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 3

2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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The GTACC Board of Directors will yearly develop an annual action plan to

focus our efforts each year. We will keep in mind our mission, vision and value
statements along with our long-term goals in development of this plan each year.

2022 Action Plan

Deliver Value to Members

Business Resources

Item 6.

1. Update value-based membership tiers Staff 03/01/22
2. Plan for showcasing members across multiple
communication platforms Board 03/01/22
3. Segment membership by interests for better engagement Board
4. Retain 50% of Spring-Klein Chamber memberships Board 12/31/22
Growth Prosperity
1. Increase membership % Board 12/31/22
2. Support Membership Director with quality leads Board monthly
3. Develop & implement effective on-boarding system to
improve first-year retentionby % Board 04/01/22
4. Increase membership investments at renewal by % Board 12/31/22
Develop Leaders Advocacy
1. Further develop leadership program (LNH) to include
Tomball Community Day Board 06/01/22
2. Improve board recognition, acknowledgement, and visibility
within chamber membership and community. Board 12/31/22
3. Develop current & future leaders through our Program of Work  Board 12/31/22
Operations Operations
1. Define a succession plan for President Board 06/30/22
2. Plan & Budget for an addition to staff Board 06/30/22
3. Integrate Five Star Accreditation Goals into
Board Strategic/Action plan Board 03/30/22
4. Implement a system for shifting past due efforts to effective
pre-renewal protocol Board 03/30/22

Community Support / Qutreach

Staff w/Board Support

1.

2.

Support citizens & downtown businesses during upcoming
2920 Redevelopment and Alley Projects

Support citizens & businesses through proposed Harris
County redistricting

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan

Staff

Staff

12/31/22

12/31/22
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e Support the advancement of our Region’s Economy:
o Transportation-improving the flow of goods, services and families
= 2920
= Business 249
= Major feeders to 249 and 2920
o Remove Legislative roadblocks
o Grow/Foster municipal relationships
o Provide information on growth, trends in all markets, and partnerships
e Support our community goals to enhance Quality of Life:
o Beautification of Tomball
o Develop and Foster downtown environment
o Create/Foster a livable center
= Churches, post office, golf courses, diverse business, EMS, post offices
o Diversity of business centers
o Healthcare
o Education
e Promote Members’ Success:
o Future leaders/Sustainable leadership
= Develop current and future leaders through our Program of Work
o Education/ Equipping programs
= Developing education opportunities for our members through the Chamber
and its Partners
o Promotion / Exposure of businesses/ Lead generation
o Resource Center
= Continue to provide information and resources on growth trends in all
markets and strategic partnerships for members and the community.
o Technology

e Cultivate Cultural Diversity from a position of leadership.
o ldentify community leaders and promote chamber membership
o ldentify chamber or community events to support diversity

e Identify the Top 10 Business Development Opportunities for Chamber Growth
o ldentify development opportunities in Tomball to strengthen our community and
Chamber

e Organization Improvement:
o Technology
= Continuous improvement of technology to implement current trends that
are productive for the Chamber and our members
o Advertising and branding

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 5
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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o Accreditation
= |dentify areas of improvement as suggested by our recent accreditation
review

o Communications
= Maintain timely and quality communications with staff
= Promote member connections and enhance flow of information in usable
formats
o Education/ Partners/ Consultants
= EDC/City/ Chambers/ College/ County

Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce 6
2022 — 2025 Strategic Plan
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TAC Board Meeting
Agenda Item

Data Sheet
Meeting Date: 7/26/2022

Topic:

Consideration of Application from the Greater Tomball Area Chamber of Commerce for Grant from
FY 2022-2023 Hotel Occupancy Funds for the 2022 Holiday Parade.

Background:

Origination: Finance

Recommendation:

Party(ies) responsible for placing this item on agenda: Katherine Tapscott, Finance Director

FUNDING (IF APPLICABLE)
Are funds specifically designated in the current budget for the full amount required for this purpose?

Yes: X No: If yes, specify Account Number: 240-240-6351
If no, funds will be transferred from account To account
Signed  Katherine Tapscott, CPA Approved by

Finance Director 7/20/2022 City Manager Date
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'OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

* CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
| OF =+ .

CITY OF TOMBALIL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
CHARTER NO. 215046

- The underéigned, as Seéretar’j ‘of' ‘State of the State of Texas, hereby certifies that
aupﬁcate originals of Articles of Iﬂcorporation for the above corporation duly
. signed and verified pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation

A(;t, have been received in this office Tand are found to conform to law.

 ACCORDINGLY the undersigriéd, as such Secreféry of State, and by virtue of | ;

'the authority vested in him by law, hereby issues this Certificate of Incorporation '

s

and attaches hereto a duphcate orlgmal of the Articles of Incorporatlon ~

Dated ___-__-__C[u_l_y_l.s-_-____, 18.65.. é@ ﬂ{gﬂ{ é( oy
. ‘a.ﬂv"u

‘/ Secretary of State

B ;-"f"f‘v‘i.‘-‘ RERTE Pt d 4o . 301




ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF
CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

We, the undersigned natural persons of the age of twenty-one

(21) years of more, at least two of whom are citizens of the State
of Texas, acting as incorporators of a corporation under the Texas

Non-Profit Corporation Aet, do hereby adopt the following Articles

of Incorporation for such corporation:

ARTICLE ONE

The name of the Corporation is CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF

COMMERCE .

ARTICLE TWO

The Corporation is a non-profit corporation.

ARTICLE THREE

The period of its duration is perpetual.

ARTICLE FOUR
The purpose for which the Corporation is organized is Civiec,

providing and promoting the development of the City of Tomball, Texas.

ARTICLE FIVE

The Street Address of the initial registered office of the
corpofation is 314 Commerce Street, in Tomball, Texas, and the name

of its initial registered agent is Jesse C. Powell, whose address is

314 Commerce Street, in Tomball, Texas.

ARTICLE SIX

The number of directors, or trustees, constituting the initial

Board of Directors, or Trustees, of the Corporation is Three (3),

and the names and addreéses of the persons who are to serve as the
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initial directors, or trustees, are:

NAMES , ADDRESSES
Pete Still ‘ 719 Barbara, Tomball, Texas
Jesse C. Powell 732 James, Tomball, Texas
BillierdicLovett 408 W, Commerce, Tomball, Texas

ARTICLE SEVEN

The name and street address of each incorporator is:

Pete Still 719 Barbara, Tomball, Texas
Jesse C, Powell _ 732 James, Tomball, Texas
Bil¥ielJ,eLbvett 408 W. Commerce, Tomball, Texas

—

IN WITNESS WHEREOF we have hereto set our hands this /& Z° day

o/

of  lepize , A. D. 1965.
7 -
rrd "_;"‘ P 4 r
—7—
I~ . o = STTILL
) / .
1. sad? el A
; -nm
II
éiéf} '!'-ul
THE STATE OF TEXAS I
: |
COUNTY OF HARRIS Q
I, 7Z&«46J sc s Z/CZL, , a Notary Public, do hereby
certify that on this the /§Z° day of 4_/7/¢44u/ , 1965, personally

ILLIE
appeared before me, PETE STILL, JESSE C. POWELL and E? J. LOVETT, who

each being by me first duly sworn, severally declared that they are the
persons who signed the foregoing document as incorporatérs, and that
the statements therein contained are true.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and seal the day

and year above written,

Heoce 7.5,

Notary Public in and for Harris
County, T E X A S

FOYE A. BURKLIN
Notary Public in and far MHarris County, Tares
My Commission Expires June 1, 1967
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- STATE OF TEXAS
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

AUSTIN, TEXAS 7871 l
Crawford C. Martin
SECRETARY OF STATE : . July 2, 196 5

MR. HOWARD H, KLEIN
KleinOffice Building
311 Commerce Street
Tomball, Texas 77375

In replyvincludeﬁ
Charter No. 215046
Account No. 164647

RE: CITY OF TOMBALL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
TO THE ATTENTION OF THE CAPTIONED CORPORATION:

It has been our pleasure to approve and place on record the Articles of
Incorporation that created your corporation. We extend our best wishes
for success in your new venture. '

Unless shown as "EXEMPT" under Account No. abo